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Certain Terms

All references to “options” or “options contracis’the text of this document refer to options otufas contracts.

Unless otherwise indicated, references to CME Gtaap(CME Group) products include references twdpicts listed on one of its regulated
exchanges: Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. (CNBBard of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc. (CBOMNgw York Mercantile Exchange,
Inc. (NYMEX) and Commodity Exchange, Inc. (COMEXroducts listed on these exchanges are subjdut taukes and regulations of the
particular exchange and the applicable rulebookilshioe consulted. Unless otherwise indicated, esfegs to NYMEX include its subsidiary,
COMEX.

Further information about CME Group and its proguzn be found at http://www.cmegroup.com. Infofaratnade available on our website
does not constitute a part of this Annual ReporForm 10-K.

Information about Contract Volume and Average Rateper Contract

All amounts regarding contract volume and averadg per contract exclude our TRAKRS, credit defawlaps, interest rate swaps and CME
Clearing Europe contracts.

Trademark Information

CME Group is a trademark of CME Group Inc. The @lédgo, CME, Chicago Mercantile Exchange, Globex Brmini are trademarks of
Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. CBOT and ChicagarB of Trade are trademarks of Board of TraddefQity of Chicago, Inc. NYMEX,
New York Mercantile Exchange and ClearPort areenaarks of New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc. COMiB trademark of Commodi
Exchange, Inc. KCBT and Kansas City Board of Tradetrademarks of The Board of Trade of Kansas, ®tgsouri, Inc. Dow Jones, Dow
Jones Industrial Average, S&P 500 and S&P are cemmd/or trademarks of Dow Jones Trademark Hoddig®, Standard & Poor's Financ
Services LLC and S&P/Dow Jones Indices LLC, asctse may be, and have been licensed for use bpgthMercantile Exchange Inc. All
other trademarks are the property of their respedwners.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, in this Annual Report on FormK.@s well as in other written reports and verhateaments, we discuss our expectations
regarding future performance. These forward-loolstegements are identified by their use of ternts@rases such as “believe,” “anticipate,”
“could,” “estimate,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “expet” and similar expressions, including referen@eadsumptions. These forward-looking
statements are based on currently available cotiyeetiinancial and economic data, current expémat estimates, forecasts and projections
about the industries in which we operate and mamagés beliefs and assumptions. These statementeoaguarantees of future performance
and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptioasdte difficult to predict. Therefore, actual artes and results may differ materially from
what is expressed or implied in any forward-look&tgtements. We want to caution you not to plackianeliance on any forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to publiggtate any forward-looking statements, whetherr@salt of new information, future events
or otherwise. Among the factors that might affeat performance are:

” w ” o

» increasing competition by foreign and domestitities, including increased competition from newrants into our markets and
consolidation of existing entities;

* our ability to keep pace with rapid technologjidavelopments, including our ability to complete development, implementation and
maintenance of the enhanced functionality requinedur customers while maintaining reliability aglsuring that such technology is
not vulnerable to security risks;

* our ability to continue introducing competitimew products and services on a timely, cost-effedtasis, including through our
electronic trading capabilities, and our abilitym@intain the competitiveness of our existing peisand services, including our
ability to provide effective services to the swaparket;

e our ability to adjust our fixed costs and experigesrr revenues declin

e our ability to maintain existing customers, devedtrategic relationships and attract new custor

« our ability to expand and offer our products owadide United State

» changes in domestic and non-U.S. regulatiorddting the impact of any changes in domestic aneign laws or government policy

with respect to our industry, such as any changesgulations and policies that require increageahtial and operational resources
from us or our customers;



» the costs associated with protecting our inttlial property rights and our ability to operate business without violating the
intellectual property rights of others;
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» decreases in revenue from our market data as & oésiecreased demat

» changes in our rate per contract due to shifteé mix of the products traded, the trading vesug the mix of customers (whether the
customer receives member or non-member fees dcipates in one of our various incentive prograars) the impact of our tiered
pricing structure;

» the ability of our financial safeguards packagadequately protect us from the credit risks of ihgamember

« the ability of our compliance and risk managetmathods to effectively monitor and manage ouestisncluding our ability to
prevent errors and misconduct and protect oursifuature against security breaches and misapptagpriof our intellectual property

assets;

« changes in price levels and volatility in theidatives markets and in underlying equity, fore@change, interest rate and
commodities markets;

e economic, political and market conditions, irthg the volatility of the capital and credit matkeand the impact of economic
conditions on the trading activity of our currentigpotential customers;

e our ability to accommodate increases in contraiime and order transaction traffic and to implenmantiancements without failure
degradation of the performance of our trading dedring systems;

e our ability to execute our growth strategy and rteamour growth effectivel

e our ability to manage the risks and control thesassociated with our strategy for acquisitiongestments and allianc
e our ability to continue to generate funds and/onagge our indebtedness to allow us to continuewesihin our busines

* industry and customer consolidati

» decreases in trading and clearing acti

» the imposition of a transaction tax or userdadutures and options on futures transactionscandpeal of the 60/40 tax treatment of
such transactions;

» the unfavorable resolution of material legal pratiegs; an

» the seasonality of the futures busine

For a detailed discussion of these and other fa¢hat might affect our performance, see Item XAhis Report beginning on page 14.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS

CME Group, through its futures exchanges and clgarbuses, serves the risk management and invetsteds of customers around the
globe.

CME was founded in 1898 as a not-for-profit corpiora In 2000, CME demutualized and became a sloédehowned corporation. As a
consequence, we adopted a for-profit approach tdasiness, including strategic initiatives aimeédgtimizing contract volume, efficiency
and liquidity. In 2002, Chicago Mercantile Exchartd@dings Inc. (CME Holdings) completed its init@lblic offering of its Class A common
stock, which is listed on the NASDAQ Global Seldtrket under the symbol “CME.” In 2007, CME Holdmmerged with CBOT Holdings,
Inc. and was renamed CME Group. In connection thighmerger, we acquired the CBOT exchange. CB@Tléading marketplace for trading
agricultural and U.S. Treasury futures as well gtsons on futures. In 2008, we merged with NYMEXI#Hogs, Inc. and acquired NYMEX a
COMEX. On NYMEX, customers primarily trade energyures and options contracts, including contramtsfude oil, natural gas, heating oil
and gasoline, as well as over-the-counter andxaffr@nge energy transactions cleared through CMBrEtet. On COMEX, customers trade
metal futures and options contracts, including @urts for gold, silver and copper. We launched GB&aring Europe in 2011 to expand our
European presence and further extend the geogedphach of our clearing services. In November 20d2acquired The Board of Trade of
Kansas City, Missouri, Inc. (KCBT) and its hard reister wheat product line. In April 2013, we puasied the nogeontrolling interest in CME
Group Index Services from Dow Jones & Company ([Jowes) resulting in an increase in our ownershigrés of the S&P/Dow Jones
Indices LLC (S&P/DJI) joint venture with McGraw-Hibriginally established in 2012. As part of tleerhation of S&P/DJI, McGraw-Hill
acquired our credit derivatives market data businesNovember 2013, we received regulatory apgrimraour multi-asset European trade
repository, which supplements our U.S. trade reéposiaunched in 2012, and in November 2013 CMEirad temporary registration as a
swap execution facility.

Our business has historically been subject to thensive regulation of the Commodity Futures Trgddommission (CFTC). As a result of ¢
global operations, we are also subject to the rmhesregulations of the local jurisdictions in whige conduct business, including the Bank of
England, the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) ahd European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMZME is subject to the oversight
of the Securities and Exchange Commission in cdrorewith our offering of clearing services for seity-based swaps. Additionally, our U
clearing house has been designated as a systgnimalbrtant financial market utility, which carriesth it additional regulatory oversight of
certain of our risk-management standards, cleaand,settlement activities by the Federal ReseamkB

Our principal executive offices are located at 20it8 Wacker Drive, Chicago, lllinois 60606, and telephone number is 312-930-1000.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

The company reports the results of its operatiensne reporting segment primarily comprised ofGivE, CBOT, NYMEX, COMEX and
KCBT exchanges. Effective as of December 16, 2€Stransfer of operations of KCBT to CBOT was ctetgrl. The remaining operations
do not meet the thresholds for reporting sepaegenent information. Financial information about ceporting segment is hereby incorporatec
by reference to "Item 6. Selected Financial Datapage 29 and "ltem 8. Financial Statements angl€o@ntary Data" on page 54.

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We offer the widest range of global benchmark potslacross all major asset classes, based onshtates, equity indexes, foreign exchange
energy, agricultural commodities, metals, weatimer al estate. Our products include both excharagked and over-the-counter derivatives.
We bring buyers and sellers together through ouEGBIobex electronic trading platform across thébgland our open outcry trading facilit

in Chicago and New York City, and provide hostiognnectivity and customer support for electroréacling through our co-location services.
Our CME Direct technology offers side-by-side traglof exchange-listed and over-the-counter markgesalso provide clearing and
settlement services for exchange-traded contrasteiell as for cleared over-the-counter derivativassactions, and provide regulatory
reporting solutions for market participants throwgin global repository services in the United $tated the United Kingdom. Finally, we offer
a wide range of market data services — including tjuotes, delayed quotes, market reports and pretransive historical data service — anc
continue to expand into the index services business

Our Competitive Strengths

We provide innovative ways to manage risk and aifeumber of key differentiating elements thatuseapart from our competitors, including:
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Highly Liquid Markets— Our listed futures markets provide an effectivaiforfor our customers to manage their risk and rifresét
investment needs relating to our markets. We belibat our customers choose to trade on our cesdgainarket due to its liquidity and price
transparency. Market liquidity — or the ability @imarket to absorb the execution of large purchaiseales quickly and efficiently, whereby
the market recovers quickly following the executafiarge orders — is key to attracting customers eontributing to a market's success.

Most Diverse Product Lin— Our products provide a means for hedging, speamatnd asset allocation relating to the risks aasext with,
among other things, interest rate sensitive insénis) equity ownership, changes in the value @idor currency, credit risk and changes in the
prices of agricultural, energy and metal commodlitiehe estimated percentage of clearing and tréinadees revenue contributed by each
product line is as follows:

Product Line 2013 2012 2011
Interest rate 2% 25% 27%
Equity 19 19 21
Foreign exchange 8 7 7
Agricultural commaodity 14 16 13
Energy 23 27 26
Metal 7 6 6

We believe that the breadth and diversity of owdprct lines and the variety of their underlying tants is beneficial to our overall
performance when an individual product line or vidiial product is impacted by macroeconomic factddditionally, our asset classes
contain various products designed to address tiffaisk management needs, and customers areabtehieve operational and capital
efficiencies by accessing our diverse productsutinoour platforms and our clearing houses.

Our products are traded through the CME Globextelai trading platform, our open outcry auctionrkeds in Chicago and New York City,
and through privately negotiated transactionsweatlear. The estimated percentage of clearingramdaction fees revenue contributed by
each trading venue is as follows:

Trading Venue 2013 2012 2011
Electronic 79% 76% 75%
Open outcry 6 7 9
Privately negotiatet® 15 17 16

(1) Privately negotiated venue average daily volimetudes both traditional block trades as welast was historically categorized as CME
ClearPort.

Our products generate valuable information regargifices and trading activity. We distribute ourrked data over the CME market data
platform directly to our electronic trading custamas part of their access to our markets, asasdlb quote vendors who consolidate our
market data with data from other exchanges, othist-party data providers and news sources, andrbsell their consolidated data. The
estimated contributions of our market data andrimfdion services products, excluding our index ratdata offerings, based on percentage ¢
total revenue over the last three years, were 2013, 12% in 2012 and 10% in 2011 .

Safety and Soundness of our Marke— We understand the importance of ensuring that ostomers are able to manage and contain their
trading risks. As the markets and the economy learedved, we have worked to adapt our clearing ses/to meet the needs of our customers
We apply robust risk management standards anda@ngord facilitate applicable regulatory custometgmtion standards for exchange-traded
products and cleared over-the-counter derivati@ésaring member firms are continually monitored ardmined to assess their outstanding
risk, capital adequacy and compliance with customnetection rules and regulations. We utilize a boration of risk management capabilities
to assess our clearing firms and their account&xmolevels for all asset classes 24 hours a dayghout the trading week. Our U.S. clearing
house is operated within our CME exchange. We gfwrate a U.K. clearing house — CME Clearing Eurépeonnection with our
acquisition of KCBT, we acquired its clearing houskich was integrated in April 2013 with our Uckearing operations.

Our integrated clearing function is designed taemshe safety and soundness of our markets byngeag the counterparty to every trade,
becoming the buyer to each seller and the selleatt buyer, and limiting credit risk. The clearivause is responsible for settling trading
accounts, clearing trades, collecting and maimgiperformance bond funds, regulating delivery mambrting trading data. CME Clearing
marks open positions to market at least twice a dag requires payment from clearing firms whosstms have lost value and makes
payments to clearing firms whose positions havaaghivalue. For select cleared-only markets, positare marked-to-market daily, with the
capacity to mark-to-market more frequently as
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market conditions warrant. The CME ClearPort frentt system provides access to our flexible cleas@rgices for the global over-tleauntet
market. See “ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitaidisclosures About Market Risk,” beginning on pa@eahd “Item 1A. Risk Factors,”
beginning on page 14, for more information on dnarficial safeguards package and the associateitl Gs&d related to our clearing services.

Superior Trading Technology and Distributio— We strive to provide the most flexible architectur@erms of bringing new technology,
innovations and solutions to the market. Our CMBH8k electronic trading platform is accessible ghobal basis nearly 24 hours a day
throughout the trading week. In 2013, 86% of ountact volume was conducted electronically.

Our platform offers:
» certainty of executiol
» vast capabilities to facilitate complex and demagdrading
» direct market acces
» fairness, price transparency and anonymity.

» global distribution, including connection thrdubigh-speed international telecommunications halk®y financial centers in Europe,
Asia and Latin America, and hosting or global ondrrting to our global partner exchanges.

We also offer CME Direct, which is a highly-configible trading front end that offers access to na-trading of both exchange-traded and
over-the-counter markets.

In 2012, we launched our service offerings for @cation at our data center facility, which housestoading match engines for all products
traded on the CME Globex electronic trading platfomrhe service provides the lowest latency conoadir our customers. The offering is
made available to all customers on equal termsd®&vived 2% of our revenues from our co-locationifeess in 2013 and 2012.

Our Strategic Initiatives
The following is a description of our strategictiaiives:

Leading Core Business Innovatio— We continue to enhance our customer relationdaavals to further cross-sell our products, expand o
the strength of our existing benchmark productsi¢h new products and deepen open interest inavarfatures offerings. Over the last five
years, our key product launches included |-long Bond Treasury futures and options, WeeklyaStgy options, numerous Eurodollar mid-
curve options, weekly and short-dated agricultoptlons, end of month equity options and a deliblerénterest rate swap futures product.
During the year, we also experienced multiple vauecords across our core product portfolio. We pdacontinue to invest in expanded sale:
and marketing capabilities and tools to broademocner participation and to simplify the customepestence in order to increase their use of
our offerings and reduce their regulatory burdens.

Globalizing our Company and our Business We continue to expand and diversify our customeehaoridwide and offer customers around
the world the most broadly diversified portfoliolménchmark products. We have expanded our proditetwith the launch of a number of
regionally specific products, including deliveraklainese Renminbi futures and Chinese Steel Retey &itures, which help us appeal to risk
management needs unique to a particular geogr&péycontinue to believe that we have significantarpymity to expand the participation of
our non-U.S. customer base in our markets. Weamnasfng on core growth in global markets becauseetieve that Asia, Latin America, and
other emerging markets will experience superioneatic and financial markets growth over the nexdadie compared with the more mature
North American and European markets. In additiomphan to expand our presence in major financiatazs, such as in Europe and Asia, g
our commodities business outside the U.S. and pretmerging markets, such as China, India, BaaxllMexico.

To further enhance our customers' trading oppdiasiwe have partnered with leading exchangesnarthe world to make their products
available on or through our CME Globex electrongmling platform. These strategic relationshipsvalls to accelerate our market penetration
expand our customer reach, lower barriers of adoeg®bal benchmarks and develop product salesres with local brokers. These
relationships are also designed to allow the custsraf our partner exchanges to access our prododtearkets.

Through CME Clearing Europe, our U.K. clearing h|yuge have built on our European presence andeiuetktended the geographical reach
of our clearing services. CME Clearing Europe affelearing services for over-the-counter derivagix@ducts, including interest rates, energy,
agriculture, freight and precious metals.

In 2012, we applied for regulatory approval to tee@ME Europe Limited, a London-based, FCA-supexiderivatives exchange. Pending
approval, product offerings will range across npldtiasset classes beginning with foreign exchangebelieve CME Europe will leverage the
central counterparty model of CME Clearing Europd allow us to more closely align
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with our regional customers in both listed and ethercounter markets, and will provide additionpportunities to our expanding non-U.S.
customer base.

Expanding our Existing Customer Base and Enhanciogir Product and Services Offerings to Meet its Riglanagement Need— We plan

to grow our business by targeting cross asset aaless client segments, driving internationalsaled generating new client participation
across all regions. We have a long history of qustovalue and responsiveness and believe our piodnd services make us well positioned
to help our customers adapt and comply with newlegmns, while enabling them to efficiently manabeir risks. With the ongoing
implementation of regulatory reform, we expect tapfficiencies and smooth transitions to cergealiclearing to continue to be important for
our global client base.

Extending our Capabilities and Business in the O-the-Counter Markets— We provide a comprehensive multi-asset class clgaolution
to the market for maximum operational ease andaapétal efficiency that comes with connecting to olearing houses. Our over-the-counter
offerings provide participants the extensive corpagy credit risk reduction and transparency af@daaring services while preserving the
prevailing execution processes, technology platéoamd business structures currently in use in udketplace. We offer clearing services for
cleared over-the-counter derivatives in interett savaps, credit default swaps, foreign exchangecammodities. We continue to focus on
new customer onboarding for swaps clearing seryegsanding our over-the-counter product offeriagd working with the buy- and sell-
sides to meet their needs for real-time cleariisf, management and data reporting as the marketptawes from a compliance phase to an
optimization phase. In 2013, the three phaseseo€lraring mandate of the Dodd-Frank Wall StredoRe and Consumer Protection Act
(Dodd-Frank) were implemented in the United Stebesing the year, we cleared over-the-counter &atisns with a notional value of more
than $15.3 trillion, and open interest as of Decen®d, 2013 , was $9.1 trillion. Our CME ClearRuettform offers access to an array of
clearing services with the capacity to clear aqmbretransactions in multiple asset classes.

Establishing Ourselves as the Leading Exchange Camyp Provider of Information Products and Index Seces and Enhancing ou
Intellectual Property Portfolio— We offer a variety of market data services forftitares, equities and the over-the-counter markats.joint
venture with McGraw-Hill combines the world clasgpeabilities of S&P Indices and Dow Jones Indices|, &ell positions us to serve global
institutional and retail customers and allows usdntinue to be innovative with product developmamd co-branding across asset classes. As
part of the joint venture, we acquired a long-teomnership-linked, exclusive license to list futsiend options on futures based on the S&P
500 Index and certain other S&P indexes. We alsimoe to expand our existing intellectual propgxtytfolio for our technology, products
and services offerings.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

We own the rights to a large number of trademas&syice marks, domain names and trade names ldrtied States, Europe and other parts
of the world. We have registered many of our mogidrtant trademarks in the United States and athentries. We hold the rights to a
number of patents and have made a number of papelitations. Our patents cover match engine, trasker interface, trading floor support,
market data, general technology and clearing hwsstionalities. We also own the copyright to aiggr of materials. Those copyrights, some
of which are registered, include printed and oe-fiublications, websites, advertisements, educatioaterial, graphic presentations and othe
literature, both textual and electronic. We attetogtrotect our intellectual property rights byiah on trademarks, patents, copyrights,
database rights, trade secrets, restrictions ahodisre and other methods.

We offer equity index futures and options on kegdienarks, including S&P, NASDAQ, Dow Jones and Kikkdexes. These products are
listed by us subject to license agreements wittafiicable owners of the indexes, some of whiehexclusive. In connection with our joint
venture with McGraw-Hill, we entered into a newelise agreement (S&P License Agreement), which saded our prior licensing
arrangements and was assigned to the joint ver@ME&'’s license for the S&P 500 Index will be exdlesfor futures and options on futures
until one year prior to the termination of the SRieense Agreement, and non-exclusive for the lasryThe license for the other S&P stock
indexes is generally exclusive for futures andangion futures. The term of the S&P License Agregmal continue until the later of (i)
December 31, 2017 or (ii) the date that is one wétar the date that CME Group ceases to own at faee percent (accounting for dilution) of
the outstanding joint venture interests. Upon theuarence of certain events, including certain teations of the joint venture, the term may
extended up to an additional ten years. CBOT hasxalusive license agreement (Dow Jones Licensegkgent) with CME Group Index
Services LLC (CME Indexes) for certain Dow Jonedeikes, which has also been assigned to the joimitive The initial term of the agreem
is through June 30, 2026. Following the initiahtethe Dow Jones License Agreement shall autombtiemew for renewal terms of five yei
thereafter so long as there is open interest incbu@BOT'’s or its affiliates’ products based on avamore of the Dow Jones licensed indexes.
In the event there is no open interest in any gwolducts, then CME Indexes has the ability to teate the agreement. We also have an
exclusive license agreement for certain NASDAQ kedethrough 2019. Copies of our S&P, Dow JonesNEDAQ license arrangements
have been filed as material contracts. We pay pipdicable third party per trade fees based on eshtrolume under the terms of these
licensing agreements.
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As a result of the well-publicized issues relatioghe credibility of the London Interbank OfferBdte (LIBOR), the U.K. Treasury awarded
NYSE Euronext (now IntercontinentalExchange Grdap, following its merger) administration rightsenthe LIBOR contract. The transfel
the administration from the British Bankers' Assticin (BBA) was completed in early 2014. Our présBmg license and membership
agreement with the BBA organization for the us€I&fOR to settle several of our interest rate praduincluding our Eurodollar contract,
remains in effect following the transition.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to mairttee exclusivity of our licensing agreements w&P, Dow Jones and NASDAQ or be
able to maintain our other existing licensing agements beyond the term of the current agreemiengsldition, we cannot assure you that
others will not succeed in creating stock indexifes based on information similar to that whichhaee obtained by license, or that market
participants will not increasingly use other instients, including securities and options based erS&P, Dow Jones or NASDAQ indexes, to
manage or speculate on U.S. stock risks. Partsesmahy succeed in offering indexed products thesamilar to our licensed products without
being required to obtain a license, or in counttiied are beyond our jurisdictional reach and/arlimensors.

Seasonality

Generally, we have historically experienced rekltivhigher contract volume during the first andasetquarters and sequentially lower
contract volume in the third and fourth quarterswidver, such seasonality also may be impacted bgrgemarket conditions or other events.
During 2013, 25% of our consolidated revenues wecegnized in the first quarter, 28% in the secguarter, 24% in the third quarter and
23% in the fourth quarter.

Working Capital

We generally meet our funding requirements witerinally generated funds supplemented from timéne tith public debt and commercial
paper offerings. For more information on our wotkaapital needs, see “Management's Discussion aatlysis of Operations and Financial
Condition-Liquidity and Capital Resources,” begimpion page 31, which section is incorporated hdygireference.

Customer Base

Our customer base includes professional traderandial institutions, institutional and individualkestors, major corporations, manufacturers,
producers, governments and central banks. Our m@stocan connect to our CME Globex electronic tmgglatform from access points across
the globe. Customers may be members of one or afarer CME, CBOT, NYMEX or COMEX exchanges. Rigldsdirectly access our
markets will depend upon the nature of the customerh as whether the individual is a member ofafraur exchanges or has executed an
agreement with us for direct access.

Trading rights and privileges are exchange-speciiiading on our open outcry trading floors is coctéd exclusively by our members.
Membership on one of our futures exchanges alsblena customer to trade specific products at redluates and lower fees. Under the term:
of the organizational documents of our exchangassp@embers have certain rights that relate primaoitrading right protections, certain
trading fee protections and certain membership fitggretections. In 2013 , 80% of our contract vk was conducted by our members and
KCBT permit holders. In connection with the tramsfé KCBT's operations to CBOT in 2013, the rigbfgpermit holders were extinguished.

The majority of clearing and transaction fees rem@ifrom clearing firms represents charges forasagkecuted and cleared on behalf of their
customers. One firm represented 11% and one fipmesented 10% of our clearing and transactionr@emnue for 2013 . In the event a
clearing firm were to withdraw, our experience ates that the customer portion of the firm's tigdictivity would likely transfer to another
clearing firm of the exchange.

Competition

The industry in which we operate is highly compegitand we expect competition to continue to inignespecially in light of changes in the
financial services industry driven primarily by Dibérank.

Please also refer to the discussion below andeifiRlisk Factors” section beginning on page 14 fdeacription of competitive risks and
uncertainties.

Competition in our Derivatives Business
We believe competition in the derivatives and sifiesrbusiness is based on a number of factorkjdimgy, among others:
e reputation

« efficient and secure settlement, clearing and stig@ovices



e depth and liquidity of marke

» breadth of product offerings and rate and qualityew product developme
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ability to position and expand upon existing praduo address changing market ne
» transparency, reliability and anonymity in trangatiprocessing

* regulatory environmer

e connectivity, accessibility and distributic

» technological capability and innovation; i

+ transaction cost:

We believe that we compete favorably with respethése factors. Our deep, liquid markets; diverseuct offerings; rate and quality of new
product development; and efficient, secure settigntdearing and support services, distinguishromfour competitors. We believe that in
order to maintain our competitive position, we memttinue to expand globally; develop new and iratiwe products; enhance our technology
infrastructure, including its reliability and fumatality; maintain liquidity and low transactionsts, and implement customer protections
designed to ensure the integrity of our marketthecconfidence of our customers.

Our competitors include, among other entities, argjes such as IntercontinentalExchange Group(I@E. Group); the Hong Kong Exchani
and Clearing Limited; and Deutsche Borse AG. Initimtltl competition in our industry is dynamic aretent developments and alliances may
result in a growing number of well-capitalized fregiservice providers that compete with all or aipa of our business.

We also face competition from the over-the-coumarketplace, spot markets, securities exchangesthed venues offering "look-alike" or
close substitutes for our listed contracts.

In addition, the development of swap executionlities and the mandated trading and/or clearingiregnent for certain products may lead to
the creation of platforms that promote competisubstitutes for our privately negotiated and exgeatnaded products.

Competition in our Transaction Processing Business

In addition, we face a number of competitors in tvansaction processing and other business servitdse past few years, there has been
increased competition in the provision of clearsegvices and we expect competition to continuadoeiase in connection with the continued
implementation of and compliance with Dodd-Frank.

Our competitors in the clearing services spacaidel among others, companies such as ICE Group,$@&pClear and Deutsche Borse AG.
In light of Dodd¥rank's clearing mandate and other reforms ofittential services industry, we believe that othehanges and infrastructt
providers also may undertake to provide clearingises.

We believe competition in the transaction procesgsind business services market is based on, antbegthings, the fees charged for the
services provided; quality and reliability of thengces; creditworthiness of the clearing houseety delivery of the services; reputation;
offering breadth; confidentiality of positions aimformation security protective measures; and tlee/ of providing customers with capital
efficiencies.

Competition in our Market Data Business

Technology companies, market data and informaterders and front-end software vendors also reptestual and potential competitors
because they have their own substantial marketdistiabution capabilities which could serve agaiative means for receiving open market
data feeds instead of connecting directly to osharge. Distributors and consumers of our mar&gt thay also use our market data as an
input into a product that competes against onauotraded or cleared products. Although we magikeclicense fees for such products, such
fees may not exceed the impact of any loss infigadolume of our comparable product.

Regulatory Matters

We are primarily subject to the jurisdiction of tfegulatory agencies in the United States and thieetd Kingdom. We also are subject to
varying levels of regulation by foreign jurisdiati® that permit our exchanges and other business#et our products and services to their
citizens.

Please also refer to the discussion below andeiriRiisk Factors” section beginning on page 14 fdescription of regulatory and legislative
risks and uncertainties.

Regulation in the United State



Our operation of futures exchanges and our U.@riclg house is subject to extensive regulatiorhiey@FTC which requires that our exchange
subsidiaries satisfy the requirements of certane goinciples relating to the operation and ovdrsaf our markets and our clearing house. The
CFTC carries out the regulation of the futures rateln accordance with the provisions
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of the Commodity Exchange Act as amended by, anotimgys, the Commodity Futures Modernization Act Bedld-Frank. The CFTC is
subject to reauthorization every five years, whghurrently in process. Following the enactmenbotid-Frank, the CFTC has moved from a
principles-based to a more prescriptive regulatgogroach over most aspects of our trading andiotpaperations.

During 2013, the CFTC, the SEC, the Departmentre&3ury, the Board of Governors of the Federal Resend other regulators continued to
engage in extensive rulemaking to implement Dodahkr Over the past three years, a number of regntaimplementing Dodd-Frank were
finalized, including rules relating to the implent&tion of mandatory clearing of certain over-thexster derivatives, swap reporting, operation
of a clearing house, anti-manipulation, large tradporting, product definitions, the definition af agricultural commodity and certain
provisions of the rules applicable to designateatre@t markets, swap execution facilities and sdeat@. repositories. We continue to believe
new regulations provide opportunities for our bessmwhich we continue to explore. However, portiaiSodd-Frank remain subject to
further rulemaking, and such final regulations dauaklude provisions that negatively impact ouribess.

Our U.S. clearing house has been designated agtensgally important financial market utility andgstemically important derivatives
clearing organization. These designations carri Wiem additional regulatory oversight of certdimor risk-management standards, clearing
and settlement activities by the Federal Resernr&kBad the CFTC.

Our U.S. swap data repository service and swaputixecfacility are also subject to the requiremesftthe Commaodity Exchange Act and the
regulations of the CFTC.

Regulation in the United Kingdom and the Europeamidn

In the United Kingdom, the government approved-arganization of its regulatory framework under grhthe Financial Services Authority
was dissolved and its oversight responsibilitieseseansitioned in 2013 primarily to the Bank ofgiand and the FCA. As a result, in the
United Kingdom our operations are subject to midtiggulators: the Bank of England; the FCA and BSKRIME Clearing (our U.S. clearing
house) will be subject to certain conditions ambréng obligations as a result of its recognitmnESMA. The European Union also is
undergoing similar change, establishing multiplpesuisory authorities for financial services, irgilug ESMA. Multiple directives and
regulations such as the amendments to MarketsamEial Instruments Directive (MiFID 1l) and chasge the Markets in Financial
Instruments Regulation (MiFIR); the Capital Reqmients Regulations IV and the Market Abuse Diregthase been proposed with provisic
similar to those contained in Dodd-Frank.

Key Areas of Focu:

We actively monitor and participate in the domeatid international rulemaking processes for ounstiy, including providing government
testimony, commenting on proposed rulemakings aludaging our regulators on potential impacts torttaeketplace.

Our key areas of focus in the regulatory environnaee:

» Regulations implementing the core principlesdesignated contract markets, including any chatm#s rules implementing the
competitive execution requirements of Core Prirecl Rules promulgated under this provision may requi&éo make modifications
to the manner in which certain of our contractdérand/or require that such products be de-listiéfdtares and résted as swaps aft
a specified compliance period.

e The adoption and implementation of position tiniiles, which could have a significant impact @m commodities business if
comparable trading venues in foreign jurisdictians not subject to equivalent limitations. In Now®mn2013, the CFTC re-proposed
its position limits rule for comment replacing thae that had been vacated by the U.S. DistrictrCou

* Rules respecting capital charges under Baselith respect to clearing members of central copateies. There is a risk that these
new standards may impose overly burdensome capgairements on our clearing members and customers.

* The criteria necessary to be deemed a qualifyingrakecounterparty (QCCP). A failure to be deemé&CCP by banking regulators
the U.S., E.U. or otherwise may result in our dlggmembers and customers being subject to mdrgsetit capital requirements thus
creating a disincentive to use our markets.

* The potential impact of MiFID Il and MiFIR on nde.U. clearing houses with customers based in EL

» The potential elimination of the 60/40 tax treatiefhcertain of our derivatives contracts, whichulbimpose a significant increase
tax rates applicable to certain market participaamsl could result in a decrease in their tradiityidy.
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* The implementation of a transaction tax or diserin the U.S. or E.U. which could discourageiingbns and individuals from using
our markets or products or encourage them to tiradaother less costly jurisdiction.

* The implementation of measures to further priotestomer funds at the futures commission mercleaet, and to restore confidence
in the derivatives markets.

* The potential for further regulation stemmingrir industry performance disruptions and residuatems around electronic trading
activity and, in particular, "high frequency tragit

e The implementation of legislation in the E.U patting how benchmark index prices are formeduiticlg new requirements for price
submitters, price aggregators and markets thatdistracts that reference index prices.

» Concerns that legislators will prohibit or résttiexclusive licenses for benchmark indexes, wiigght impact the profitability of
several of our most popular contracts.

e The implementation of rules regarding enhanapddity management standards for systemically irtgott derivatives clearing
organizations and any potential limitation on tise of U.S. Treasury securities as collateral. iSgamt limitations on the use of U.S.
Treasury securities as collateral could resulhareéased costs to us and our clearing firms.

Employees
As of December 31, 2013 , we had approximately@gt8ployees. We consider relations with our empmdeyte be good.
Senior Leadership Team and Executive Office

Set forth below is the company's Senior Leader$kgm, including those individuals designated exeeudfficers of the company, as of the
date of this filing.

Terrence A. Duffy, 55Mr. Duffy has served as our Executive Chairman Rresident since May 2012. Mr. Duffy previously sshas our
Executive Chairman from 2006 and has been a meaflmer board of directors since 1995. He also stasgPresident of TDA Trading, Inc.
from 1981 to 2002 and has been a member of our ExtBange since 1981. Mr. Duffy has been desigredeth executive officer.

Phupinder S. Gill, 53Mr. Gill has served as our Chief Executive Offieeid a member of our board of directors since May22@reviously,
he served as our President from 2007 to May 202l joined us in 1988 and since then has heldous positions of increasing
responsibility within the organization, includingeBident and Chief Operating Officer, and Manaddirgctor and President of CME Clearing
and GFX Corporation. Mr. Gill has been designatedraexecutive officer.

Kathleen M. Cronin, 50Ms. Cronin has served as our Senior Managing DireGeneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary sidga.2
Previously she served as Corporate Secretary atidgdGeneral Counsel from 2002 through 2003. Rdgoining us, Ms. Cronin was a
corporate attorney at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagtidom from 1989 through 1995 and from 1997 thro@§02. Ms. Cronin has been
designated as an executive officer.

Bryan T. Durkin, 53.Mr. Durkin has served as our Chief Operating Offiiace 2007. He also held the title of ManagingeBior, Products
and Services from 2010 to July 2012. Mr. Durkimgad us in connection with the CBOT merger and leeipusly held a variety of leadership
roles with CBOT from 1982 to 2007, most recentifEaecutive Vice President and Chief Operating @fficVir. Durkin also serves as our
representative on the board of Bursa Malaysia @éxes Berhad. Mr. Durkin has been designated axacutive officer.

Ali Hackett, 57.Ms. Hackett has served as Senior Managing DireGioent Development and Sales since February 2Rfeliously she servi
as Managing Director, Client Development and Ssilese joining the company in 2010. Prior to join@YIE Group, Ms. Hackett spent a
nearly 20-year career at Citigroup, where she mexsintly served as Managing Director, Co-Head ob&l Prime Finance.

Julie Holzrichter, 45.Ms. Holzrichter has served as Senior Managing Dare&lobal Operations since 2007. Ms. Holzriclrtggoined us in
2006 as our Managing Director, CME Globex Servaed Technology Integration. Ms. Holzrichter predlyuneld positions of increasing
responsibility in our organization from 1986 to 306 trading operations. Ms. Holzrichter has beesighated as an executive officer.

William Knottenbelt, 53Mr. Knottenbelt has served as Senior Managing Dare&urope, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) of CMEdBp
since February 2014. Previously, Mr. Knottenbeltved as Managing Director, EMEA since joining tleenpany in 2011. Prior to joining Ch
Group, Mr. Knottenbelt most recently served as @ldtead of Futures for the Royal Bank of ScotlaRB$) where he built out the global
reach and product offering of RBS futures.
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Kevin Kometer, 49Mr. Kometer has served as Senior Managing Diremalr Chief Information Officer since 2008. He praisly served as
Managing Director and Deputy Chief Information ©&ri from 2007 to 2008. Since joining the companyimecently in 1998, he has held
senior leadership positions in the Technology Davisincluding Managing Director, Trading ExecutiSgstems and Director, Advanced
Technology. Mr. Kometer was also with the compaoyrf 1994 to 1996. Mr. Kometer has been desigradesh executive officer.

Julien Le Noble, 41Mr. Le Noble has served as Senior Managing Direésia Pacific of CME Group since February 2014vRausly, Mr.
Le Noble served as Managing Director, Asia Padifitce joining the company in 2011. Before joininglE Group, Mr. Le Noble served as
CEO and Representative Director, Japan and Hekduifies, Asia Pacific for Newedge, where he leglfihm's Japanese business
development and sales efforts for its Tokyo-basdxbigliary.

James E. Parisi, 49Mr. Parisi has served as our Chief Financial Off&iace 2004. Mr. Parisi joined us in 1988 andneld positions of
increasing responsibility within the organizatiam;luding Managing Director & Treasurer and Dirgctelanning & Finance. Mr. Parisi has
been designated as an executive officer.

Hilda Harris Piell, 47.Ms. Piell has served as Senior Managing Directdr@hief Human Resources Officer since 2007. Presljoshe serve
as Managing Director and Senior Associate Genevah€el, as Director and Associate General Coumskha Associate Director and Assis
General Counsel since joining us in 2000. Ms. Piall been designated as an executive officer.

James V. Pieper, 4Mr. Pieper has served as our Managing DirectorGmidf Accounting Officer since 2010. Previously,.NRieper served
as Director and Controller since 2006 and as Assedirector and Assistant Controller from 2002006. Mr. Pieper has been designated as
an executive officer.

John W. Pietrowicz, 49Mr. Pietrowicz has served as our Senior Managingdr, Business Development and Corporate Finaimoe 2010.
Mr. Pietrowicz joined us in 2003 and since thenlmglgl various positions of increasing responsifilitcluding his most recent paosition of
Managing Director and Deputy Chief Financial Offiél@m 2009 to 2010 and Managing Director, Corpeanance and Treasury from 2006
to 2009.

Linda Rich, 50.Ms. Rich has served as our Senior Managing Dire@Gowernment Relations and Legislative Affairs sidqril 2012. Prior to
assuming her current role, Ms. Rich served as Magdgirector, Government Relations and Legislag\ffairs since joining us in 2010.
Before joining the company, Ms. Rich served as @eviice President, Government Relations for NY SEoBaxt. Her background also
includes serving as senior counsel to the U.S. EloifRepresentatives Committee on Financial Ses\acel as counsel to the U.S. House of
Representatives Committee on Commerce.

Derek Sammann, 45Mr. Sammann has served as our Senior Managing toe€inancial Products and Services since 200%rdeiously
served as our Global Head of Foreign Exchange Rtedince joining us in 2006. Prior to joining My, Sammann served as Managing
Director, Global Head of FX Options and StructuRedducts at Calyon Corporate and Investment Bahlondon from 1997 to 2006.

Kimberly S. Taylor, 52Ms. Taylor has served as our President, CME Clgagince 2004 and as Managing Director, Risk Managgnim the
Clearing House Division from 1998 to 2003. Ms. Tmyhas held a variety of positions in the cleatiogise, including Vice President and
Senior Director. She joined us in 1989. Ms. Taylas been designated as an executive officer.

Sean Tully, 50Mr. Tully has served as Senior Managing Directotetest Rates and OTC Products of CME Group siebeuary 2014.
Previously, he served as Managing Director, IntdRete and OTC Products since October 2013 andraglanaging Director, Interest
Products since joining us in 2011. Before joinihg tompany, Mr. Tully most recently served as Mamga@irector, Global Head of Fixed
Income Trading at WestLB in London.

Kendal Vroman, 42Mr. Vroman has served as our Senior Managing Dore€@ommodity Products & Services and OTC Solutisinse
October 2013. Previously he served as our Seniagragfiag Director, Commaodity and Information Produ&tServices since 2010 and as
Managing Director and Chief Corporate Developmeiffic€r from 2008 to 2010. Mr. Vroman joined us i@ and since then has held
positions of increasing responsibility, includingst recently as Managing Director, Corporate Dgwalent and Managing Director,
Information and Technology Services.

Scot E. Warren, 50Mr. Warren has served as our Senior Managing Dire@iquity Index Products and Index Services sR@H). Mr. Warrel
previously served as our Managing Director, EqRitgducts since joining us in 2007. Prior to that, Warren worked for Goldman Sachs as
its Vice President, Manager Trading and Businesslysis Team. Prior to Goldman Sachs, Mr. Warrenagad equity and option execution
and clearing businesses for ABN Amro in Chicagowaad a Senior Consultant for Arthur Andersen & foo financial services firms.

Julie Winkler, 39.Ms. Winkler has served as Senior Managing Diredasearch and Product Development of CME Groupedtebruary
2014. Previously, she served as Managing DireResgarch and Product Development since 2007.
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Robert Zagotta, 4SMr. Zagotta has served as Senior Managing DireBarducts and Services of CME Group since July 2Bti#r to joining
the company, Mr. Zagotta most recently served a&tiive Vice President, Business Strategy and Hiattor Project Leadership Associates
(PLA) from 2007 to July 2012, where he worked WittlE Group on a number of strategic consulting assignts. Before joining PLA, Mr.
Zagotta was CEO and Co-Founder of Fourth Floor Giting, which was acquired by PLA, and a Senior Bigar at PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Mr. Zagotta has been designated as an executiiceoff

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

CME Group has not historically tracked revenuegtagon geographic location. Beginning in Septergbad, we began tracking trading
volume based on the country of origin of the tratisa as disclosed to us by the customer. Pri@dptember 2011, we tracked trading volume
based on the time of the execution of the tradevemether it occurred during traditional U.S. tragilmours or through our international
telecommunication hubs.

In 2013 and 2012, we estimate that approximatedp 2Bd 21% of our electronic trading volume origathfrom outside of the United States.
The following table shows the percentage of owltobntract volume on our Globex electronic traditatfform generated during non-U.S.
hours and through our international hubs for tis¢ tlaree years.

2013 2012 2011
Trading during non-U.S. hours 18% 17% 16%
Trading through telecommunication hubs 15% 15% 8%

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our website ismww.cmegroup.com . Information made available on our website dogscoastitute part of this document. We make avéglain
our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Qubrteeports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forkhdhd amendments to those
reports as soon as reasonably practicable afteleetronically file or furnish such materials t@tS8EC. Our corporate governance materials,
including our Corporate Governance Principles, €weConflict of Interest Policy, Board of Directo€ode of Ethics, Categorical
Independence Standards, Employee Code of Condddharcharters for all the standing committeesusflimard, also may be found on our
website. Copies of these materials also are avaitatshareholders free of charge upon writtenesgito Shareholder Relations, Attention
Ms. Beth Hausoul, CME Group Inc., 20 South Wackev®& Chicago, lllinois 60606.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information containedhistAnnual Report on Form 10-K, you should cargfalbnsider the factors discussed below,
which are the risks we believe are material attime. These risks could materially and adverséfgcaour business, financial condition and
results of operations. These risks and uncertaimtie not the only ones facing us. Additional rigkd uncertainties not presently known to us
or that we currently believe to be immaterial mispadversely affect our business.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

Our business is subject to the impact of domestid &nternational market, economic and political cditions which are beyond our control
and which could significantly reduce our contracblumes and make our financial results more volatile

Our revenue is substantially dependent on the aonuolume in our markets. Our contract volumeiisddly affected by domestic and
international factors that are beyond our contraluding:

» economic, political and geopolitical market cormfit

» legislative and regulatory changes, including dinect or indirect restrictions on or increasedts associated with trading in our
markets;

» broad trends in the industry and financial marl

» changes in price levels, contract volumes andtiity in the derivatives markets and in undenlyiequity, foreign exchange, interest
rate and commodity markets;

« shifts in global or regional demand or supply imeoodities underlying our produc
e competition

» changes in government monetary policies, espedaliyral bank decisions related to quantitativéngg



« availability of capital to our market particigarand their appetite for risieking:
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» levels of assets under managernr
» volatile weather patterns, droughts, natural desastind other catastrophes;
» consolidation in our customer base and within adustry

Any one or more of these factors may contributestiuced activity in our markets. Historically, pai$ of heightened uncertainty have tended
to increase our trading volume due to increasedingdactivity and the increased need to manageshs associated with, or speculate on,
volatility in the U.S. equity markets, fluctuatiomsinterest rates and price changes in the foreiginange, commodity and other markets.
However, as evidenced by our past performancéemeériod after a material market disturbance etineaty persist extreme uncertainties whicl
may lead to decreased volume due to factors sucddased risk exposure, lower interest rates, abhtink asset purchase programs and lack
of available capital. The shifts in market tradpagterns we experienced as a result of the finhdisturbance of 2008 may or may not recur in
the future, and our business will be affected lyrieieconomic uncertainties which may result inrdased trading volume and a more difficult
business environment for us. Material decreas&sidting volume would have a material adverse effecbur financial condition and operating
results.

We operate in a heavily regulated environment th@poses significant costs and competitive burdensoor business.

We are primarily subject to the jurisdiction of tfegulatory agencies in the United States and thieetd Kingdom. We also are subject to
varying levels of regulation by foreign jurisdiati® that permit our exchanges to offer our prodantsservices to their citizens.

Due to the global financial crisis that began i980he United States and numerous other goverrsnave undertaken reviews of the existing
legal framework governing financial markets andéhaither passed new laws and regulations, or dreeiprocess of debating or enacting new
laws and regulations that will impact our busin&¥kile certain of these changes may have a positipact on our business, some of these
changes could adversely affect our business, imduareas of regulatory focus discussed under "ltesBusiness — Regulatory Matters"
beginning on page 10. Compliance with regulatioay nequire us and our customers to dedicate stgmififinancial and operational resources
that could result in some participants leaving miarkets or decreasing their trading activity, whiabuld negatively affect our profitability. V
have incurred and expect to continue to incur fiicamt additional costs to comply with the extemsiegulations that apply to our business. Tc
the extent the regulatory environment following timplementation of Dodd-Frank and other financébrm regulations is less beneficial for
us or our customers, our business, financial camdand operating results could be negatively &dfgc

If we fail to comply with applicable laws, rules @gulations, we may be subject to censure, ficesse-and-desist orders, suspension of our
business, removal of personnel or other sanctinokjding revocation of our designations as a awoitmarket and derivatives clearing
organization.

Some of our largest clearing firms have indicatdukir belief that clearing facilities should not bewned or controlled by exchanges a
should be operated as utilities and not for profithese clearing firms have sought, and may seekhia future, legislative or regulator
changes that would, if adopted, enable them to afternative clearing services for positions estaléd on our exchanges or to freely move
open positions among clearing houses in order tedaadvantage of our liquidity. Even if they are nsticcessful, these factors may cause
them to limit the use of our markets.

Our clearing houses seek to offer customers, irgdranies and clearing firms universal access iriora maximize the efficient use of capital,
exercise appropriate oversight of value at risk mwathtain operating leverage from clearing acgtiOur strategic business plan is to operate
an efficient and transparent vertically integrateehsaction execution, clearing and settlementigssi for our futures and options on futures
business. Some of our clearing firms have expregsediew that clearing firms should control thesgmance of clearing houses or that
clearing houses should be operated as utilitiégerahan as part of for-profit enterprises. Somthese firms, along with certain industry
associations, have sought, and may seek in thesfutgislative or regulatory changes to be adofitatiwould facilitate mechanisms or
policies that allow market participants to trangfesitions from an exchange-owned clearing housedearing house owned and controlled b
clearing firms. If these legislative or regulatatyanges are adopted, our revenues and profits bewdversely affected.

We face intense competition from other companiegluding some of our members. If we are not ablestaccessfully competeur business
financial condition and operating results will be aterially harmed.

The industry in which we operate is highly competitand we expect competition to continue to inignespecially in light of the
implementation of Dodd-Frank and other reformshef financial services industry. We believe portioh®odd-Frank and the corresponding
regulations with respect to mandatory clearing amnized trading provide opportunities for ouribass. However, other portions of Dodd-
Frank and the regulatory structure being impleneotuld negatively impact our business and ouitghid compete effectively. We encoun
competition in all aspects of our business, inalgdrom entities having substantially greater c@nd resources, offering a wide range of
products and services and in some cases operating
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under a different and possibly less stringent ratguy regime. We face competition from other fugjigecurities and securities option
exchanges; over-the-counter markets; clearing izgtions; consortia formed by our members and lardestry participants; swap execution
facilities; alternative trade execution facilitigschnology firms, including market data distrilnstand electronic trading system developers
others. Many of our competitors and potential cotibgs have greater financial, marketing, techn@aband personnel resources than we do.

Our competitors may:

* respond more quickly to competitive pressumesluiding responses based upon their corporate gamee structures, which may be
more flexible and efficient than our corporate gmamce structure;

» develop products that are preferred by our custs;

» develop risk transfer products that compete withpyaducts

» price their products and services more competitj

» develop and expand their network infrastructure serdice offerings more efficient
e utilize better, more usdriendly and more reliable technolo

» take greater advantage of acquisitions, allianoesogher opportunitie

» more effectively market, promote and sell theirducts and service

» better leverage existing relationships with oostrs and alliance partners or exploit better rezegl brand names to market and sell
their services; and

« exploit regulatory disparities between tradiinmegulated exchanges and alternative marketd#reefit from a reduced regulatory
burden and lower-cost business model.

If our products, markets and services are not cdithe our business, financial condition and op@results will be materially harmed. A
decline in our fees or loss of customers could loower revenues, which would adversely affect owfitability.

Please see "ltem 1 — Business — Competition" béggnon page 9 for additional information on the gatitive environment and its potential
impact on our business.

Our contract volume, and consequently our revenwasl profits, would be adversely affected if we areable to retain our current
customers or attract new customers.

The success of our business depends, in part, oabdity to maintain and increase our contraciwoé. To do so, we must maintain and
expand our product offerings, our customer baseoandrade execution and clearing facilities. Quecess also depends on our ability to offer
competitive prices and services in an increasipgilye-sensitive business. For example, in receatsyesome of our competitors have engagec
in aggressive pricing strategies, such as lowdtiegees that they charge for taking liquidity amcteasing liquidity payments or rebates. We
cannot provide assurances that we will be abl®mircue to expand our product lines, that we wélldble to retain our current customers or
attract new customers or that we will not be reeplito modify our pricing structure to compete difedy. Changes in our pricing structure
may result in a decrease in our profit margin. Weabsubstantial portion of our clearing and tractson fees to our clearing firms. The majo

of clearing and transaction fees received fromralgdirms represent charges for trades executddchared on behalf of their customers. One
firm represented 11% and one firm represented 108tiroclearing and transaction fees revenue fo32@hould a clearing firm withdraw, o
experience indicates that the customer portiohefirm's trading activity would likely transfer s&mother clearing firm of the exchange.
However, there is the possibility we would loseostipn of the customer business. Additionally, frime to time, certain customers may
represent a significant portion of the open inteiresur individual product lines or contractswié fail to maintain our contract volume; expand
our product offerings or execution facilities; osé a substantial number of our current custoroers subset of customers representing a
significant percentage of contract volume in aipakar product line; or are unable to attract nesstomers, our business and revenues will be
adversely affected. Furthermore, declines in cabtralume due to loss of customers may negativalyaict market liquidity, which could lead
to further loss of contract volume.

As a financial services provider, we are subjecstgnificant litigation risk and potential securiés law liability.

Many aspects of our business involve substantightion risks. While we generally are protectedoloy rules limiting liability for system
failures and certain forms of negligence and btusbay limits on private causes of actions in cashere we have not behaved in bad faith, we



could be exposed to substantial liability undeefadland state laws and court decisions, as wellas and regulations promulgated and/or
direct actions brought by the SEC and the CFTCs@&hisks include, among others, potential liabfiiym disputes over terms of a trade, the
claim that a system failure or delay caused mowetar
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losses to a customer, that we entered into an hoge¢d transaction, that we provided materiallgdaor misleading statements in connection
with a transaction or that we failed to effectivebrryout our regulatory oversight responsibilitiBgssatisfied customers frequently make
claims regarding quality of trade execution, imgdp settled trades, mismanagement or even fraathsigtheir service providers. We may
become subject to these claims as a result ofrésilar malfunctions of our systems and servicepnoeide. We could incur significant legal
expenses defending claims, even those without nierdtddition, an adverse resolution of any fuasesuit or claim against us could have a
material adverse effect on our business and ourtagpn.

Our role in the global marketplace places us at gter risk than other public companies for a cybettack and other cyber security risks.
Our networks and those of our third-party serviceopiders may be vulnerable to security risks, whicbuld result in wrongful use of our
information or cause interruptions in our operati®ithat cause us to lose customers and contract R@uand result in substantial liabilitie:
We also could be required to incur significant expse to protect our systems and/or investigate alhgged attack.

We regard the secure transmission of confidemfakrimation and the ability to continuously transaietl clear on our electronic trading
platforms as critical elements of our operationst @etworks and those of our third-party servicavjaters and our customers may be
vulnerable to unauthorized access, fraud, compirtigses, denial of service attacks, terrorismyvimé or encryption failures and other security
problems. Groups have targeted the financial sesviedustry and our role in the global marketplaleges us at greater risk than other public
companies for a cyber attack and other informasieeurity risks. In July 2013, we were the victimaafyber intrusion. Although we maintain
sophisticated systems, teams and processes tnpsaeh incidents, and took significant actionaddress the incident, we learned that certai
customer information was compromised. We incurpqubases of $16.0 million related to our respongéécevent. Any future alleged
incidents could result in substantial costs anliliig to us and diversions of our resources, aray wistract the attention of management from
the ongoing operation of our business.

Additionally, our role as a leading derivatives k®tplace and the operation of our CME Globex etattrtrading platform may place us at
greater risk for misappropriation of our intelleztproperty. For example, in 2012, a former empébogECME Group pled guilty to theft of our
trade secrets. Other persons who circumvent sgeudasures could wrongfully use our informatiortause interruptions or malfunctions in
our operations.

As part of our global information security programe employ resources to monitor and protect ouirenment and infrastructure against suct
cyber attacks and the potential misappropriatioausfintellectual property assets. However, thesasuares may prove insufficient depending
upon the attack or threat posed, which could reésidystem failures and delays, loss of customedsl@ver contract volume, and negatively
affect our competitive advantage and result in wuti®l costs and liabilities.

We may be at greater risk from terrorism than othesmpanies.

We may be more likely than other companies to bigesct target of, or an indirect casualty of, dt&by terrorists or terrorist organizations.
impossible to accurately predict the likelihoodrapact of any terrorist attack on the derivativeduistry generally or on our business. While
have undertaken significant measures to develoméss continuity plans and to establish backus sitethe event of an attack or a threat c
attack, these security measures and contingenaog phay be inadequate to prevent significant digsaptin our business, technology or acces
to the infrastructure necessary to maintain ouim@ss. Such attack may result in the closure otragting and clearing facilities or render our
backup data and recovery systems inoperable. Datoage facilities due to terrorist attacks maysignificantly in excess of any amount of
insurance received, or we may not be able to insgainst such damage at a reasonable price dr @ahalthreat of terrorist attacks may also
negatively affect our ability to attract and retaimployees. Any of these events could have a raatatverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

The success of our markets depends on our abilitgdmplete development of, successfully implemerd maintain the electronic trading
systems that have the functionality, performanceliability and speed required by our custome

The success of our business depends in large panroability to create interactive electronic netftaces, in a wide range of derivatives
products, that have the required functionality f@@nance, capacity, reliability and speed to atteaxd retain customers. A significant portion
of our overall volume is generated through eledtrérading on our CME Globex electronic platform.

We must continue to enhance our electronic traglatform to remain competitive. As a result, welwidntinue to be subject to risks, expense
and uncertainties encountered in the rapidly emglvharket for electronic transaction services. €tresks include our failure or inability to:

» provide reliable and cosfffective services to our customi

» develop, in a timely manner, the required fumadlity to support electronic trading in our kepgucts in a manner that is competitive
with the functionality supported by other electmniarkets;

* match fees of our competito

» attract independent software vendors to writatiend software that will effectively access ol@ctonic trading system and
automated order routing system;

» respond to technological developments or serviteriofys by competitors; a

» generate sufficient revenue to justify the sabsal capital investment we have made and wiltioore to make to enhance our
electronic trading platform.

If we do not successfully enhance our electroraditrg platform, or our current or potential custosngo not adopt it, our revenues and profits
will be adversely affected. Additionally, we relyp our customers' ability to have the necessary béfate functionality to support our new
products and our trading and clearing functionality the extent our customers are not preparedatak the resources or infrastructure, the
success of our new initiatives may be compromised.

In addition, if we are unable to develop our elegir trading systems to include other productsraadkets, or if our electronic trading systems
do not have the required functionality, performaruaacity, reliability and speed, we may not ble &b compete successfully in an
environment that is dominated by electronic trading

If we experience systems failures or capacity coasits, our ability to conduct our operations ancecute our business strategy could
materially harmed and we could be subjected to figant costs and liabilities.

We are heavily dependent on the capacity, relighalind security of the computer and communicatgystems and software supporting our
operations. We receive and/or process a largegoooti our trade orders through electronic meansh s through public and private
communications networks. Our systems, or thosaioftard-party providers, may fail or operate slgwdausing one or more of the following
to occur:

* unanticipated disruptions in service to our cust;

» slower response time

e delays in our customers' trade execu

+ failed settlement of trade

e incomplete or inaccurate accounting, recordingrocessing of trade

+ financial losse:

e security breache

» litigation or other customer clain



* loss of customers; a

e regulatory sanction

We cannot assure you that we will not experienctesys failures from power or telecommunicationkifaj acts of God, war or terrorism,
human error, natural disasters, fire, sabotageweme or software malfunctions or defects, compuiteises, acts of vandalism or similar
occurrences. If any of our systems do not openateguly or are disabled, including as a resultystam failure, employee or customer error or

misuse of our systems, we could suffer financia$)diability to customers, regulatory interventmmreputational damage that could affect
demand by current and potential users of our maHaat

18




Table of Contents

example, our co-location facility hosts a signific@ortion of our customers' infrastructure. While have undertaken measures to secure suc
facility and to implement disaster recovery measuifeve were to experience an outage at thatilmedt could have a significant impact on
revenues and reputation.

From time to time, we have experienced system £and failures that have resulted in some custolreng unable to connect to our
electronic trading platform, or that resulted ino@eous reporting, such as transactions that warauthorized by any customer or reporting of
filled orders as canceled. Such errors may resuUMVIE Group being liable or in our voluntary asstimp of financial liability. We cannot
assure you that if we experience system errorailurés in the future that they will not have a ematl adverse impact on our business. Any
such system failures that cause an interrupticaeimice or decrease our responsiveness could impaneputation, damage our brand name o
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and operating results.

Our status as a CFTC registrant generally reqtfir@sour trade execution and communications systemable to handle anticipated present
and future peak contract volume. Heavy use of ourputer systems during peak trading times or atgiof unusual market volatility could
cause our systems to operate slowly or even tddiaperiods of time. We constantly monitor systeads and performance, and regularly
implement system upgrades to handle estimateddasessin contract volume. However, we cannot asgwrehat our estimates of future
contract volume and order messaging traffic willseurate or that our systems will always be ablctommodate actual contract volume an
order messaging traffic without failure or degraalaof performance. Increased CME Globex contrattme and order messaging traffic may
result in connectivity problems or erroneous reptitat may affect users of the platform. Systemifaior degradation could lead our custor

to file formal complaints with industry regulatooyganizations, to file lawsuits against us or tasgedoing business with us, or could lead the
CFTC or other regulators to initiate inquiries oogeedings for failure to comply with applicablevtaand regulations.

We will need to continue to upgrade, expand anceame the capacity of our systems as our busimess @nd we execute our business
strategy. Our goal is to design our systems to lleameb times our peak historical transactions in lighest volume products. As volumes of
transactions grow, the ability of our systems tetrikis goal on an ongoing basis depends on olityatoi increase our system capacity on a
timely basis while maintaining system reliabilidthough many of our systems are designed to acontate additional volume and products
and services without redesign or replacement, vilenegd to continue to make significant investmeéntadditional hardware and software to
accommodate the increases in volume of transactiodorder transaction traffic and to provide pssagg services to third parties. If we
cannot increase the capacity and capabilities pbgstems to accommodate an increasing volumen$actions and to execute our business
strategy, our ability to maintain or expand ouribasses would be adversely affected.

We, as well as many of our customers, depend ordtpiarty suppliers and service providers for a nuertof services that are important. An
interruption or cessation of an important supply @ervice by any third party could have a materiaharse effect on our business, including
revenues derived from our customers' trading actyvi

We depend on a number of suppliers, such as bankiegying and settlement organizations, teleploomepanies, on-line service providers,
data processors, and software and hardware verfdoeements of our trading, clearing and othettams, as well as communications and
networking equipment, computer hardware and soévaad related support and maintenance.

Many of our customers rely on third parties, suslnalependent software vendors, to provide therh fsiint-end systems to access our CME
Globex platform and other back office systems lh@irttrade processing and risk management needte \Whse service providers have
undertaken to keep current with our enhancementshanges to our interfaces and functionality, exenot guarantee that they will continu
make the necessary monetary and time investmektsefo up with our changes.

To the extent any of our service providers or ttganizations that provide services to our custonmec®nnection with their trading activities
cease to provide these services in an efficierst-effective manner or fail to adequately exparadrtbervices to meet our needs and the need:
of our customers, we could experience decreasemambivolume, lower revenues and higher costs.

Our clearing house operations expose us to substdmredit risk of our third party clearing firms ad, consequently, a diminishment in
their financial resources could adversely affect.us

Our clearing house operations expose us to cowartep with differing risk profiles. We routinelyugrantee transactions submitted by our
clearing firms with counterparties in the finandraustry, including brokers and dealers, commeéflm@aks, investment banks, mutual and
hedge funds, and other institutional customersngiin the financial industry have experienced gigant uncertainty and negative conditions
as a result of the continued fallout from the ficiahcrisis of 2008. We could be adversely impadtgdhe financial distress or failure of one or
more of our clearing firms.

As part of our growth initiatives, we have expanded clearing services to swaps in addition to dad futures and options on futures
products. The process for setting margins and ksiatg other financial safeguards for swaps déffeom our historical practices. Although
believe that we have carefully analyzed the pro@@ssetting margins and establishing
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financial safeguards for swaps, there is no guasatitat our procedures will adequately protecttéaring house in the event of a clearing
member default during extreme market conditions.

While we have hired experienced management to egdlge operations of CME Clearing Europe estaldigh®011, as an organization we
have limited experience operating a clearing haugside of the United States.

A substantial part of our working capital may beisk if a clearing firm defaults on its obligat®ro the clearing house and its margin and
guaranty fund deposits are insufficient to meeplibgations. Although we have policies and proceduo help ensure that our clearing firms
can satisfy their obligations, these policies aratedures may not succeed in detecting problemsementing defaults. We also have in place
various measures intended to enable us to curdefiaylt and maintain liquidity. However, we canassure you that these measures will be
sufficient to protect market participants from dadét or that we will not be adversely affectedhie event of a significant default. In addition,
we have established a fund (currently up to $98anil to provide payments, up to certain maximunels, to qualified family farmers,
ranchers and other agricultural industry partictpavho use our products and who suffer losseseio slegregated account balances if their
clearing firm member becomes insolvent.

The required capital and posted collateral of ouearing firms may lose value given the volatility the market.

To become a clearing member, a firm must meeticemtmimum capital requirements and must depodlataral to meet performance bond
and guaranty fund requirements. We accept a vanietpllateral to satisfy these requirements, idoig cash, regulated money market mutual
funds, U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. Governmern&g securities, letters of credit, gold, equitied foreign sovereign debt, and subject ther
to established haircuts based on the type of esdhand maturity. There is no guarantee the @sbatvill maintain its value. To the extent a
clearing firm is not compliant with capital, marginguaranty fund requirements, it would be reqlii@promptly come into compliance by
adding capital or collateral, decreasing its prejamy trading activity and/or transferring custoraecounts to another clearing firm. These
actions could result in a decrease in trading #gtim our products.

Intellectual property rights licensed from third pty price reporting agencies form the basis for manf our products from which we deriv
a significant portion of our volume and revenue. Bent regulatory scrutiny into such benchmarks coutdve a negative impact on our
ability to offer such products.

We are significantly dependent on the contract wawf products which are based on intellectual @ryprights of indexes derived from third-
party price reporting agencies, including our benatk Eurodollar contract, which is based on LIBARB.comply with CFTC core principles,
we must be able to demonstrate that our producysnogbe readily subject to manipulation. Our itipto offer products based on these
indexes could have a negative impact on our coni@ame and revenues.

Our market data revenues may be reduced by decmrta®eenand, poor overall economic conditions or arsfggant change in how market
participants trade and use market dal

We sell our market data to individuals, tradingitngions and other organizations that use ourrimfition services to participate in our markets
and/or monitor general economic conditions. Exalgdiur index market data offerings, revenues frammoarket data and information servi
represented 11% and 12% of our total revenuesgltiie years ended December 31, 2013 and 201@eatbgely. A decrease in overall
contract volume may lead to a decreased demaralifanarket data. For example, in both 2013 and 2@ experienced a decrease in the
average number of market data devices due to thinced economic uncertainty, continued high uneymlent levels in the financial servic
sector and aggressive cost cutting initiativesuatamer firms and legacy incentive programs tietlading terminals. In 2013, we announced ¢
series of policy changes and price increases @feeover 2014 and 2015 that should result in ineeelamarket data and information services
revenue. However, we cannot guarantee that thegelsaor increased cost will not result in a redunctibthe total number of paid subscriptions
as users review their business needs for our gsvic

We may have difficulty executing our growth strategnd maintaining our growth effectively.

We continue to focus on strategic initiatives towgour business, including our efforts to servedher-theeounter market and to distribute ¢
products and services on a global basis. There guarantee that our efforts will be successfuhti®aed growth will require additional
investment in personnel, facilities, informatioghaology infrastructure and financial and managdregstems and controls and may place a
significant strain on our management and resoufe@sexample, if we encounter limited resourcesyvag be required to increase our
expenses to obtain the necessary resources, aefeng initiatives or not pursue certain opportigs. We may not be successful in
implementing all of the processes that are necgssaupport our growth organically or, as desatibelow, through acquisitions, other
investments or strategic alliances. Unless our graesults in an increase in our revenues thatopgrtionate to the increase in our costs
associated with our growth, our future profitalilitould be adversely affected, and we may havedarisignificant expenditures to address th
additional operational and control requirementa assult of our growth.
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There is no guarantee that our over-the-countertiatives will be successful.

Our goal is to provide a comprehensive multi-askets clearing solution to the marketplace for mmaxh operational ease and the capital
efficiency that comes with connecting to our clegrhouses. We offer clearing services for clearedd-the-counter derivatives, including
interest rate swaps, credit default swaps, foreigrthange and commodities. Our strategy also insleadgending our over-the-counter services
into other asset classes, as well as enhancinGMiE ClearPort functionality to support additionabgucts. While we believe the
implementation of Dodd-Frank creates new opporiemitor us to expand our over-the-counter offerilgs current regulatory environment for
trading and clearing these products remains urinelée cannot be certain that we will be able terape profitably under the new

legislation. For example, provisions within Doddafk include changes to the CFTC's core princiglpscifically Core Principle 9, which
could require us to make modifications to the maimevhich certain of our contracts trade and/@uiee that such products be de-listed as
futures and re-listed as swaps. Also, numeroudalagianges and provisions in Basel Ill may resultncleared, bilateral over-the-counter
derivatives being less expensive than cleared afras. In addition, a number of market particigaantd exchanges have developed competir
platforms and products, including new swap exeoutéeilities. We cannot be certain that we willdlge to compete effectively or that our
initiatives will be successful.

We intend to continue to explore acquisitions, othevestments and strategic alliances. We may netsoiccessful in identifying
opportunities or in integrating the acquired busisses. Any such transaction may not produce the hesswe anticipate, which could
adversely affect our business and our stock price.

We intend to continue to explore and pursue acips and other strategic opportunities to streegtbur business and grow our company.
may make acquisitions or investments or entershtategic partnerships, joint ventures and otHemales. The market for such transactions is
highly competitive, especially in light of the imasing consolidation in our industry. As a resu#é,may be unable to identify strategic
opportunities or we may be unable to negotiaténamice future transactions on terms favorable t@aghe extent the trend of consolidatior
our industry continues, we may encounter increagfidulties in identifying growth opportunities. ®/may finance future transactions by
issuing additional equity and/or debt. The issuafaedditional equity in connection with any futuransaction could be substantially dilutive
to our existing shareholders. The issuance of madit debt could increase our leverage substayti@iie process of integration also may
produce unforeseen regulatory and operating diffesiand expenditures and may divert the atteratfananagement from the ongoing
operation of our business. To the extent we enterjoint ventures and alliances, we may experidgiffieulties in the development and
expansion of the business of any newly formed westun the exercise of influence over the actsitbf any ventures in which we do not have
a controlling interest, as well as encounter paaénonflicts with our joint venture or alliancen@ers. We may not realize the anticipated
growth and other benefits from growth initiativee have made or will make in the future, which mayéan adverse impact on our financial
condition and operating results. We also may baired to take an impairment charge in our finanstatements relating to our acquisitions
and/or investments, which could negatively affaat stock price.

Expansion of our global operations involves spectdlallenges that we may not be able to meet, whiobld adversely affect our financie
results.

We plan to continue to expand our global operatior@duding through CME Clearing Europe, the laun€iCME Europe; our European trade
repository; directly placing order entry terminalgh customers outside the United States; and lgynggon distribution systems established by
our current and future strategic alliance partriédfs.face certain risks inherent in doing businassternational markets, particularly in the
regulated derivatives exchange business. Theseinislude:

e becoming subject to extensive regulations and aylet;
« difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opévas

e general economic and political conditions in ¢oeintries from which our markets are accessed;wmay have an adverse effect on
our volume from those countries; and

» potentially adverse tax consequen

We cannot assure you that we will be successfiarketing our products and services in internatiarerkets. We also may experience
difficulty in managing our international operatidnscause of, among other things, competitive cammditoverseas, management of foreign
exchange risk, established domestic markets, layjegaad cultural differences and economic or palitiastability. Any of these factors could
have a material adverse effect on the successraftminational operations and, consequently, arbosiness, financial condition and
operating results.
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Our compliance and risk management programs migtutibe effective and may result in outcomes that kcbadversely affect our
reputation, financial condition and operating restd.

In the normal course of our business, we discugtensawith our regulators raised during regulatexgminations, or we may otherwise bect
subject to their inquiry and oversight. The CFTG beoad enforcement powers to censure, fine, issase-and-desist orders, prohibit us from
engaging in some of our businesses or suspendokeeur designation as a contract market or thstration of any of our officers or
employees who violate applicable laws or regulaiddur ability to comply with applicable laws andes is largely dependent on our
establishment and maintenance of compliance, regimweporting systems, as well as our abilitytbaet and retain qualified compliance and
other risk management personnel. We face the fislgaificant intervention by regulatory authorgjencluding extensive examination and
surveillance activity. In the case of alleged nompliance with applicable laws or regulations, weld be subject to investigations and
judicial or administrative proceedings that mayuies substantial penalties or civil lawsuits, lunding by customers, for damages, which cc
be significant. Any of these outcomes may advera#ct our reputation, financial condition and ging results. In extreme cases, these
outcomes could adversely affect our ability to aeetcbur business. In 2013, the CFTC filed suit aglaNYMEX and two former employees
alleging disclosure of confidential customer infation in violation of the Commodity Exchange Acadgd on our initial review of the
complaint, we believe that we have strong factudl lagal defenses to the claim.

Our policies and procedures to identify, monitod amnage our risks may not be fully effective. Saheur risk management methods dep
upon evaluation of information regarding marketstomers or other matters that are publicly avilab otherwise accessible by us. That
information may not in all cases be accurate, ceteplup-to-date or properly evaluated. Managenmeaperational, financial, legal, regulatory
and strategic risk requires, among other thingkcigs and procedures to record properly and vexifgrge number of transactions and events.
We cannot assure you that our policies and proesduill always be effective or that we will always successful in monitoring or evaluating
the risks to which we are or may be exposed.

We could be harmed by misconduct or errors that difficult to detect and deter.

There have been a number of highly publicized casadving fraud or other misconduct by employeéfirancial services firms in recent
years. Misconduct by our employees and agentsydima employees of GFX Corporation, our wh-owned subsidiary that engages in
proprietary trading to generate liquidity, couldlude hiding unauthorized activities from us, impeoor unauthorized activities on behalf of
customers or improper use or unauthorized disacbosticonfidential information. Misconduct could gett us to financial losses or regulatory
sanctions and seriously harm our reputation. bisalways possible to deter misconduct, and theaartions we take to prevent and detect thi:
activity may not be effective in all cases. Our &gpes and agents also may commit errors that gubgect us to financial claims for
negligence, as well as regulatory actions, or teéswur voluntary assumption of financial liabjlit

We may not be able to protect our intellectual pesty rights, which may materially harm our business

We own the rights to a large number of trademas&syice marks, domain names and trade names ldriited States, Europe and other parts
of the world. We have registered many of our mogidrtant trademarks in the United States and athentries. We hold the rights to a
number of patents and have made a number of pgpplitations. Our patents cover match engine, traser interface, trading floor support,
market data, general technology and clearing htwrsgtionalities. We attempt to protect our intetlead property rights by relying on
trademarks, copyright, database rights, trade sgerstrictions on disclosure and other methoa$withstanding the precautions we take to
protect our intellectual property rights, it is pilde that third parties may copy or otherwise obéand use our proprietary technology without
authorization or otherwise infringe on our righEsr example, in 2012 a former employee of CME Grplegg guilty to theft of our trade
secrets. In addition, in the future, we may haveetp on litigation to enforce our intellectual perty rights, protect our trade secrets, deteri
the validity and scope of the proprietary rightotifers or defend against claims of infringemenitwalidity. Any such litigation, whether
successful or unsuccessful, could result in sulistasosts to us and diversions of our resourcéisereof which could adversely affect our
business.

Any infringement by us on patent rights of otherswd result in litigation and adversely affect owbility to continue to provide, or increas
the cost of providing, our products and electrorégecution services.

Patents of third parties may have an importantibgam our ability to offer certain of our produetsd services. Our competitors as well as
other companies and individuals may obtain, and beagxpected to obtain in the future, patentsedl&t the types of products and service:
offer or plan to offer. We cannot assure you thatare or will be aware of all patents containirajrak that may pose a risk of infringement by
our products and services. In addition, some patgplications in the United States are confidentrdll a patent is issued and, therefore, we
cannot evaluate the extent to which our productksamnvices may be covered or asserted to be cobgreldims contained in pending patent
applications. These claims of infringement areuraommon in our industry.
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In general, if one or more of our products or segiwere to infringe on patents held by othersmag be required to stop developing or
marketing the products or services, to obtain Besrto develop and market the services from thageh®lof the patents or to redesign the
products or services in such a way as to avoidhigiing on the patent claims. We cannot assessxieateto which we may be required in the
future to obtain licenses with respect to pateetd by others, whether such licenses would be alvigilor, if available, whether we would be
able to obtain such licenses on commercially reasienterms. If we were unable to obtain such liesng/e may not be able to redesign our
products or services to avoid infringement, whiolild materially adversely affect our business,ririal condition and operating results.

RISKS RELATING TO AN INVESTMENT IN OUR CLASS A COMM ON STOCK

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our finasatondition and operations and prevent us from filling our debt service obligations.
We might still be able to incur more debt, intengiig these risks.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately $#lidn of total indebtedness, of which $750.0lmil was paid down in February 2014,
and we had excess borrowing capacity for generglocate purposes under our existing facilitiespgraximately $1.8 billion .

Our indebtedness could have important consequeRoegxample, our indebtedness may:

* require us to dedicate a significant portioroof cash flow from operations to payments on olt,ddereby reducing the availability
of cash flows to fund capital expenditures, to paracquisitions or investments, to pay dividendsfan general corporate purposes;

» increase our vulnerability to general adverse encoo@onditions
» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in or challenges relating to our bissirsad industry; a
» place us at a competitive disadvantage againstessyleveraged competitc

The occurrence of any one of these events could hawaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition, results of operations,
prospects and ability to satisfy our debt servigkgations. In addition, the agreements governingautstanding indebtedness do not
significantly limit our ability to incur additionahdebtedness, which could increase the risks testabove to the extent that we incur
additional debt. Our U.S. exchanges and clearings@@lso are required to maintain capital as defiryethe CFTC equal to at least twelve
months of their applicable projected operating esgs.

Any reduction in our credit rating could increaséé cost of our funding from the capital market

Our long-term debt is currently rated investmeratdgr by two of the major rating agencies. Thesagaigencies regularly evaluate us. Their
ratings of our long-term debt are based on a numbfactors, including our financial strength adivas factors not entirely within our control,
such as conditions affecting the financial serviogsistry generally. In light of the difficulties the financial services industry and the finar
markets over the last few years, there can be suraisce that we will maintain our current ratingsthe past, we have experienced ratings
downgrades. Our failure to maintain our ratingsld@dversely affect the cost and other terms upbiclwve are able to obtain funding, and
increase our cost of capital. Additionally, if aatings are downgraded below investment grade @aechange of control, we are required to
make an offer to repurchase all of our fixed-raites at a price equal to 101% of the principal amoplus accrued and unpaid interest.

Our investment in BM&FBOVESPA subjects us to invesnt and currency risk.

We own an interest in BM&FBOVESPA representing appnately 5% of its outstanding shares, which héairavalue of $473.1 millioras of
December 31, 2013As an exchange, its ability to maintain or expasdontract volume and operate its businesshgesuto the same types
risks to which we are subject. Additionally, iteah is valued in Brazilian real, which subjectsagurrency risk. There is no guarantee that
investment in BM&FBOVESPA will be profitable.

Any impairment of our goodwill and other intangiblassets or investments may result in material, -cash writedowns and could have a
material adverse impact on our results of operatioand shareholders' equity.

In connection with our acquisitions and investmgintsluding our mergers with CBOT Holdings and NYMEoldings, we have recorded
goodwill and identifiable intangible assets. Weeassgoodwill and intangible assets for impairmerdybplying a fair value test looking at
historical performance, capital requirements armgjeated cash flows on an annual basis or more &nettyuif indicators of impairment arise. In
the past, we have recorded impairment chargesrinezion with some of our investments, including iowvestment in BM&FBOVESPA. We
may continue to experience future events that r@siinpairments. The risk of impairment losses rrayease to the extent our market
capitalization and earnings decline. An impairmafrthe value of our existing goodwill and intangilalssets could have a significant negative
impact on our future operating results and coulktran adverse impact on our ability to satisfyfthancial ratios or other covenants under oul
existing or future debt agreements.
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Our quarterly operating results fluctuate due toasonality. As a result, you will not be able toyeain our operating results in any particule
guarter as an indication of our future performance.

We have historically experienced relatively highentract volume during the first and second quarded sequentially lower contract volume
in the third and fourth quarters. As a result @ geasonality, you will not be able to rely on operating results in any particular period as an
indication of our future performance. If we failtmeet securities analysts' expectations regardin@erating results, the price of our Class A
common stock could decline substantially.

Our average rate per contract is subject to fluctican due to a number of factors. As a result, youlwot be able to rely on our average rate
per contract in any particular period as an indidan of our future average rate per contrac

Our average rate per contract, which impacts oaeraing results, is subject to fluctuation duettits in the mix of products traded, the trac
venue and the mix of customers (whether the custoateives member or non-member fees or particsgatene of our various incentive
programs) and the impact of our tiered pricingatite. For example, we earn a higher rate per aontor trades executed electronically than
for trades executed on the trading floor. In additiour members and participants in our variousntige programs generally are charged lo
fees than our non-member customers. Variation éh ehthese factors is difficult to predict andMi&ve an impact on our average rate per
contract in the particular period. Because of thistuation, you may not be able to rely on ourrage rate per contract in any particular perioc
as an indication of our future average rate petraoh If we fail to meet securities analysts' estpions regarding our operating results, the
price of our Class A common stock could declinessattially.

Our cost structure is largely fixed. If our revensealecline and we are unable to reduce our costs, mofitability will be adversely affected.

Our cost structure is largely fixed. We base ot structure on historical and expected levelsemfiand for our products and services. If
demand for our products and services and our reguktvenues decline, we may not be able to adustost structure on a timely basis. In
that event, our profitability would be adverselfeated.

Seventeen of our board members own trading rightsace officers or directors of firms that own tradg rights on our exchanges. A
members, these individuals may have interests thiffer from or conflict with those of shareholdensho are not also members. Our
dependence on the trading and clearing activitifsoar members, combined with their rights to elalitectors, may enable them to exert
substantial influence over the operation of our bnsss.

Seventeen of our directors own or are officersimatbors of firms that own trading rights on ouchkanges. We are dependent on the revenue
from the trading and clearing activities of our niars. In 2013, 80% of our contract volume waswveetrifrom our members. This dependence
may give them substantial influence over how weratgeour business.

Many of our members and clearing firms derive astaufttial portion of their income from their tradiagclearing activities on or through our
exchanges. In addition, trading rights on our ergea have substantial independent value. The anodimtome that members derive from
their trading, brokering and clearing activitieslahe value of their trading rights are, in padgpéendent on the fees they are charged to trade,
broker, clear and access our markets, and the ankbstructure of our markets. As a result, memimeng not have the same economic interest
as holders of our Class A common stock. In addjttam members may have differing interests amorg#elves depending on the roles they
serve in our markets, their methods of trading thedproducts they trade. Consequently, membersathagcate that we enhance and protect
their clearing and trading opportunities and thie@af their trading privileges over their invesm@é our Class A common stock, if any.

Our members have been granted special rights, whichtect their trading privileges, require that weaintain open outcry trading until
volumes are not significant and, in the case of olitass B shareholders, provide them with speciahttbrepresentation.

Under the terms of the organizational documentauofexchanges, our members have certain rightgetae primarily to trading right
protections, certain trading fee protections antha® membership benefit protections. Additionattyr Class B shareholders, who are menr
of our CME exchange, also are entitled to electigigctors to our board even if their Class A stawership interest is very small or non-
existent. In connection with these rights, ourigbtb take certain actions that we may deem tmhbe best interests of the company and its
shareholders, including actions relating to therafi@n of our open outcry trading facilities andtaa pricing decisions, may be limited by the
rights of our members.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our global headquarters are located in ChicagaplB, at 20 South Wacker Drive. The following idescription of our key locations and
facilities. In November 2013, we sold the NYMEX liimg located at One North End and entered inaaé-back arrangement. In January
2014, we sold our interests in the building we aaglin connection with the acquisition of KCBT.

Approximate Size
Location Primary Use Owned/Lease(dLease Expiration (in square feet)®
20 South Wacker Drive Chicago, |Global headquarters and offic
lllinois space Leased 2022® 490,00(
141 West Jackson Chicago trading floor and office
Chicago, lllinois space Leased 2087 150,00(
333 S. LaSalle Chicago trading floor and offig
Chicago, lllinois space Owned N/A 300,00(
550 West Washington
Chicago, lllinois Office space Leased 2023 250,00(
One North End New York trading floor, office
New York, New York space and business continuityLeased 2028® 450,00(
One New Change London Office space Leased 2026 40,00(
Annex Data Center
Chicagoland area Business continuity Leased 2019 100,00(
Remote Data Center
Chicagoland area Business continuity Leased 2017 50,00(
Data Center 3 Business continuity and co-
Chicagoland area location Owned N/A 430,00(
Q) Size represents the amount of space leased or dwnesl unless otherwise not
(2 The initial lease expires in 2022 with two conse@ubptions to extend the term for seven and temsjeespectivel
) The initial lease expires in 2027 and containsar®ito extend the term and expand the pren
4 The initial lease expires in 2028 and contaipsons to extend the term and expand the premlis&916 and 2019, the premises will

be reduced to 240,000 and 225,000 square feetatagly.

We also lease other office space around the waiddhave also partnered with major global teleconinations carriers in connection with our
telecommunications hubs whereby we place data etbithin the carriers’ existing secured data@entWe believe our facilities are
adequate for our current operations and that aufditispace can be obtained if needed.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See “Legal and Regulatory Matters” in Note 13. Guyencies to the Consolidated Financial Statemsggénning on page 79 for CME
Group’s legal proceedings disclosure which is ipooated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Class A Common Stock

Our Class A common stock is currently listed on NDX®) under the ticker symbol “CMEAs of February 12, 2014, there were approxime
2,970 holders of record of our Class A common stock

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgprices per share of our Class A common stock qumarterly basis, as reported on
NASDAQ.

2013 High Low 2012 High Low

First Quarter $ 63.1¢ $ 51.3¢ First Quarter $ 50.7: $ 45.2(
Second Quarter 77.2¢ 58.5: Second Quarter 58.2¢ 50.7(C
Third Quarter 77.61 70.47 Third Quarter 59.3¢ 49.8:
Fourth Quarter 84.6¢ 72.0¢  Fourth Quarter 57.8¢ 50.12

Class B Common Stock

Our Class B common stock is not listed on a natiseeurities exchange or traded in an organized-theecounter market. Each class of our
Class B common stock is associated with a memhenstsd specific division of our CME exchange. CMElkes provide exchange members
with trading rights and the ability to use or le#fsese trading rights. Each share of our ClassrBneon stock can be transferred only in
connection with the transfer of the associatedigadghts.

Class B shares and the associated trading rightsarght and sold or leased through our sharehodttions and membership services
department. Although our Class B shareholders bpeeial voting rights, because our Class B shares the same equitable interest in our
earnings and the same dividend payments as ous Blakares, we expect that the market price ofddass B common stock, if reported
separately from the associated trading rights, dbel determined by the value of our Class A comstook. As of February 12, 2014, there
were approximately 1,650 holders of record of olas€ B common stock.

Dividends

The following table sets forth the dividends wedpain our Class A and Class B common stock in tbietleo years:

Record Date Dividend per Share Record Date Dividend per Share
March 8, 2013 $ 0.4t  March 9, 2012 $ 0.4t
June 10, 2013 0.4t March 9, 2012 0.6C
September 10, 2013 0.4t June 8, 2012 0.4t
December 10, 2013 0.4t September 10, 2012 0.4t
December 27, 2013 2.6C December 10, 2012 0.4t

December 17, 2012 1.3C

We intend to continue to pay a regular quartenlyddind to our shareholders according to our andivédend policy, which remains at
approximately 50% of the prior year's cash earnifige decision to declare a dividend, however, ieswaithin the discretion of our board of
directors and may be affected by various facteaduding our future earnings, financial conditioapital requirements, levels of indebtedness
and other considerations our board of directorsmeelevant. On February 5, 201#he board of directors declared a regular quigrtividenc
of $0.47 per share. The dividend will be payabléMamch 25, 2014 , to shareholders of record on Mas 2014 . Assuming no changes in the
number of shares outstanding, the total first quatividend payment will be approximately $156.9liom . The board of directors also
declared an additional, annual variable dividen@i260 per share on December 11, 2013 paid on dahda2014 to the shareholders of rec
on December 27, 2013. In general, the amount otimeial variable dividend will be determined atéhne of each year, and the level will
increase or decrease from year to year based aatoygeresults, potential merger and acquisitiaivag, and other forms of capital return
including regular dividends and share buybacksdpittie prior year. The annual variable dividendtesd to 2012 operations was accelerate
the fourth quarter of 2012 due to uncertainty sumcbng dividend income tax treatment beginningGa2

26






Table of Contents

The indentures governing our fixed rate notes,3@4-day clearing house credit facility for $7.0ibih and our $1.8 billion multi-currency
revolving senior credit facility, do not containegjific covenants that restrict the ability to payidends. These documents, however, do cot
other customary financial and operating covendrdstlace restrictions on the operations of thepamy, which could indirectly affect the
ability to pay dividends.

For example, under our senior credit facility, we gequired to remain in compliance with a consabd net worth test, defined as our
consolidated shareholders’ equity as of Septembe2@®12 after giving effect to actual share repasels made and special dividends paid
(including annual variable dividends), but onlytoghe amount of such repurchases and dividendiéchuannounced and made or paid after
September 30, 2012 (and in no event greater thantHon in the aggregate for such repurchasesdividends during the term of the
agreement), multiplied by 0.65. In addition, ou#3tay clearing house credit facility contains auiegment that CME remain in compliance
with a consolidated tangible net worth test, definas consolidated shareholder’s equity less intdagissets (as defined in the agreement), of
not less than $800.0 million.

CME Group, as a holding company, has no operatbits own. Instead, it relies on dividends dedba@d paid to it by its subsidiaries,
including CME, in order to provide a portion of thmds which it uses to pay dividends to its shal@drs.

CME Group and its subsidiaries are also requirezbtoply with restrictions contained in the genelporation laws of their state of
incorporation which could also limit its (or theability to declare and pay dividends.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph and table compares the cumuddiiveyear total return provided shareholders on oursCfasommon stock relative to t
cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 index and@istomized peer group. The peer group includ®EHoldings, Inc.,
IntercontinentalExchange Group, Inc. and The Nasafsik Group Inc. In November 2013, IntercontinentatBange, Inc. and NYSE Euron
merged to form IntercontinentalExchange Group, Artinvestment of $100 (with reinvestment of allidends) is assumed to have been mac
in our Class A common stock, in the peer groupthrdS&P 500 index on December 31, 2008 and itsivelperformance is tracked through
December 31, 2013.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among CME Group Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and a Peer
Group

$250 -

$200 -

$150

&

$100

$50 -

$() | | | | |
12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13

=CME Group Inc. =S&P 500 ~Peer Group

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
CME Group Inc. $ 164.2¢ $ 159.8( $ 123.5¢ $ 137.5¢ § 225.5¢
S&P 500 126.4¢ 145.5: 148.5¢ 172.3. 228.1¢
Peer Group 110.8¢ 122.6¢ 127.4: 133.7¢ 235.9:

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
During the past three years there have not beeniamggistered sale of equity securities.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securiti¢

(c) Total Number of (d) Maximum Number (or
Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar Value)
Purchased as of Shares (or Units) that May Yet
(a) Total Number (b) Average Price Part of Publicly Be Purchased Under
of Shares (or Units)  Paid Per Share (or Announced the Plans or Programs (in
Period Purchased® Unit) Plans or Programs millions)
October 1 to October 31 90 $ 74.8( — 3 =
November 1 to November 30 — — — —
December 1 to December 31 12,93¢ 81.51 = —
Total 13,02¢ —
Q) Shares purchased consist of an aggregate, @2 3hares of Class A common stock surrendersdtisfy employee tax obligations
upon the vesting of restricted stock.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On March 18, 2010, the Board of Trade of the Cft€bicago, Inc. (CBOT) acquired a 90% ownershigiiest in CME Group Index Services
LLC (Index Services), a business venture with Dowe$ & Company (Dow Jones). In June 2012, the cagnpantributed certain Dow Jones
Index assets and liabilities (DJI asset group) ahmelndex Services to S&P/Dow Jones Indices LLERSJI), a new business venture with
The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. (McGraw) and acqdiee24.4% interest in S&P/DJI. As part of the temt®n with McGraw, the company
also sold Credit Market Analysis Ltd. to McGraw. OB acquired The Board of Trade of Kansas City, blisg Inc. (KCBT), on November
30, 2012. In April 2013, the company acquired #maining 10% non-controlling interest in Index Segs. As a result of the purchase of the
non-controlling interest, the company's interess&P/DJI increased to 27%.

The following data includes the financial result<CA through June 30, 2012 and the financial ressaf KCBT beginning November 30,
2012. Assets and liabilities contributed or solghad of the transaction with McGraw are excludenht the following data beginning on June
30, 2012, while the financial results of the compai24.4% interest in S&P/DJI are included in tbkofving data beginning on June 30, 2012.
The financial results of the company's increasedayship interest in S&P/DJI to 27% interest arduded as of April 2013.

Year Ended or At December 31

(in millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Income Statement Data:
Total revenues $ 2,936.0 $ 2914¢ $ 3,280t $ 3,003 $ 2,612.¢
Operating income 1,637.( 1,692.( 2,021.: 1,831.: 1,589.:
Non-operating income (expense) (36.0 1.4 (84.€) (109.9) (151.¢
Income before income taxes 1,601.( 1,693.¢ 1,936. 1,721.¢ 1,437t
Net income attributable to CME Group 976.¢ 896.: 1,812.: 951.¢ 825.¢
Earnings per common share attributabl:
CME Group:
Basic $ 294 % 271 % 54t  $ 287 $ 2.4¢
Diluted 2.92 2.7C 5.4% 2.8¢ 2.4¢
Cash dividends per share 4.4C 3.7C 1.1z 0.92 0.92
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 542774 $ 38,863.. $ 40,758." % 35,046.. $ 35,651.
Short-term debt 749.¢ 749.% — 420.k 299.¢
Long-term debt 2,107.: 2,106.¢ 2,106.¢ 2,104.¢ 2,014.°
CME Group Shareholders’ equity 21,154.¢ 21,419.: 21,552.( 20,060.: 19,301.(
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The following table presents key statistical infation on the volume of contracts traded, expregseaund turn trades, and notional value of
contracts traded. The 2013 volume data includestkeage daily volume for KCBT products beginniaguary 1, 2013. All amounts exclude
our interest rate swaps, credit default swaps, @¥Waring Europe and TRAKRS contracts.

Year Ended or At December 31
(in thousands, except notional value) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Average Daily Volume:
Product Lines:

Interest rate 5,90: 4,83¢ 6,03( 5,44¢ 4,26(
Equity 2,64z 2,56( 3,23¢ 2,907 2,91¢
Foreign exchange 88¢€ 84t 922 91¢ 624
Agricultural commodity®) 1,05: 1,14( 1,087 914 741
Energy 1,67¢ 1,69: 1,77¢ 1,662 1,49:
Metal 38¢ 352 387 31€ 22t
Total Average Daily Volume 12,54¢ 11,42 13,43¢ 12,167 10,25¢
Method of Trade:
Electronic 10,82¢ 9,73¢ 11,35( 10,12( 8,29(
Open outcry 1,04( 1,04t 1,39¢ 1,402 1,31(
Privately negotiate 68C 63¢ 691 64E 65¢
Total Average Daily Volume 12,54¢ 11,42 13,43¢ 12,16} 10,25¢
Other Data:
Total Notional Value (in trillions) 92t 80¢ 1,06¢ 994 813
Total Contract Volume (round turn trades) 3,161,47 2,890,03 3,386,71 3,078,14 2,584,89
Open Interest at Year End (contracts) 83,72¢ 69,89 78,31¢ 84,87: 78,10z

(1) The agricultural commaodity product line does imalude the agricultural commodity contract vokifior KCBT in 2012. The average daily
volume for KCBT's agricultural commodity contragtas 16,100 during December 2012.

(2) Privately negotiated venue average daily volimeides both traditional block trades as welivlst was historically categorized as CME
ClearPort.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations is organizefbbews:

» Executive Summary: Includes an overview of our business; currenheaaic, competitive and regulatory trends relevartur
business; our current business strategy; and @mapy sources of operating and non-operating regemnd expenses.

» Critical Accounting Policies: Provides an explanation of accounting policiescivimay have a significant impact on our financial
results and the estimates, assumptions and riskgiased with those policies.

* Recent Accounting Pronouncementsincludes an evaluation of recent accounting puoicements and the potential impact of their
future adoption on our financial results.

* Results of Operations Includes an analysis of our 2013, 2012 and Zbikhcial results and a discussion of any knowméeyer
trends which are likely to impact future results.

« Liquidity and Capital Resources: Includes a discussion of our future cash requirs) capital resources, significant planned
expenditures and financing arrangements.

In March 2010, the Board of Trade of the City ofic@go, Inc. (CBOT) acquired a 90% ownership inteie €ME Group Index Services LLC
(Index Services), a business venture with Dow J&n€smpany (Dow Jones). The discussion and anatiaisfollow includes the financial
results of Index Services beginning March 19, 20a®pril 2013, CBOT purchased the remaining 10%-gontrolling interest in Index
Services.

In June 2012, CBOT contributed certain assets iabidities (DJI asset group) owned by Index Sersite S&P/Dow Jones Indices LLC
(S&P/DJI), a new business venture with The McGHil-Companies Inc. (McGraw). In addition, Creditavket Analysis Ltd. (CMA) was sa
to McGraw as part of this transaction. The disarssind analysis that follows excludes the assetdialnilities disposed as part of this
transaction with McGraw beginning June 30, 2012.

In November 2012, CBOT acquired The Board of Trafd€ansas City, Missouri, Inc. (KCBT), includingsitvholly-owned clearing house,
Kansas City Board of Trade Clearing Corporation BRCCC) and its 51% controlling interest in Boardlohde Investment Company (BOTI!
The discussion and analysis that follows incluthesfinancial results of KCBT beginning November 3012.

References in this discussion and analysis to ‘avef “our” are to CME Group Inc. (CME Group) anddtmsolidated subsidiaries,
collectively. References to “exchange” are to ChaMercantile Exchange Inc. (CME), CBOT and New R'btercantile Exchange, Inc.
(NYMEX), Commodity Exchange, Inc. (COMEX), colleatly, unless otherwise noted.

OVERVIEW

Business Overview

CME Group, a Delaware stock corporation, is thelimg company for CME, CBOT, NYMEX and their respeetsubsidiaries as well as CME
Clearing Europe Limited (CMECE). The holding comypatructure is designed to provide strategic aretatonal flexibility. CME Group's
Class A common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GloBealect Market (NASDAQ) under the ticker symbol “ENM

Our exchange consists of designated contract nwafieethe trading of futures and options on futwrestracts. We also clear futures, options
on futures and over-the-counter contracts throughwo clearing organizations: CME Clearing, whisha division of CME, and CMECE.
Futures contracts, options on futures contractsoamd-the-counter contracts provide investors wéhicles for protecting against, and
potentially profiting from, price changes in finamdnstruments and physical commodities.

We are a global exchange with customer accessadaiirtually all over the world. Our customersisist of professional traders, financial
institutions, individual and institutional invesspmajor corporations, manufacturers, producersgavdrnments. Customers include both
members of the exchange and non-members.

We offer our customers the opportunity to tradeifes contracts and options on futures contracts mge of products including those based
on interest rates, equities, foreign exchangecafjaral commodities, energy and metals. We alearabver-the-counter contracts on a range c
products including those based on interest ratesjtadefault, foreign exchange, agricultural condities, energy and metals.

Our products provide a means for hedging, speagjatd allocating assets. We identify new prodbgtmonitoring economic trends and their
impact on the risk management and speculative m&fenlsr existing and prospective customers.
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Most of our products are available for trading tigb our electronic trading platform and our opetcoutrading floors. These execution
facilities offer our customers immediate trade exien and price transparency. In addition, tradeslze executed through privately negotiatec
transactions that are cleared and settled througiME and CMECE clearing houses.

Our clearing houses clear, settle and guaranteesfiand options contract traded through our exgihan addition to cleared over-the-counter
products. Our clearing houses performance guarémeeeimportant function of our business. Becafdlis guarantee, our customers do not
need to evaluate the credit of each potential @patty or limit themselves to a selected set ahterparties. This flexibility increases the
potential liquidity available for each trade. Additally, the substitution of our clearing housestescounterparty to every transaction allows
our customers to establish a position with oneypamt offset the position with another party. Ttositract offsetting process provides our
customers with flexibility in establishing and asljing positions and provides for collateral and giréng efficiencies.

Business Trends

Economic Environment.Our customers continue to use our markets as antefé and transparent means to manage risk antithede
investment needs despite recent economic uncertaid volatility. In recent years, trading activityour centralized markets has fluctuated
due to the ongoing uncertainty in the financial ke#s caused by the United States and Europeart cresgis, fluctuations in the availability of
credit, variations in the amount of assets underagament as well as the Federal Reserve Bank'sycewlt zero interest rate policy and
guantitative easing. We continue to maintain highliy and diverse products as well as variousriigaand market data services which
support our customers in any economic environment.

Competitive Environment. Our industry is competitive and we continue to emter competition in all aspects of our business.akpect
competition to continue to intensify, especiallylight of recent regulatory reforms in the finand@arvices industry. Competition is influenced
by liquidity and transparency of the markets, teantion costs, breadth of product offerings inclgdijuality of new product development as
well as efficient and innovative technology andmectivity. We believe we are very well situatedhwigspect to these factors. We now face
competition from other futures, securities and séies option exchanges; over-theunter markets; clearing organizations; consdotised by
our members and large market participants; swaputixa facilities; alternative trade execution faigs; technology firms, including market
data distributors and electronic trading systenmetigpers, and others. As markets continue to eveleewill continue to adapt our trading
technology and clearing services to meet the nekedar customers.

Regulatory Environment. Exchange-traded derivatives have historically baérject to extensive regulation. As a result ofvtieespread
difficulties across the economy over recent yeaaspus domestic and foreign governments have tiakkem reviews of the existing legal
framework governing financial markets and haveegifrassed new laws and regulations or are in theeps of enacting new laws and
regulations that will apply to our business. Comptie with regulations may require us and our custero dedicate significant financial and
operational resources which could adversely affectprofitability.

Our futures exchanges and our U.S. clearing hoteseubject to extensive regulation by the Commollitiures Trading Commission (CFTC),
which carries out the regulation of the futureskets in accordance with the provisions of the ComlitycdExchange Act, the Commodity
Futures Modernization Act and the Dodd-Frank W#ie& Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-kra@ver the last three years, a
number of regulations to implement Dodd-Frank waralized. While we believe that the new regulasiavill provide opportunities for our
business, the new regulations remain subject tdgiadal rulemaking by various regulators. In 2018 CFTC designated our U.S. clearing
house as a systemically important derivatives tigasrganization, which imposes various new procaldand substantive requirements. We
have incurred and expect to continue to incur §iicamt additional costs to comply with the provissoof Dodd-Frank and any new regulations.

As a global company with operations and locatiowsiiad the world, we are also subject to laws agdlegions in foreign locations where we
do business. The financial services industry inolgarhas recently undergone regulatory reform amedaganization of its regulatory
framework. Our European operations are now sulbjeseveral regulators, including the Bank of Endlahe Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) and the European Securities Market Authgiig8MA). We have incurred and expect to continumdar significant additional costs to
comply with the new regulations in Europe.

Business Strategy

Our strategy focuses on leveraging our benchmarttymts, enhancing our customer relations, expamlingustomer base, advancing our
clearing and trading technologies, and derivingefiesshifrom our integrated clearing houses as webar scalable infrastructure. We focus
specifically on opportunities created by increaseaket awareness and acceptance of derivativegased price volatility, technological
advances and the increasing need for counterpaktynitigation and clearing services. This stratatigws us to continue to develop into a
more broadly diversified financial exchange that
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provides trading and clearing solutions acrossdewange of products and asset classes. We bdfiaiyere can build on our competitive
strengths by executing on the following initiatives

Continue to enhance our customer relationsltavalis to further cross-sell our products, expandhe strength of our existing
benchmark products, launch new products and dempeminterest in our core futures offerings;

Globalize our company and business by expandinglamisifying our customer base worldwide and offestomers around the wo
the most broadly diversified portfolio of benchmanoducts, increasing our presence in major intenal financial centers as well as
partnering with leading exchanges around the wiorlthake their products available on or through@ME Globex electronic trading
platform;

Expand our existing customer base and enhancproducts and services offerings to meet thelr management needs by targeting
cross asset sales, driving international salegyandrating new client participation across the djorl

Extend our capabilities and business in the-tivercounter markets by focusing on new custombéparding for swaps clearing
services, expanding our over-the-counter produetiogs and working with the buy- and sell-sidesneet their needs for real-time
clearing, risk management and data reporting akehparticipants move from a compliance phase topimization phase; and

Establish ourselves as the leading exchange aoynprovider of information products and index ggg and enhance our intellectual
property portfolio. Our business venture with Mc@naell-positions us to serve global institutionabaretail customers and allows us
to continue to be innovative with product developtrend co-branding across asset classes.

Revenues

Clearing and transaction feesA majority of our revenue is derived from cleariagd transaction fees, which include electronicitrgdees,
surcharges for privately-negotiated transactiortsaher volume-related charges for exchange-tradedover-the counter contracts. Because
clearing and transaction fees are assessed onrcapkeact or notional value basis, revenues anfitability fluctuate with changes in contract
volume. In addition to the business trends notelieeaour contract volume, and consequently ouereies, tend to increase during periods of
economic and geopolitical uncertainty as our custsseek to manage their exposure to, or speautathie market volatility resulting from
uncertainty.

While volume has the most significant impact on dearing and transaction fees revenue, thereoarecther factors that also influence this
source of revenues:

rate structure
product mix
venue, an

the percentage of trades executed by customessane members compared with noember customel

Rate structure. Customers benefit from volume discounts and liroitdees as part of our effort to increase liquiditgertain products. We
offer various incentive programs to promote tradangl clearing in various products and geograpluations. We may periodically change fi
volume discounts, limits on fees, and member distsyyperhaps significantly, based on our reviewpsrations and the business environment

Product mix. We offer exchange-traded futures and options amrdéstcontracts as well as cleared-only contracts wite-ranging set of
products based on interest rates, equities, forkghange, agricultural commodities, energy, metatscredit default. Rates are varied by
product in order to optimize revenue on existingdurcts and to encourage contract volume upon inttioh of new products.

Venue. Our exchange is an international marketplace thiagb together buyers and sellers mainly throughetectronic trading as well as
through open outcry trading and privately negotidtansactions. Any customer who is guaranteeddgaxing firm and who agrees to be
bound by our exchange rules is able to obtain tlaecess to our electronic platforms. Open out@glihg is conducted exclusively by our
members, who may execute trades on behalf of cestoaor for themselves.

Typically, customers submitting trades through electronic platforms are charged fees for usingothforms in addition to the fees assessec
on all transactions executed on our exchange. Ggs®entering into privately negotiated transactiaiso incur additional charges beyond the
fees assessed on other transactions. Privateltiatggbtransactions include block trades, whichlamge transactions that are executed bety
selected parties off the public auction market &tB3Globex or the trading floor. Privately negot@teansactions also include volume from
CME ClearPort.
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Member/non-member mix. Generally, member customers are charged lowertfie@sour non-member customers. Holding all othetoiz
constant, revenue decreases if the percentagad#fgrexecuted by members increases, and incrédisepercentage of non-member trades
increases.

Other sources.Revenue is also derived from other sources inctudiarket data and information services, accessamnunication fees and
various services related to our exchange and Imgildperations.

Market data and information services. We receive market data and information servicesmae from the dissemination of our market data to
subscribers. Subscribers can obtain access to atketrdata services either directly or throughddparty distributors.

Our service offerings include access to real-tideayed and end-of-day quotations, trade and sugnmarket data for our products and other
data sources. Users of our basic service recealdinee quotes and pay a flat monthly fee for esateen, or device, displaying our market
data. Alternatively, customers can subscribe tcketattata provided on a limited group of productse Tee for this service is also a flat rate pe
month.

Pricing for our market data services is based ervétiue of the service provided, our cost structareéhe service and the price of comparable
services offered by our competitors. Increasesorahses in our market data and information sesvieeenue are influenced by changes in ot
price structure for existing market data offerinigsroduction of new market data services and chariig the number of devices in use. Genere
economic factors that affect the financial servicesistry, which constitutes our primary customasdy also influence revenue from our ma
data services.

Access and communication fees. Access and communication fees are charges to memhdrclearing firms that utilize our various
telecommunications networks and communicationsicesyOur communication services include our cafion program as well as the
connectivity charges to customers of the CME Glgblexform. Our co-location services were launchedanuary 2012. Access fee revenue
varies depending on the type of connection providezlistomers.

Other revenues. To further diversify the range of services we agffee have entered into processing and developnggaements with other
exchanges and service organizations. For exampldyave an agreement with BM&FBOVESPA S.A (BM&FBOVES to develop a new
multi-asset class electronic trading platform fegit customers. We recognize revenue under theeagent as services are provided and wher
developed technology is delivered.

Other revenues also include fees for administratunginterest Earning Facility (IEF) program, traader routing, and various services to
members and clearing firms. We offer clearing fitims opportunity to invest cash performance bondsur various IEF offerings. These
clearing firms receive interest income, and we ikeca fee based on total funds on deposit. In addibther revenues include trading gains
losses generated by GFX Corporation (GFX), our Wholvned subsidiary that trades futures contrat fully hedged book to enhance
liquidity in our electronic markets for certain grects. Other revenues may also include gains @s $adm operating assets. Lastly, other
revenues include rent charged to third party tenastwell as ancillary charges for utilities, pagkand miscellaneous services provided to
tenants.

Expenses

The majority of our expenses do not vary directithwehanges in our contract volume. Licensing atietiofee agreements and the majority of
our employee bonuses do vary directly with contvatme.

Compensation and benefitsCompensation and benefits expense is our mosffisigmi expense and includes employee wages, bonsteek-
based compensation, benefits and employer taxesgels in this expense are driven by fluctuatiotkémumber of employees, increases in
wages as a result of inflation or labor market d¢tioals, changes in rates for employer taxes andratbst increases affecting benefit plans. In
addition, this expense is affected by the compmsitif our work force. The expense associated withbonus and stock-based compensation
plans can also have a significant impact on thpeage category and may vary from year to year.

The bonus component of our compensation and berefitense is based on our financial performancdeiJthe performance criteria of our
annual incentive plans, the bonus funded undepltngs is based on achieving certain financial perémce targets established by the
compensation committee of our board of directore Gompensation committee has discretion to makitadde adjustments to the cash
earnings performance calculation to reflect effeétsnplanned operating results or capital expemesd to meet intermediate to long-term
growth opportunities.

Stock-based compensation is a non-cash expensed#tastock options, restricted stock and perforeeashare grants. Stock-based
compensation varies depending on the quantity aind/élue of awards granted. The fair value of amiis derived using the Black-Scholes
model with assumptions about our dividend yiel@, éxpected volatility of our stock price based praaalysis of implied and historical
volatility, the risk-free interest rate and the egfed life of the options granted. The fair valfiether awards is based on either the share pric



on the date of the grant or a model of expectad-éustock prices.
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Professional fees and outside servicebhis expense includes fees for consulting servieesived on strategic and technology initiatives,
temporary labor as well as legal and accounting.f€his expense may fluctuate as a result of cleimggervices required to complete
initiatives and legal proceedings.

Amortization of purchased intangibles.This expense includes amortization of intangibketsobtained in our mergers with CBOT Holdings
Inc. and NYMEX Holdings, Inc. as well as other dss®l business acquisitions. Intangible asset®suty amortization consist primarily of
clearing firm, market data and other customer i@hahips.

Depreciation and amortization.Depreciation and amortization expense results fteedepreciation of long-lived assets such as ingk]
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures andigapent. This expense also includes the amortizaifggurchased and internally developed
software.

Other expensesWe incur additional ongoing expenses for commuivaat technology support services and various ahtvities necessary
to support our operations.

e Communications expense includes costs for nétwonnections for our electronic platforms and sonagket data customers;
telecommunications costs of our exchange; anddaikfor access to external market data. This esgpamay be impacted by growth
in electronic contract volume, our capacity reguieats and changes in the number of telecommunitatiabs and connections wh
allow customers outside the United States to acmasslectronic platforms directly.

* Technology support services consist of costteelto maintenance of the hardware and softwapgresl to support our technology.
Our technology support services costs are drivesy3jem capacity, functionality and redundancy regoents.

e Occupancy and building operations expense cenafcosts related to leased and owned propetetyding rent, maintenance, real
estate taxes, utilities and other related costshé¥e significant operations located in Chicago lded York City with smaller offices
located throughout the world.

» Licensing and other fee agreements expensedesllicense fees paid as a result of contract velmnequity index products, and
royalty and broker rebates on energy and metalsuote as well as revenue sharing on over-the-couontgracts. This expense
fluctuates with changes in contract volumes as aglthanges in fee structures.

» Other expenses include marketing and travetedlaxpenses as well as general and administradists. Marketing, advertising and
public relations expense includes media, printathér advertising costs, as well as costs assadcwté our product promotion. Oth
expenses also include litigation and customeresatthts, impairment charges on operating assetss gad losses on disposals of
operating assets and foreign currency transactimsgnd losses resulting from changes in excheatge on certain foreign deposits.

Non-Operating Income and Expenses

Income and expenses incurred through activitiesideitof our core operations are considered nonatipgr These activities include non-core
investing and financing activities.

* Investment income includes dividend income fraum strategic equity investments; gains and loesdsading securities in our non-
qualified deferred compensation plans; sherin investment of excess cash, clearing firmdi pg@sformance bonds and guaranty f
contributions; and interest income and realizesigjand losses from our marketable securities. tmasst income is influenced by the
amount of dividends distributed by our strategieistments, the availability of funds generated ppgrations; market interest rates,
and changes in the levels of cash performance badepissited by clearing firms.

*  We use derivative financial instruments for fuepose of hedging exposures to fluctuations ierast rates. Any ineffective or
excluded portion of our hedges is recognized iniags immediately as gains or losses on derivativestments.

» Interest and other borrowing costs are assatiatth various short-term and long-term fundingiliies. We also maintain a
commercial paper program with various financiatitnsons.

» Equity in net gains (losses) of unconsolidat¢oks&diaries includes income and losses from ougstments in S&P/DJI, Dubai
Mercantile Exchange and Bursa Malaysia Derivat®eghad.

e Other income (expense) includes the net gaatedlto the contribution of the DJI asset groupthedsale of CMA as well as gains
related to our former securities lending program.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The notes to our consolidated financial statemieictsde disclosure of our significant accountindiges. In establishing these policies within
the framework of accounting principles generallgegated in the United States, management must make
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certain assessments, estimates and choices thaesuilt in the application of these principleaimanner that appropriately reflects our
financial condition and results of operations. iCait accounting policies are those policies thatowkeve present the most complex or
subjective measurements and have the most potem@idilect our financial position and operatingules While all decisions regarding
accounting policies are important, there are cei@acounting policies that we consider to be @itithese critical policies, which are presel
in detail in the notes to our consolidated finahstatements, relate to the valuation of finantiatruments, goodwill and intangible assets,
revenue recognition, income taxes, and internakoftsvare costs.

Valuation of financial instruments. Fair value is defined as the price that would leireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date, or an exit price. We haegoered financial instruments measure
fair value into the following three-level fair vauhierarchy based upon the level of judgment aatatiwith the inputs used to measure the fai
value:

» Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted priceactive markets for identical assets or liabilitéshe measurement date. Assets and
liabilities carried at level 1 fair value generaihclude U.S. Treasury securities and investmemfmublicly traded mutual funds with
guoted market prices.

» Level 2—Inputs are either directly or indirectipservable and corroborated by market data dbased on quoted prices in markets
that are not active. Assets and liabilities caraetevel 2 fair value generally include asset-leac&ecurities and certain derivatives.

» Level 3—Inputs are unobservable and reflect rgament’s best estimate of what market participauatsid use in pricing the asset or
liability. Generally assets and liabilities at faalue utilizing level 3 inputs include certain etlassets and liabilities with inputs that
require management’s judgment.

For further discussion regarding the fair valudimdincial assets and liabilities, see note 19 @érbtes to the consolidated financial statements

Goodwill and intangible assetsWe review goodwill for impairment on an annual lsaaind whenever events or circumstances indicatétsha
carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill haytested quantitatively for impairment by compgrihe carrying value of a reporting t

to its estimated fair value. Estimating the failueaof a reporting unit involves the use of valoattechniques that rely on significant estimates
and assumptions. These estimates and assumptignischade forecasted revenue growth rates; forecagperating margins; risk-adjusted
discount rates; forecasted economic and marketittoms, and industry multiples. We base our failuesestimates on assumptions we believe
to be reasonable given the information that islatséé to us at the time of our assessment; howewtual future results may differ significan
from those estimates. Under certain favorable onstances, goodwill may be reviewed qualitativelyifmications of impairment without
utilizing valuation techniques to estimate fairual The qualitative assessment of goodwill reliesignificant assumptions about forecasts of
revenue growth, operating margins and economicitiond as well as overall market and industry-sfietiends.

We also review indefinite-lived intangible assetsam annual basis or more frequently when everdsaoumstances indicate that their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Indefitiited intangible assets may be tested quantitatifg impairment by comparing their carryi
values to their estimated fair values. Estimathmg fair value of indefinite-lived intangible ass#tgolves the use of valuation techniques that
rely on significant estimates and assumptions. &stimates and assumptions may include forecestedue growth rates; forecasted
allocations of expense, and risk-adjusted discoates. We base our fair value estimates on assongpive believe to be reasonable given the
information that is available to us at the timeoaf assessment; however, actual future resultsdifiiy significantly from those estimates.
Similar to goodwill, under certain favorable circstiances, indefinite-lived intangible assets mayevéeewed qualitatively for indications of
impairment without utilizing valuation techniquesdstimate fair value. The qualitative assessmiimdefinite-lived intangibles assets relies
on significant assumptions about forecasts of reeggrowth, operating margins and economic conditeswell as overall market and
industry-specific trends.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are atsessed for impairment when indicated by a chamgeonomic or operational circumstances,
The impairment assessment of these assets requaresgement to first compare the book value of thertizing asset to undiscounted cash
flows. If the book value exceeds the undiscounteshdlows, management is then required to estithatéair value of the assets and record ar
impairment loss for the excess of the carrying @auer the fair value.

Revenue recognition A significant portion of our revenue is derivedrfrahe clearing and transaction fees we assessobnceatract executed
through our trading venues and cleared througltlearing houses. Clearing and transaction feeseamgnized as revenue when a buy and
order are matched and when the trade is clearedc€asion, the customer's exchange trading preflegay not be properly entered by the
clearing firm and incorrect fees are charged fertthnsactions in the affected accounts. Wherirtfosmation is corrected within the time
period allowed by the exchange, a fee adjustment is
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provided to the clearing firm. An accrual is esisliéd for estimated fee adjustments to reflectemions to customer exchange trading
privileges. The accrual is based on the histopedtiern of adjustments processed as well as speacifustment requests.

Income taxes.Calculation of the income tax provision includeseatimate of the income taxes that will be paidtfiercurrent year as well as
an estimate of income tax liabilities or benefidadred into future years. Deferred tax assetsemiewed to determine if they will be realize
future periods. To the extent it is determined Hwhe deferred tax assets may not be fully reglttedassets are reduced to their realizable
value by a valuation allowance. The calculatiomwf tax provision involves uncertainty in the apption of complex tax regulations. We
recognize potential liabilities for anticipated taxdit issues in the United States and other agiplkcforeign tax jurisdictions using a more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold based ontewhnical merits of the tax position taken or expddo be taken. If payment of these amount
varies from our estimate, our income tax provisiuld be reduced or increased at the time thatmhénation is made. This determination r
not be known for several years. Past tax audite Inav resulted in tax adjustments that would rasudt material change to the income tax
provision in the year the audit was completed. &ffiective tax rate, defined as the income tax [@iowi as a percentage of income before
income taxes, will vary from year to year basedbanges in tax jurisdictions, tax rates and reguiat In addition, the effective tax rate will
vary with changes to income that are not subjeidome tax and changes in expenses or lossearthabt deductible, such as the utilization
of foreign net operating losses.

Internal use software costsCertain internal and external costs that are imclilm connection with developing or obtaining conepsoftware
for internal use are capitalized. Software develepitosts incurred during the planning or mainteeastages of a software project are
expensed as incurred, while costs incurred duhiegapplication development stage are capitalizeldaam amortized over the estimated useful
life of the software, generally three years. Anmation of capitalized costs begins only when tHensoe becomes ready for its intended use.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2013 Financial Highlights

The comparability of our operating results for gegiods presented may be impacted by mergers, sittqns and disposals of businesses al
asset groups. Where material, these impacts arasdied in the analysis that follows.

The following summarizes significant changes in fimeincial performance for the years presented.

Year-over-Year Change

(dollars in millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Total revenues $ 2,936.. $ 2914¢ $ 3,280.¢ 1% (11)%
Total expenses 1,299.: 1,222.¢ 1,259.! 6 3
Operating margin 56% 58% 62%

Non-operating income (expense) $ (36.00 % 14 3 (84.6) n.m (102
Effective tax rate 3%% 46% 6%

Net income attributable to CME Group $ 976.¢ % 896.2 % 1,812. 9 (51
Diluted earnings per common share

attributable to CME Group 2.92 2.7C 5.4: 8 (50)
Cash flows from operating activities 1,280.t 1,219.° 1,346.: 5 9

n.m. not meaningful

* In 2013 when compared with 2012, the increadetad revenues was due to higher contract volumexchange-traded and over-the-
counter products. The overall increase in revemasspartially offset by a decrease in averagepeateontract and a decrease in
market data and information services revenue iieguitom the de-consolidation of the DJI asset grand the sale of CMA in 2012.
In 2012 when compared with 2011, the decreasetéh tevenues was attributable to lower contractint and a decrease in market
data and information services revenue as a rektlieale-consolidation of the DJI asset group &edshle of CMA in 2012,

* The increase in total expenses in 2013 when eoeapwith 2012 was attributable to an increas@mpmensation and benefits expense
related to an increase in salaries and headcoumelags an increase in bonus expense due to iredrperformance relative to our
cash earnings target. Additionally, the loss onstile of the NYMEX building and associated coststigbuted to the overall increase
in total expenses. The increases were partialedthy a decline in expenses associated with tha€3ét group and CMA. In 2011,
we recoghized expenses related to the MF
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Global bankruptcy, resulting in a decrease in egpsrin 2012 when compared with 2011. Higher comgiersand benefits expense
partially offset the decrease in operating expeirs€812 when compared with 2011.

* In 2012, we recognized a net gain from the c¢bation of the DJI asset group and the sale of CM&. also began recognizing our
proportionate share of net income from our ventith McGraw in July 2012. In addition, interest exige increased from 2011 to
2013 due to debt issuances in 2012 and 2013.

* The decrease in the effective tax rate in 20b8mcompared with 2012 was attributable to a beaeéirued for the domestic
production activities deduction in 2013 offset hgrieases to reserves for uncertain tax positiodsrameases in deferred income tax
expense due to a change in state and local apporgiot factors in 2013. In 2012, we establishedrdedetax liabilities associated wi
S&P/DJI, which contributed to a higher effectiva tate in 2012. In 2011, we reduced our incomeptaxision due to a revaluation of
our deferred tax liabilities resulting from a charig state tax apportionment. This revaluation igbated to an increase in the effec
tax rate in 2012 when compared with 2011.

Revenues

Year-over-Year Change
(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Clearing and transaction fees $ 2,460.. $ 2,371t % 2,710.¢ 4% (13)%
Market data and information services 315.¢ 387.1 427 (29 9
Access and communication fees 83.2 88.¢ 49.2 (6) 80
Other 77.% 67.2 92.¢ 15 (29
Total Revenues $ 2,936.0 $ 29146 $ 3,280.¢ 1 (11)

Clearing and Transaction Fees

The following table summarizes our total contramume, revenue and average rate per contract. Totatact volume includes contracts that
are traded on our exchange and cleared througblearing house and certain clea@ty contracts. Volume is measured in round tuwtgch

is considered a completed transaction that invadvparchase and an offsetting sale of a contraarage rate per contract is determined by
dividing total clearing and transaction fees bwkabntract volume. Volume and average rate petraohdisclosures exclude our CME interest
rate swap, CME credit default swap, TRAKRS and CBA&aring Europe contracts. Unless otherwise natedfollowing tables also exclude
volumes for KCBT prior to January 1, 2013.

Year-over-Year Change

2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Total contract volume (in millions) 3,161.! 2,890.( 3,386." 9% (15)%
Clearing and transaction fees (in millions$ 2,427.¢ $ 2,365.t $ 2,710.¢ 3 (13
Average rate per contract 0.76¢ 0.81¢ 0.80( (6) 2

We estimate the following increases (decreasedg#ring and transaction fees based on changéaihcntract volume and change in average
rate per contract during 2013 compared with 20drd, during 2012 compared with 2011 .

Year-over-Year Change

(in millions) 2013-2012 2012-2011

Increase (decrease) due to change in total contofatne $ 208.¢ $ (406.6)
Increase (decrease) due to change in averageamab®ptract (146.9 61.4
Net increase (decrease) in clearing and transafetes $ 62.C $ (345.9)

Average rate per contract is impacted by our reitecgire, including volume-based incentives; prdduix; trading venue, and the percentage
of volume executed by customers who are membergaed with non-member customers. Due to the relship between average rate per
contract and contract volume, the change in clgaaimd transaction fees attributable to changeagdh & only an approximation.

Clearing and transaction fees include revenuesdorcleared-only CME interest rate swap and CMHEitefault swap contracts. In 2013
when compared with 2012, clearing and transactes fjenerated from these contracts increased by B8fion. The increase in revenue was
largely attributable to an increase in CME interast swap contracts resulting from the
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over-the-counter clearing mandate required to @amented in 2013 by the Dodd-Frank Wall StreebRafand Consumer Protection Act.
Contract Volume

The following table summarizes average daily cantvalume. Contract volume can be influenced by yrfators, including political and
economic factors, the regulatory environment andketacompetition.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Average Daily Volume by Product

Line:

Interest rate 5,903 4,834 6,030 22 % (20)%
Equity 2,642 2,560 3,238 3 (27)
Foreign exchange 886 845 922 5 (8
Agricultural commodity? 1,053 1,140 1,087 (8 5
Energy 1,676 1,692 1,775 (1) (5)
Metal 386 352 387 10 (9)
Aggregate average daily volume 12,54€ 11,42z 13,43¢ 10 (15)

Average Daily Volume by Venue:

Electronic 10,82¢€ 9,739 11,35C 11 (14)
Open outcry 1,040 1,045 1,398 — (25)
Privately negotiate® 680 639 691 6 8
Aggregate average daily volume 12,54€ 11,42z 13,43¢ 10 (15)

(1) The agricultural commaodity product line does imalude the agricultural commodity contract vokifior KCBT in 2012. The average daily
volume for KCBT's agricultural commodity contragtas 16,100 during December 2012.

(2) Privately negotiated venue average daily volimeides both traditional block trades as wellvlst was historically categorized as CME
ClearPort.

Interest Rate Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key interest rate products. Eurodollanfr8 contracts include contracts expiring
within two years. Eurodollar back 32 contractsuge contracts expiring within three to ten years.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Eurodollar futures and options:
Front 8 futures 1,159 1,099 1,717 5% (36)%
Back 32 futures 885 579 510 53 13
Options 595 551 767 8 (28)
U.S. Treasury futures and options:
10-Year 1,619 1,255 1,454 29 (19
5-Year 791 567 720 39 (22)
Treasury bond 457 427 415 7 3
2-Year 237 230 297 3 (22)

In 2013 when compared with 2012, overall interast contract volume increased largely due to are&se in contract volume for the
Eurodollar back 32 futures as well as the 5-Year HitYear U.S. Treasury contracts. The increas®lume resulted from periods of volatility
in 2013, particularly in mid and long-term intereates. The periods of mid- and long-term interat volatility were attributable to changes in
market expectations regarding the Federal Resédntelstion to revisit their quantitative easingastigy and to outline an exit strategy from t
plan as well as a change in expectations regattm@ederal Reserve's continued zero interespaiey.



Short-term interest rate volatility remained low2®13 compared with prior periods due to the Fddeeaerve's ongoing zero interest rate
policy. The Federal Reserve's announcement in 043 2hat tapering may occur in 2013 resulted imarease
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in short-term interest rate volatility, which cdbtrted to a slight increase in Eurodollar Fronn@® &urodollar options contracts in 2013
compared with 2012. The Federal Reserve's annowerddmad little effect on the 2-Year Treasury volsras market participants continued to
focus primarily on mid-term contracts, such as3héear and 10-Year Treasury contracts.

Overall interest rate contract volume decreas&Dit? when compared with 2011 due to low interdst valatility as a result of the Federal
Reserve's continued intent to maintain its zererast rate policy. In 2012 when compared with 2@i4 jncrease in volume in the long-term
interest rate products, including the Eurodollackhd2 futures and the Treasury bond futures anidioptontracts, was attributable to periods
of higher long-term interest rate volatility in Ba2012. The Federal Reserve's announcement irada012 to extend its zero interest rate
policy shifted market expectations regarding loagrt interest rates, which resulted in periods ghér volatility in early 2012.

Equity Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key equity products.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
E-mini S&P 500 futures and options 2,119 2,016 2,605 5% (23)%
E-mini NASDAQ 100 futures and options 239 254 301 (6) (16

Overall equity contract volume increased in 2012whompared with 2012 due to periods of highertilitja as measured by the CBOE
Volatility Index, in early 2013. We believe higheslatility resulted from changes in market expdotat regarding the Federal Reserve's
intention to revisit their quantitative easing &gy. We also believe the increase in equity cabhtralume in 2013 was due to a greater nee
equity index futures and options contracts resglfiom an increase in assets under managementitydzsed funds.

The decrease in overall equity contract volumeGbh2when compared with 2011 was due to a declirgiity market volatility. We believe
the decline in volatility was the result of few ne@velopments in the macroeconomic environmentimvitie United States and European
markets. We also believe a decline in assets undaagement contributed to the decrease in volur®@i@ when compared with 2011.

In general, equity products such as the E-mini NA®Dzontracts that hedge market risks different tthmse of the E-mini S&P 500, our most
liquid equity product, do not tend to benefit fromacro-level events or increased general marketilityldo the same extent.

Foreign Exchange Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key foreign exchange products.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Euro 269 290 357 (7)% (19%
Japanese yen 184 99 118 86 (16)
British pound 123 106 118 16 (20
Australian dollar 111 134 126 a7 7
Canadian dollar 74 93 92 (22) 1

The overall increase in foreign exchange contratiime in 2013 when compared with 2012 was attritetéo an increase in Japanese yen an
British pound contract volumes. The increase iradape yen contract volume in 2013 when compardd20it2 was largely due to higher
volatility resulting from reduced efforts by thepd@mese central bank to control yen exchange natearly 2013. In addition, increased volati
and economic uncertainty within Great Britain irfl3Ccontributed to an overall increase in Britislupd contract volumes in 2013 when
compared with 2012. As a result of a decrease rimashel for commodity resources in China because etanomic slowdown in the Chinese
market, demand decreased for currencies from desrttrat heavily depend on raw material exportsh&s the Australian dollar and the
Canadian dollar. The decrease in demand for thasercies resulted in a decrease in volume foAtngrian dollar and Canadian dollar
contracts. Additionally, euro contract volume desed due to lower volatility when compared with 2@% a result of concerns related to the
European credit crisis in 2012.

The overall decrease in foreign exchange contmicive in 2012 when compared with 2011 was attrifdetiargely to the decline in euro
contract volume. We believe trading activity in@gaontracts was impacted by the lack of a direefitrend in
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2012 due to uncertainty related to the health efEbropean Union and concern regarding additioc@h@mic stimulus provided by the Fede
Reserve. The lack of a trend reduced trading io eantracts among customers who trade based orumett) long-term expectations. We
believe the uncertainty with regard to the Europgaion also contributed to a decline in British pdiwcontract volume in 2012 when compe
with 2011 because the British economy is closelg tb the European Union. We believe that inteieerity the Japanese central bank to
control the yen foreign exchange rate beginningiict-2011 through 2012 caused market participantedace their trading in Japanese yen
contracts and to focus on higher yielding curresicseich as the Australian and Canadian dollars.

Agricultural Commodity Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key agricultural commodity products.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Corn 343 392 426 (12)% (8)%
Soybean 243 278 232 (13) 20
Wheat® 139 129 115 8 12
Soybean Oil 100 118 105 (15) 12

(1) The 2012 wheat contract volume doesinclude volume for KCBT's hard red winter wheatgwots. The average daily volume for KCB
agricultural commodity contracts was 16,100 dufdegember 2012.

The overall decline in total agricultural commodigntract volume in 2013 when compared with 2012 at#ributable to fewer weatheglated
events in 2013, which resulted in higher grain sieg@nd movement toward a more normal historiosppty and demand environment. The
overall decrease in agricultural commodity volumeswpartially offset by incremental wheat contraatime from the addition of KCBT's hard
red winter wheat contract to our product line.

The increase in agricultural commaodity contractwmoé in 2012 when compared with 2011 was attribetedbhigher volatility resulting from
severe drought conditions in the Midwest and a vtight supply environment in mid-2012. We beliekie tncreased volatility was the result of
supply constraint concerns for soybean and wheatlms. Corn volumes declined slightly in 2012 witempared with 2011. Early market
expectations of excess supply in 2012 dampenedprara volatility in early 2012, which resultedtime decline in volume.

Energy Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key energy products.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Crude oil 785 729 900 8 % (19)%
Natural gas 522 600 533 13 12
Refined products 294 314 275 (6) 14

Overall energy contract volumes remained flat ii2®hen compared with 2012. An increase in crutlearitract volume was offset by a
decrease in natural gas and refined products aintodume. Crude oil contract volume increased tduenprovements in distribution
infrastructure. We believe that revisions to oading volume incentives program also contributedrténcrease in crude oil contract volume ir
2013 when compared with 2012. The decline in naggaa contract volume in 2013 when compared with?2@as attributable to lower
volatility due to an increase in domestic supptibeve forecasted amounts. Additionally, naturalgadract volume declined in 2013 when
compared with 2012 due to lower price volatilityusad by fewer weather-related events in early 20h8.decline in refined products contract
volume in 2013 when compared with 2012 was duedecease in demand in the underlying physical etark

Energy contract volume decreased slightly in 20bh2rmvcompared with 2011. A decline in crude oil cacitvolume resulting from lower price
volatility contributed to an overall decrease iy products volume. Political unrest in the Ml@last in the first quarter of 2011 resulted in
changes in global supply, which contributed to kigprice volatility in early 2011 relative to 201&dditionally, lower crude oil contract
volume in 2012 was partially attributable to ovensly in Cushing, Oklahoma. The decrease in cruteomitract volume was partially offset by
an increase in natural gas contract volume. Thease in natural gas contract volume resulted kafgem volatility around production shifts

in the early part of 2012. Refined products growts due to increased volatility caused by a grovdr§. export market as global oil markets
adapted to increased supply of North American caitjelespite refinery shutdowns.
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Metal Products

The following table summarizes average daily voldoreour key metal products.

Year-over-Year Change

(amounts in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Gold 232 212 238 9% (11)%
Copper 68 64 50 7 29
Silver 66 60 87 1C (31

Total metal contract volume increased in 2013 wt@mnpared with 2012. The increase in metal contraleime was driven by periods of high
price volatility caused by significant changes iaaroeconomic market conditions and market sentittoaveird gold and silver products.
Improving economic conditions in the U.S., the FatlReserve's stimulus policy, as well as a chamgkeemand in the Asian markets
contributed to an increase in copper contract velim?013 when compared with 2012.

The overall decrease in metal products volume P20hen compared with 2011 was due to lower vdiaiih the precious metals markets in
2012 when compared with 2011. We believe the Aug0%t announcement of the Federal Reserve's ittten&intain its zero interest rate
policy and deepening Eurozone worries, which caiégl volatility within other financial markets RD11, resulted in an increased interest in
precious metals as an asset class. This increasdst in 2011 resulted in relative decreasesla gnd silver contract volume in 2012 when
compared with 2011. This decrease was partiallyedfly an increase in volume for copper contrasts @sult of economic growth in Asia as
well as global supply constraints.

Average Rate per Contract

The decrease in average rate per contract in 20&8 wompared with 2012 was attributable to a ghiftie relative mix of product volume. In
2013, interest rate product volume, when measwedpercentage of total volume, increased by 5#ilevagricultural commodity product
volume decreased by 2% and equity and energy ptediliumes decreased by 1% each when compared @th. 2nterest rate products have a
lower average rate per contract compared with afjuial commodity, equity and energy products. ddition, the decrease in average rate pel
contract in 2013 when compared with 2012 resultechfan increase in incentives and discounts orenargy contracts.

The average rate per contract increased in 2012 whmpared with 2011 due to a shift in the relathig of product volume. In 2012,
agricultural commodity and energy product volunvéisen measured as a percentage of total volume,ieadased by 2% while interest rate
and equity product volumes decreased by 3% and&@8pectively. Agricultural commodity and energydwots have higher fees compared
with interest rate products and equity products.

Concentration of Revenue

We bill a substantial portion of our clearing anghsaction fees to our clearing firms. The majooitglearing and transaction fees received
from clearing firms represent charges for tradescated and cleared on behalf of their customers.fiom represented 11% and one firm
represented 10% of our clearing and transactionf@esnue in 2013. Two firms each represented 1f28arcclearing and transaction fees
revenue in 2012 . One firm represented 12% of earmg and transaction fees revenue in 2011 . realearing firm withdraw, we believe
that the customer portion of the firm's trading\att would likely transfer to another clearingrfirof the exchange. Therefore, we do not
believe we are exposed to significant risk fromoagoing loss of revenue received from or througlaricular clearing firm.

Other Sources of Revenue

Market data and information services. The declines in market data and information sess/iezenues from 2011 to 2013 resulted from decsi

in market data and information services revenua® the DJI asset group and CMA. In June 2012, thieaBset group was contributed to
S&P/DJI and CMA was sold. The DJI asset group aktA@enerated market data revenues. In additionddweases in revenues were due tc
declines in the basic device count from 2011 ta32fde to cost-cutting initiatives at customer firasswell as continued utilization of a legacy
incentive program. The decrease in market datardadnation services revenue in 2012 when compwmitid 2011 was partially offset by an
increase in our basic device service fee from $&1Inmonth to $70 per month effective January 2012.

Effective January 1, 2014, users of our basic tiea-market data service will pay $85 per monthdach device compared with $70 per montl
in 2013 and 2012. In addition, we will not be gragtany new market data fee waivers for terminath tvading capabilities beginning in 20:
Existing users under the waiver will be charged 5f%he standard fee beginning in 2015.
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The two largest resellers of our market data reriesl, in aggregate, 52% , 43% and 39% of our magta and information services revenue
in 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Despite tbincentration, we consider exposure to signifidak of revenue loss to be minimal. In the
event that one of these vendors no longer subsctibeur market data, we believe the majority at trendor's customers would likely
subscribe to our market data through another erséldditionally, several of our largest institutad customers that utilize services from our
two largest resellers report usage and remit payofeheir fees directly to us.

Access and communication fees. We launched our co-location services in Januar20he decrease in revenue in 2013 when compairéd wi
2012 was attributable to a decrease in other cdiomecharges from customers who migrated over tocodlocation program. Revenue
generated from our clmcation program also decreased in 2013 when cogdpaith 2012 due to modifications to space and poeguirement
by customers during the first contract renewalqukin early 2013. Our co-location program contrialito an increase in access and
communication fees revenue in 2012 when compar#d2@11. We generated incremental revenue of $#illion in 2012 when compared
with 2011.

Other revenue. In 2013 when compared with 2012, the increaseheratevenue was attributable to $8.8 million insfeecognized upon

delivery of services under our technology agreeméifit BM&FBOVESPA S.A. (BM&FBOVESPA) in the firstuwarter of 2013. The increase
in other revenues was also attributable to $5.1ianibf insurance proceeds from business interauptesulting from Hurricane Sandy, which
we received in the second quarter of 2013. Thesas® in other revenue in 2013 was partially offged $7.4 million decrease in rental income
resulting from the sale of two CBOT buildings int2012. We also sold the NYMEX building in Novest®2013, which will result in a
decrease in future rental income.

In 2012 when compared with 2011, the decreasehersevenue was largely due to a decline in rent@me of $13.1 million resulting from
the sale of the CBOT buildings. In the second quant 2011, we recognized a $9.8 million gain o $hle of certain Index Services assets
related to one of its service offerings, which citntted to a decrease in other revenues in 2012wbmpared with 2011. The initial phase to
develop a new multi-asset class electronic platffinMBM&FBOVESPA was completed in the third quar®ér2011, which also resulted in a
decrease in other revenues in 2012. The decreadhdnrevenues in 2012 when compared with 201 1paesally offset by additional
processing services revenue from various stratetationships.

Expenses

Year-over-Year Change
(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Compensation and benefits $ 518.¢ $ 496.71 $ 475.7 4% 4%
Communications 35.2 40.1 42.3 12 (5)
Technology support services 53.t 50.7 52.1 6 (©)]
Professional fees and outside services 130.: 126.¢ 126.1 3 1
Amortization of purchased intangibles 103.( 116.Z 132.( (11 (12
Depreciation and amortization 135.1 136.¢ 128t (@D} 6
Occupancy and building operations 78.% 77.C 77.5 2 D
Licensing and other fee agreements 97.¢ 82.€ 84.¢ 19 ©)]
Other 146.¢ 95.€ 140.¢ 54 32

Total Expenses $ 1,299.0 $ 1,222.¢ $ 1,259. 6 )
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2013 Compared With 2012

Operating expenses increased by $76.7 million &828hen compared with 2012. The following tablevgbithe estimated impact of key
factors resulting in the increase in operating esps.

Year- Change as a

Over-Year Percentage of
(dollars in millions) Change 2012 Expenses
Salaries, benefits and employer taxes $ 29.¢ 2%
Loss on sale of NYMEX building 27.1 2
Bonus expense 21.4 2
Licensing and other fee agreements 16.€ 2
Security breach 16.C 1
Marketing expense 12.7 1
DJI asset group contribution and CMA sale (46.2) 4)
Other expenses, net (0.9 —
Total $ 76.7 6 %

Overall operating expenses increased in 2013 wbepared with 2012 due to a rise in salaries, benafid employer taxes resulting from
annual salary increases and rising healthcare.cdstscrease in average headcount due to efforgxpand and globalize our business also
contributed to an increase in expenses in 2013 whepared with 2012.

In November 2013, CME Group sold its building iniN¥ork. The sale resulted in a loss on dispos#luiding assets, a write-off of lease-
related intangible assets and other transacti@teslcosts.

Bonus expense increased due to improved perfornratatéve to our cash earnings target in 2013 wdwmnpared with 2012 performance
relative to our 2012 cash earnings target.

An increase in licensing and other fee agreemestsited from higher volumes for interest rate spagulucts and certain equity contracts. The
increase in licensing and other fee agreementsalgasdue to fees incurred in connection with angbeg agreement with S&P/DJI, which was
amended in the second quarter of 2012.

Professional fees increased due to an increasgat &nd other consulting services related to arggdreach in 2013.

Marketing expense increased due to new branditigtives for CME Group.

The increase in operating expenses was partidbeoby a decrease in expenses due to the comtribaft the DJI asset group and the sale of
CMA to McGraw in June 2012. Reduced ongoing expenssulting from the contribution of the DJI asgetup and the sale of CMA included
compensation and benefits, professional fees atsideuservices, amortization of purchased intaegills well as other expenses.

2012 Compared With 2011

Operating expenses decreased by $36.9 million 1r2 2then compared with 2011. The following tablevgithe estimated impact of key
factors resulting in the decrease in operating eses.

Year- Change as a

Over-Year Percentage of
(dollars in millions) Change 2011 Expenses
Salaries, benefits and employer taxes $ 15.C 1%
Stock-based compensation 10.1 1
Non-qualified deferred compensation 5.7 —
Bonus expense (15.2) D
Amortization of purchased intangibles (15.9 (@D}
MF Global-related expense (27.€) ©)]
Other expenses, net (9.0 —

Total $ (36.9 (3)%




In 2012 when compared with 2011, an increase &rigsl, benefits and employer taxes resulted fraghdri salaries and rising healthcare costs
The increase was partially offset by a decreaseénage headcount as a result of the contribufitineoDJI asset group and the sale of CM;
the second quarter of 2012.
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The increase in stock-based compensation expersduweato the accelerated vesting of stock-basegensation associated with our CEO
transition in 2012 as well as the impact relatethtoSeptember 2011 and 2012 grants.

An increase in our non-qualified deferred compdngdiability, the impact of which does not affewt income because of an equal and
offsetting change in investment income, contributeen increase in compensation and benefits egpens

Bonus expense decreased due to performance reiatwg 2012 cash earnings target when compardd20it1 performance relative to our
2011 cash earnings target.

Amortization of purchased intangibles declined assalt of the contribution of the DJI asset graie, sale of CMA and the disposal of certair
lease-related intangible assets in the secondequa{r2012.

Overall expenses also decreased in 2012 when cemhpath 2011 due to the expenses incurred in 2814 result of the MF Global
bankruptcy filing in the fourth quarter of 2011, iefn included write-offs of accounts receivable defges and losses on collateral posted by
GFX and held by MF Global in customer segregatedifias well as other related expenses. In 2012eeagnized a recovery on the losses
incurred on collateral posted by GFX in 2011.

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Year-over-Year Change

(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Investment income $ 44¢ % 387 $ 36.7 16 % 5%
Gains (losses) on derivative investments — (0.2 (0.7 (200 —
Interest and other borrowing costs (151.9) (132.2) (116.9 15 13
Equity in net gains (losses) of

unconsolidated subsidiaries 70.t 30.7 4.3 13C n.m
Other income (expense) — 64.5 — (200 n.m
Total Non-Operating $ (36.0) $ 14 $ (84.¢) n.m. (102)

n.m. not meaningful

I nvestment income. Investment income increased in 2013 when compai#d2012 due to an increase in gains on marketsdgarities related
to our non-qualified deferred compensation plafi48 million. Gains and losses from these non-fjedldeferred compensation plan
securities are offset by an equal amount of congt@sand benefits expense.

The increase in investment income during 2012 wdoenpared with 2011 was attributable to an incréaggins on marketable securities
related to our nowualified deferred compensation plan of $5.7 millas well as other gains on investments. The isere@ainvestment incon
was partially offset by a decrease in dividend memf $5.9 million in 2012 compared with 2011 dakgely to a decrease in dividends from
our investment in BM&FBOVESPA.

Interest and other borrowing costs. The following table shows the weighted averagedwimgs outstanding, weighted average effectivedyiel
and average cost of borrowing for the periods priese

Year-over-Year Change

(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Weighted average borrowings

outstanding $ 2,781 $ 2,344.. $ 2,155.¢ $ 437.2 $ 188.:
Weighted average effective yield 4.68% 5.0€% 5.1&% (0.39% (0.19%
Average cost of borrowing 4.8t 5.24 5.41 (0.39 (0.1%)

(1) Average cost of borrowing includes interesg, dffective portion of interest rate hedges, dist@ecretion and debt issuance costs.
Commitment fees on line of credit agreements aténotuded in the average cost of borrowing, whigh change in presentation from prior
years.

In September 2012, we issued $750.0 million of 3fD&d rate notes due September 2022. In the thuatter of 2013, we repaid $750.0
million of 5.4% fixed rate notes due August 2018 #&sued $750.0 million of 5.3% fixed rate notee @eptember 2043. We entered into an
interest rate swap agreement that resulted infeotife rate of 4.73% on the 5.3% fixed rate nales September 2043. These factors
contributed to increases in weighted average bangswutstanding and decreases in weighted aveféegtive yield from 2011 through 2013.



The average cost of borrowing decreased in 2013 whmpared with 2012 due to issuance of the fizeel motes in September 2013. The
average cost of borrowing decreased in 2012 wherpaced with 2011 due to the issuance of the fix¢el motes in September 2012.
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Interest and other borrowing costs also includera@ment fees on our line of credit agreements. Cament fees increased from 2011 to
2013 due to increases in line of credit faciliieshe fourth quarter of 2013 and the fourth quanfe2012 to meet increased regulatory and
business requirements.

Equity in net gains (losses) of unconsolidated subsidiaries. We began recognizing income from our S&P/DJI bussneenture in the third
quarter of 2012. Income generated from this businesture contributed to increases in equity ingaéns (losses) of unconsolidated
subsidiaries in 2012 and 2013.

Other income (expense). In 2012, we recognized a net gain of $58.9 millielated to the contribution of the DJI asset grang the sale of
CMA. Additionally, in 2012, we recognized a gain®¥.7 million related to the recovery of a 2008 amment loss on a corporate debt security
held in the NYMEX securities lending portfolio.
Income Tax Provision
The following table summarizes the effective tabe far the periods presented:

Year-over-Year Change

2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011
Year ended December 31 38.9% 46.5% 6.2% (7.€©)% 40.2%

In 2013, we recognized a benefit for the domestidpction activities deduction, which contributedat decrease in the effective tax rate in
2013 when compared with 2012. The decrease waislpadffset by increases in reserves for uncertainpositions and increases in the
deferred income tax expense resulting from a changtate and local apportionment factors in thedtquarter of 2013.

In 2012, we established deferred income tax liagdiassociated with the McGraw venture resultingn increase in our income tax provision,
which contributed to a higher effective tax rat€@12 when compared with 2011. In 2011, we revatuedexisting deferred tax liabilities
resulting from a change in state tax apportionmEhis revaluation contributed to an increase indffective tax rate in 2012 when compared
with 2011. Additionally, in the first quarter of 20, we began marking to market our investment irfSBIBOVESPA which resulted in a
reduction in valuation allowances on unrealizedtehfpsses previously reserved, which also contel to a higher effective tax rate in 2012
when compared with 2011.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Requirements

We have historically met our funding requiremenithwash generated by our ongoing operations. Whikecost structure is fixed in the short
term, our sources of operating cash are dependecrtract volume levels. We believe that our é@xistash, cash equivalents, marketable
securities and cash generated from operationdwilufficient to cover our working capital needsital expenditures, and other commitme
However, it is possible that we may need to ragstanal funds to finance our activities througuances of commercial paper, future public
debt offerings or by direct borrowings from finaaldinstitutions.

Cash will also be required for operating leasesradcancellable purchase obligations as well bsratbligations reflected as long-term
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet atéber 31, 2013 . These were as follows:

Operating Purchase Lo%r]'l?érm
(in millions) Leases Obligations Debt Obligations Liabilities Total @
Year
2014 $ 53.C $ 14z $ 750.C $ 517 $ 868.¢
2015-2016 95.¢ 11.5 — — 107.1
2017-2018 83.¢ 5.2 612.t — 701.€
Thereafter 263.1 3.2 1,500.( — 1,766.¢
Total $ 495.¢ $ 344 % 2,862. % 517 % 3,444..
Q) The liability for gross unrecognized income keenefits, including interest and penalties, 6f42 million for uncertain tax positions

are not included in the table due to uncertaintyualthe date of their settlement.

Operating leases include rent payments for offpzce in Chicago, New York and other smaller officethe United States and in various



foreign countries. The operating lease for our qeaders in Chicago expires in November 2022. Ahmiaimum rental payments under this
lease range from $11.3 million to $13.5 million e\&lso maintain operating leases for
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additional office spaces in Chicago, which expiré&lbvember 2023 and April 2027. Annual minimum atpiayments under these leases ranc
from $5.3 million to $6.2 million and $3.0 millicl $4.3 million, respectively. The operating le&seour office space in New York expires in
December 2028. Annual minimum rental payments utidsidease range from $13.1 million to $24.7 raiili

Purchase obligations include minimum payments dwkenagreements to purchase software licensesyaerdadvertising and maintenance a
well as telecommunication services. Debt obligatiotiude repayment of the debt obligation as aeglinterest payments associated with the
debt obligations. Other long-term liabilities indifunding obligations for other post-retirememdd# plans as well as contingent
consideration.

Future capital expenditures for technology arecipdaied as we continue to support our growth thincadditional investment in our co-location
program, increased system capacity and performamm®vements. Each year, capital expendituresrangried for improvements to and
expansion of our offices, remote data centersgo@imunications network and other operating equifgniar2014 , we expect capital
expenditures to total approximately $175.0 millioNWe continue to monitor our capital needs and maise our forecasted expenditures as
necessary in the future.

We intend to continue to pay a regular quartenyddind to our shareholders, which remains at apprately 50% of the prior year's cash
earnings. The decision to pay a dividend, howenaanains within the discretion of our board of dicgs and may be affected by various
factors, including our earnings, financial conditicapital requirements, levels of indebtednessadiner considerations our board of directors
deems relevant. CME Group is also required to cgmyith restrictions contained in the general cogpian laws of its state of incorporation,
which could also limit its ability to declare andypdividends. On February 5, 2014 , the board r@otiors declared a regular quarterly dividenc
of $0.47 per share. The dividend will be payablévianch 25, 2014 to shareholders of record on Ma@:014 . Assuming no changes in the
number of shares outstanding, the first quarteddind payment will total approximately $156.9 naifli. The board of directors also declared
an additional, annual variable dividend of $2.60 gf&are on December 11, 2013 paid on January 14, @0the shareholders of record on
December 27, 2013. In general, the amount of tnei@n/ariable dividend will be determined by thel efi each year, and the level will
increase or decrease from year to year based gatoygeresults, potential merger and acquisitiaiivag, and other forms of capital return
including regular dividends and share buybacksndpttie prior year. The amount available for theumhnariable dividend related to 2013
operations was favorably impacted by the proceems the sale of the NYMEX building in 2013 and b fproceeds from our interest rate
swap settlement associated with our debt issuanBeptember 2013.

Sources and Uses of Cash

The following is a summary of cash flows from opng, investing and financing activities.

Year-over-Year Change

(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013-2012 2012-2011

Net cash provided by operating activitie $ 1,280 $ 1,219.° $ 1,346.: 5% (9)%
Net cash provided by (used in) investing 190.t (208.9 (153.¢ (197 37
activities

Net cash used in financing activities (606.0) (448.9 (1,005.9) 35 (55)

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increadightly in 2013 when compared with 2012. Net cpsbvided by operating activities w
lower in 2012 due to an additional cash contributmthe CMECE guaranty fund in 2012. Cash conteéfiuo the guaranty fund is considered
restricted and was transferred from cash and agsivaents to other assets when contributed.

In 2012 when compared with 2011, net cash proviedperating activities decreased as a resultwétaontract volumes.

Investing activities

The increase in cash provided by investing acéigitn 2013 when compared with 2012 was due lartgglyoceeds from the sale of a building
in New York and the settlement of a derivative cacit related to our debt offering in 2013. In aitdlit there were additional investments in

business ventures in 2012. This increase was [hauiéset by the proceeds from the sale of twoldiing properties in April 2012.

Cash used in investing activities in 2012 was highan cash used in 2011 due to cash paid in besic@mbinations and increased investmen
in business ventures, partially offset by the ngicef proceeds from the sale of the two buildinggarties in April 2012.
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Financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was higher in2@hen compared with 2012. The increase was at#iithei to the repayment of the fixed rate
notes due August 2013. The increase in net caghingmancing activities was also due to our pasz of the non-controlling interest in CME
Group Index Holdings LLC in the second quarter @2 The increase in cash used in financing aEs/ivas partially offset by a decrease in
cash dividends of $625.2 million in 2013 when comegawith the same period in 2012. There were twauahdividends paid in 2012,
including the annual variable dividend from 201 ®@tions and the annual variable dividend from 283@rations, which was accelerated to
the fourth quarter of 2012 due to uncertainty sumecbng dividend income tax treatment beginning@d2 The annual variable dividend from
2013 operations was paid in the first quarter df£20

Cash used in financing activities was lower in 2@4#2n compared with 2011. The decrease in cashwasgattributable to the receipt of
$747.7 million in proceeds from debt issued in Beylter 2012 in contrast with repayments of $42016amiof debt in the first quarter of 201
In addition, we repurchased $220.4 million of ClAssommon stock in 2011. The net decrease in cast was partially offset by a $851.5
million increase in cash dividends paid in 2012 whempared with 2011.

Debt Instruments

The following table summarizes our debt outstandis@f December 31, 2013 :

(in millions) Par Value
Fixed rate notes due February 2014, stated reier6fo $  750.(
Fixed rate notes due March 2018, stated rate OP4% 612.5
Fixed rate notes due September 2022, stated rat@oFo® 750.(
Fixed rate notes due September 2043, stated r&at30¥® 750.(

(1) In February 2010, we entered into a forwasdtstg interest rate swap agreement that modifiedriterest obligation associated with
these notes so that the interest payable on thes eéfiectively became fixed at a rate of 4.46%.

(2) In August 2012, we entered into a forwardigtgrinterest rate swap agreement that modifiedrttezest obligation associated with
these notes so that the interest payable on ttes effiectively became fixed at a rate of 3.32%.

(3) In August 2012, we entered into a forwardigtgrinterest rate swap agreement that modifiedrttezest obligation associated with
these notes so that the interest payable effegthetame fixed at a rate of 4.73%.

We maintain a $1.8 billion multi-currency revolvisgnior credit facility with various financial insttions. The proceeds from the revolving
senior credit facility can be used for general coape purposes, which includes providing liquiddy our CME clearing house in certain
circumstances at CME Group's discretion and, ieaeary, for maturities of commercial paper. As laagve are not in default under the senio
credit facility, we have the option to increase figlity up to $2.5 billion with the consent ofetfagent and lenders providing the additional
funds. This senior credit facility matures in Jaiyu2016. The senior credit facility is voluntarilyepayable from time to time without premium
or penalty. Under the credit facility, we are regdito remain in compliance with a consolidatedweith test, which is defined as our
consolidated shareholders' equity as of Septenthe2@®L2, giving effect to share repurchases madespacial dividends paid during the term
of the agreements (and in no event greater thahis$lion in aggregate), multiplied by 0.65. We mntly do not have any borrowings
outstanding under the credit facility.

We maintain a 364-day multiarrency line of credit with a consortium of doniesind international banks to be used in certdirations by ot
CME clearing house. We may use the proceeds tagedgmporary liquidity in the unlikely event otkearing firm default, in the event of a
liquidity constraint or default by a depositary ¢tadian for our collateral), or in the event okanporary disruption with the domestic payment:
system that would delay payment of settlement tiaribetween us and our clearing firms. CME cleafirm guaranty fund contributions
received in the form of cash, U.S. Treasury seiegrior money market mutual funds as well as theopaance bond assets of a defaulting firm
can be used to collateralize the facility. At Debem31, 2013, guaranty fund collateral availabies 5.6 billion . The line of credit provides
for borrowings of up to $7.0 billion. We have thation to request an increase in the line from $illbn to $10.0 billion. In addition to the
364-day multi-currency line of credit, we also hale option to use the $1.8 billion multi-curremeyolving senior credit facility to provide
liquidity for our clearing houses in the unlikelyemt of default in certain circumstances.

In addition, our 364-day multi-currency line of ditecontains a requirement that CME remain in coamge with a consolidated tangible net
worth test, defined as CME consolidated shareh@l@gpity less intangible assets (as defined iragieement) of not less than $800.0 million.
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The indentures governing our fixed rate notes &1u8 billion multi-currency revolving senior creécility and our 364-day multi-currency
line of credit for $7.0 billion do not contain spfgccovenants that restrict the ability to payidiends. These documents, however, do contain
other customary financial and operating covendrdsplace restrictions on the operations of thepgamy that could indirectly affect the ability
to pay dividends.

At December 31, 2013, we have excess borrowingagpfor general corporate purposes of approxiimaie.8 billion under our multi-
currency revolving senior credit facilities.

At December 31, 2013 , we were in compliance with\tarious covenant requirements of all our detitifies.

CME Group, as a holding company, has no operatbits own. Instead, it relies on dividends dedlbaed paid to it by its subsidiaries in or
to provide a portion of the funds which it usepéy dividends to its shareholders.

To satisfy our performance bond obligation withdggipore Exchange Limited, we may pledge CME-ownesl Ureasury securities in lieu of,
or in combination with, irrevocable letters of citeé\t December 31, 2013 , we had pledged lettérgedit totaling $395.0 million .

The following table summarizes our credit ratingaDecember 31, 2013 :

Short-Term Long-Term
Rating Agency Debt Rating Debt Rating Outlook
Standard & Poor’s Al+ AA- Stable
Moody’s Investors Service P1 Aa3 Stable

Given our cash flow generation, our ability to mhoyvn debt levels and our ability to refinance emigdebt facilities if necessary, we expect to
maintain an investment grade rating. If our ratiags downgraded below investment grade due to agehaf control, we are required to make
an offer to repurchase our fixed rate notes aice@qual to 101% of the principal amount, plusaed and unpaid interest.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2013, we did not have any af&hce sheet arrangements as defined by the riegdatf the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Liquidity and Cash Management

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $2.5 billionesteinber 31, 2013 and $1.6 billion at December 8122 The balance retained in cash and
cash equivalents is a function of anticipated asgue short-term cash needs, prevailing integssr our investment policy and alternative
investment choices. A majority of our cash and aghivalents balance is invested in money marketatdunds that invest only in U.S.
Treasury securities or U.S. government agency g&surOur exposure to credit and liquidity risknignimal given the nature of the
investments. Cash that is not available for germygdorate purposes because of regulatory requirenog other restrictions is classified as
restricted cash and is included in other curres¢t@sor other assets in the consolidated balarestsh

Our practice is to have our pension plan 100% fdrateeach year end on a projected benefit obligdtasis, while also satisfying any
minimum required contribution and obtaining the imaxm tax deduction. Based on our actuarial projesj we estimate that a $3.5 million
contribution in 2014 will allow us to meet our fund goal. However, the amount of the actual contidn is contingent on the actual rate of
return on our plan assets during 2014 and the DieeeB1, 2014 discount rate.

Regulatory Requirements

CME is regulated by the Commaodity Futures Tradimgn@ission (CFTC) as a U.S. Derivatives ClearingaDigation (DCO). DCOs are
required to maintain capital as defined by the CHT@n amount at least equal to one year of pregeoperating expenses as well as cash,
liquid securities, or a line of credit at least abjio six months of projected operating expens®EGs in compliance with the DCO financial
requirements.

CME, CBOT, NYMEX, and COMEX are regulated by theT@Fas Designated Contract Markets (DCM). DCMs #se eequired to maintain
capital as defined by the CFTC in an amount at leqsal to one year of projected operating expeasegell as cash, liquid securities, or a line
of credit at least equal to six months of projeaipdrating expenses. Our DCMs are in compliance thit DCM financial requirements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are subject to various market risks, includimgse caused by changes in interest rates, creddigh currency exchange rates and equity
prices.

Interest Rate Risk

Debt outstanding at December 31, 2013 consistéided rate borrowings of $2.9 billion . Changesrniterest rates impact the fair values of
fixed-rate debt, but do not impact earnings or dashks. We did not have any variable rate borrowiag December 31, 2013 .

Credit Risk

Our clearing houses act as the counterpartied taadkes consummated on our exchanges as welt@sgih third-party exchanges and over-the
counter markets for which we provide clearing sesi As a result, we are exposed to significardicrisk of third parties, including clearing
firms. We are also exposed, indirectly, to the itnésk of customers of our clearing firms. Thesetjes may default on their obligations due to
bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, operational failuoe other reasons.

In order to ensure performance, we establish andtordinancial requirements for our clearing firmrWge set minimum performance bond
requirements for exchange-traded and over-the-eopmbducts, including interest rate swaps anditdadault swaps. For CME and CMECE
clearing firms, we establish performance bond nexménts to cover at least 99% of expected pricagdmfor a given product within a given
historical period with further quantitative and tiadive considerations based on market risk. Waldish haircuts applied to collateral
deposited to meet performance bond requiremerdsver at least 99% of expected price changes aedyfocurrency changes for a given a
within a given historical period with further quaative and qualitative considerations. Haircutspmdepending on the type of collateral and
maturity. We mark-to-market open positions of CMiel & MECE clearing firms at least once a day (tve@ay for futures and options
contracts) and require payment from clearing fimh®se positions have lost value and make paymerdearing firms whose positions have
gained value. We have the capability to markrarket more frequently as market conditions warréhese practices allow our clearing hot
to quickly identify any clearing firms that may rim able to satisfy the financial obligations réeglfrom changes in the prices of their open
positions before those financial obligations becaxeeptionally large and jeopardize the abilityoaf clearing house to ensure performance c
their open positions.

Although we have policies and procedures to hefuenthat our clearing firms can satisfy their ghfions, these policies and procedures may
not succeed in detecting problems or preventingudtf. We also have in place various measuresdetkto enable us to cover any default anc
maintain liquidity.

Despite our safeguards, we cannot assure youhtbsg tmeasures will be sufficient to protect us feodefault or that we will not be materially
and adversely affected in the event of a significkfault.

CME Clearing
We maintain three separate financial safeguardggeskfor CME Clearing member firms:

« afinancial safeguard package for all futured aptions contracts other than cleared over-thevssicredit default swap and interest
rate swap contracts (base package),

« afinancial safeguard package for cleared olwecbunter interest rate swap contracts,
» afinancial safeguard package for cleared ovecbunter credit default swap contra

In the unlikely event of a payment default by aadleg firm, we would first apply assets of the ddfiag clearing firm to satisfy its payment
obligation. These assets include the defaulting'siguaranty fund contributions, performance bardsany other available assets, such as
assets required for membership and any assocratgidg rights. In addition, we would make a dem#orcpbayment pursuant to any applicable
guarantee provided to us by the parent companlyeo€liearing firm. Thereafter, if the payment defaeinains unsatisfied, we would use our
corporate contributions designated for the respedinancial safeguard package. We would then useamty fund contributions of other
clearing firms within the respective financial gpiard package and funds collected through an assessgainst solvent clearing firms within
the respective financial safeguard package tofgdtie deficit.

We maintain a $7.0 billion 364-day multi-curren@yel of credit with a consortium of domestic ancmgtional banks to be used in certain
situations by CME Clearing. We have the optioneguest an increase in the line from $7.0 billio$16.0 billion. We may use the proceeds tc
provide temporary liquidity in the unlikely everitaclearing firm default, in the event of a ligitydconstraint or default by a depositary
(custodian of the collateral), or in the event ¢émporary disruption with the payments systemswhauld delay payment of settlement
variation between us and our clearing firms. Thalitragreement requires us to pledge certain ass#tis line of credit custodian prior to



drawing on the line of credit. Pledged assets may
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include clearing firm guaranty fund deposits hejdus in the form of cash, U.S. Treasury securgigsvell as select money market mutual fi
approved for our Interest Earning Facility (IEFpgram. Performance bond collateral of a defaultiegring firm may also be used to secure ¢
draw on the line. In addition to the 364-day malirency line of credit, we also have the optiomge our $1.8 billion multi-currency
revolving senior credit facility to provide liquigtifor our clearing houses in the unlikely eventefault.

At December 31, 2013, aggregate performance bopdsits for clearing firms for all three CME finaatsafeguard packages was $111.6
billion , including $20.0 billion of cash performambond deposits and $3.5 billion of letters ofidréA defaulting firm's performance bond
deposits can be used in the event of default afdlearing firm.

The following shows the available assets at Decer@bge2013 in the event of a payment default biearing firm for the base financial
safeguard package after first utilizing the defaglfirm's available assets:

CME Clearing
(in millions) Available Assets
Designated corporate contributions for futures apiions® $ 100.(
Guaranty fund contributiori® 3,260.¢
Minimum assessment powets 8,966.!
Minimum Total Assets Available for Defautt $ 12,327..
(1) CME Clearing designates $100.0 million of agte contributions to satisfy a clearing firm défén the event that the defaulting
clearing firm's guaranty contributions and perfonecgbonds do not satisfy the deficit.
(2 Guaranty fund contributions of clearing firmslude guaranty fund contributions required ofcieg firms, but do not include any
excess deposits held by us at the direction oficigdirms.
3) In the event of a clearing firm default, ifass continues to exist after the utilization of #ssets of the defaulted firm, our designated

corporate contribution and the non-defaulting étegafirms' guaranty fund contributions, we would@ss all non-defaulting clearing
members as provided in the rules governing theaguafund. We would assess a minimum of 275% df #wsting guaranty fund
requirements up to a maximum of 550% of their éxgsguaranty fund requirements as provided in thest

(@) Represents the aggregate minimum resourcéslalesto satisfy any obligations not met by a détiag firm subsequent to the
liquidation of the defaulting firm's performanceniiocollateral.

The following shows the available assets for thergst rate swap financial safeguard package a¢beer 31, 2013 in the event of a payment
default by a clearing firm that clears interesérsivap contracts, after first utilizing the defangtfirm's available assets:

CME Clearing
(in millions) Available Assets
Designated corporate contributions for interest Eatap contractd $ 150.(
Guaranty fund contributiori8 1,545.¢
Minimum Total Assets Available for Defauftt $ 1,695.
(1) CME Clearing designates $150.0 million of agie contributions to satisfy a clearing firm défan the event that the defaulting
clearing firm's guaranty contributions and perfonegbonds do not satisfy the deficit.
(2) Guaranty fund contributions of clearing firfies interest rate swap contracts include guaramty fcontributions required of those
clearing firms.
(€)) Represents the aggregate minimum resourcdslaleato satisfy any obligations not met by a détfag firm subsequent to the

liquidation of the defaulting firm's performancerigiocollateral. In the event of a clearing firm défaif a loss continues to exist after
the utilization of the assets of the defaulted fiour corporate contribution and the non-defaulfings' guaranty fund contributions,
we would assess all non-defaulting clearing memasisrovided in the rules governing the interets savap guaranty fund.
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The following shows the available assets for theglitrdefault swap financial safeguard package aeber 31, 2018 the event of a payme
default by a clearing firm that clears credit défawap contracts, after first utilizing the defénd firm's available assets:

CME Clearing
(in millions) Available Assets
Designated corporate contributions for credit défawap contract§’ $ 50.C
Guaranty fund contributior8 750.(
Minimum Total Assets Available for Defauft $ 800.(
(1) CME Clearing designates corporate contribititinsatisfy a clearing firm default in the evdrdttthe defaulting clearing firm's

guaranty contributions and performance bonds daaititfy the deficit. The working capital contribdtby us would be equal to the
greater of $50.0 million and 5% of the credit déffawap guaranty fund, up to a maximum of $100.0ioni.

(2 Guaranty fund contributions of clearing firfios credit default swap contracts include guardatd contributions required of those
clearing firms.
3) Represents the aggregate minimum resourcdslaleato satisfy any obligations not met by a détfag firm subsequent to the

liquidation of the defaulting firm's performancerigiocollateral. In the event of a clearing firm défaif a loss continues to exist after
the utilization of the assets of the defaulted fiour corporate contribution and the non-defaulfings' guaranty fund contributions,
we would assess all non-defaulting clearing memasisrovided in the rules governing the credit diéfawvap guaranty fund.

CMECE

We maintain a financial safeguard package for CME@&r-the-counter commaodity clearing firms. In thdikely event of default by a
CMECE clearing firm, we would first apply assetdtod defaulting clearing firm to satisfy its payrhebligations. These assets include the
defaulting firm's performance bonds and guaranty faontributions. Thereafter, if the default rensaimsatisfied after first applying assets of
the defaulting clearing firm to satisfy its paymebtigation, we would use guaranty fund contribng@f $60.0 million of CMECE funds for
commodity clearing firms. Each of the commodityarlag firms began contributing to the commaodity igurty fund in 2013, which totaled
$3.0 million at December 31, 2013 . Once the CMEf&faring firms fully contribute to the commodityaanty fund in 2014, we would still
use at least $20.0 million of CMECE funds in aduitto the clearing firms' guaranty fund contribngan the event of a default of a commo
clearing firm.

We also maintain a separate financial safeguarkgogcfor CMECE interest rate swap clearing firmsthle unlikely event of default by a
CMECE clearing firm, we would first apply assetdtod defaulting clearing firm to satisfy its payrhebligations. These assets include the
defaulting firm's performance bonds and guaranty facontributions. If the default remains unsatifiee would apply guaranty fund
contributions of $53.6 million that will be contrited by CMECE. Each of the interest rate swap itlgdirms began contributing to the inter
rate swap guaranty fund in 2013, which totaled $d hfillion at December 31, 2013 .

Aggregate cash performance bond deposits for CMEE€&ing firms for the over-the-counter commodifgeacing firms and interest rate swap
clearing firms were $63.8 million at December 3012 . There were no non-cash performance bondepasit at December 31, 2013 .

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Foreign Currency Transaction Risk

We have foreign currency transaction risk relatedianges in exchange rates on British pound calsin¢es held at subsidiaries with a U.S.
dollar functional currency. Gains and losses omifpr currency transactions result when subsidiavitsa U.S. dollar functional currency hc
cash as well as certain other assets and liabilitEmominated in foreign currencies. During 208,dxchange rate between the British pound
and the U.S. dollar fluctuated from a high of $1p8% pound to a low of $1.49 per pound. We exgeefareign currency gain/loss to continue
to fluctuate as long as we continue to hold cashedkas certain assets and liabilities at thodssigliaries.

Foreign Currency Trandation Risk

We have foreign currency translation risk relatthie translation of our foreign subsidiaries' tsaad liabilities from their respective
functional currencies to the U.S. dollar at eagioréng date. Fluctuations in exchange rates maaththe amount of assets and liabilities we
report in our consolidated balance sheets. Thafiahstatements of certain of our foreign subsidsaare denominated in various currencies
and are translated into U.S. dollars using a ctiggchange rate. Gains and losses resulting frasirémslation are recognized as a foreign
currency translation adjustment within accumulattdbr
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comprehensive income, which is a component of $lwdders' equity and comprehensive income. Aggrematslation gains (losses), net of
tax, for 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $(0.5) millié10.9 million and $83.3 million , respectively.2011, we began marking to market our
investment in BM&FBOVESPA. As a result, we reversedunrealized loss of $81.7 million, net of takieh was attributable to foreign
currency translation adjustments that were recoimledcumulated other comprehensive income (lgsshuecognizing impairment on our
investment in BM&FBOVESPA.

Foreign Currency Risk Related to Equity | nvestments

We are also exposed to foreign currency exchartgaisk related to certain equity investments asulised in the Equity Price Risk section
below.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Related to Customer Collateral

A portion of performance bond deposits is denoneidan foreign currency. We mark-to-market all dégsodaily and require payment from
clearing firms whose collateral has lost value ttuehanges in foreign currency rates and pricerdfbee, our exposure to foreign currency
related to performance bond deposits is considmiadnal and is not expected to be material to @uarfcial condition or operating results.

Equity Price Risk

We hold certain investments in equity securitigsstoategic purposes. Investments subject to equite risks are generally recorded at their
fair value. Fair values for publicly-traded equittyestments are based on quoted market pricesv&aies are subject to fluctuation and,
consequently, the amount realized in the subsegadaiof an investment may differ significantlyrfrats current reported value. Fluctuations
in the market price of a security may result froengeived changes in the underlying economic charatits of the issuer, the relative price of
alternative investments and general market conmditio

The table below summarizes equity investmentsatasubject to equity price fluctuations at Decen@de 2013 . Equity investments are
included in other assets in our consolidated baaheets.

Unrealized
Cost Fair Carrying Gain,
(in millions) Basis Value Value Net of Tax
BM&FBOVESPA S.A. $ 356.¢ % 4731 % 473.1 % 93.C
Bolsa Mexicana de Valores, S.A.B. de C.V. 17.Z 26.¢ 26.¢ 5.¢

We do not currently hedge against equity price. figfuity investments are assessed for other-thapdeary impairment on a quarterly basis.

53




Table of Contents

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities

CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in millions, except per share data; sharésousands)

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1.2 aD@$
Other current assets (includes $40.0 in restrictesh)
Cash performance bonds and guaranty fund contoibsiti

Total current assets

Property, net

Intangible assets—trading products
Intangible assets—other, net
Goodwill

Other assets (includes $74.0 and $73.0 in redirizaish)

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Short-term debt
Other current liabilities

Cash performance bonds and guaranty fund contoibsiti

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income tax liabilities, net
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Redeemable non-controlling interest

CME Group Shareholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000 sharémered as of December 31, 2013 and 2012; r

issued or outstanding

Class A common stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,0@@eshauthorized, 333,852 and 331,832 shares

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2012@t2| respectively
Class B common stock, $0.01 par value, 3 sharémanéd, issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total CME Group shareholders’ equity

Non-controlling interest
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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December 31,

2013 2012
2,469. $ 1,604.
68.4 56.¢€
302.5 267.k
209.7 204.c
21,355.: 6,584.¢
24,405. 8,717.¢
513.¢ 724.(
17,175. 17,175.
2,741.. 2,853."
7,569.( 7,566.¢
1,873. 1,825.
54,2774 $ 38,863..
36.2 $ 4175
749.¢ 749.7
1,169.¢ 240.7
21,355.: 6,584.¢
23,311. 7,616.¢
2,107.. 2,106.¢
7,249.° 7,413
449.¢ 220.t
33,117.. 17,357.!
— 80.¢
3.2 3.2
17,504.¢ 17,213..
3,494.¢ 3,993«
152.( 209.:
21,154 21,419..
5.7 5.8
21,160.! 21,424
54,2774 $ 38,863..
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(dollars in millions, except per share data; sharésousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues
Clearing and transaction fees $ 2,460.. $ 2,371 % 2,710.¢
Market data and information services 315. 387.1 427.
Access and communication fees 83.2 88.¢ 49.7
Other 77.% 67.2 92.¢
Total Revenues 2,936.: 2,914.¢ 3,280.¢
Expenses
Compensation and benefits 518.¢ 496.7 475.7
Communications 35.3 40.1 42.3
Technology support services 53.t 50.7 52.1
Professional fees and outside services 130.: 126.¢ 126.1
Amortization of purchased intangibles 103.( 116.Z 132.(
Depreciation and amortization 135.1 136.¢ 128.t
Occupancy and building operations 78.2 77.C 77.5
Licensing and other fee agreements 97.¢ 82.¢ 84.¢
Other 146.¢ 95.¢ 140.¢
Total Expenses 1,299.: 1,222.¢ 1,259.!
Operating Income 1,637.( 1,692.( 2,021.:
Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Investment income 44.¢ 38.7 36.7
Gains (losses) on derivative investments — (0.2 (0.2
Interest and other borrowing costs (151.9 (132.9) (116.9)
Equity in net gains (losses) of unconsolidated slidises 70.t 30.7 4.3
Other non-operating income (expense) — 64.% —
Total Non-Operating (36.0) 1.4 (84.¢)
Income before Income Taxes 1,601.( 1,693.: 1,936.!
Income tax provision 622.¢ 786.7 122.1
Net Income 978.1 906.7 1,814.
Less: net income attributable to non-controllingmasts 1.2 10.4 2.1
Net Income Attributable to CME Group $ 976.t $ 896.. $ 1,812
Earnings per Common Share Attributable to CME Group:

Basic $ 294 % 271 % 5.4t

Diluted 2.9z 2.7¢ 5.4%
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares:

Basic 332,67¢ 331,25: 332,73

Diluted 334,39¢ 332,31¢ 333,81:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 978.1 $ 906. 1,814.
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Investment securities:
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) arising dutire period (221.0 174.5 166.4
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedéhincome (0.7) (1.8 —
Income tax benefit (expense) 63.¢ (64.€) (23.7)
Investment securities, net (157.9) 108.: 1425
Defined benefit plans:
Net change in defined benefit plans arising dutiregperiod 28.¢ (13.0 (29.0)
Amortization of net actuarial (gains) losses andrmmservice costs included in pension
expense 3.2 2.t 1.7
Income tax benefit (expense) (12.0 4.2 6.5
Defined benefit plans, net 19.€ (6.9 (10.9
Derivative investments:
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) arising dutire period 128.¢ (25.9 —
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges — 0.1 0.1
Amortization of effective portion of net loss onsbaflow hedges 1.€ 1.1 0.8
Income tax benefit (expense) (49.0 9.C (0.9
Derivative investments, net 81.2 (15.7) 0.€
Foreign currency translation:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (0.9 .3 96.¢€
Reclassification adjustment for loss included ihineome — 18.4 —
Income tax benefit (expense) 0.2 (6.2 (13.9)
Foreign currency translation, net (0.5) 10.€ 83.2
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (57.9) 97.¢ 215.7
Comprehensive income 920.¢ 1,004.t 2,030.:
Less: comprehensive income attributable to nonrodlimy interests 1.3 10.t 2.1
Comprehensive income attributable to CME Group $ 919.5 § 994.( 2,028.(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(dollars in millions, except per share data; sharésousands)

Common

Class A Class B Stock and Accumulated Total CME
Common Common Additional Other Group Non-
Stock Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’  controlling

(Shares) (Shares) Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interest Total Equity
Balance at December 31, 2010 334,24¢ 3 $ 17,278.. $2,885.6 $ (104.) $ 20,060.: — $ 20,060.:
Net income attributable to CME
Group and non-controlling
interest 1,812.1 1,812. 1,812.:
Other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group 215.7 215.7 2157
Dividends on common stock of
$1.12 per share (373.5 (373.5 (373.5
Repurchase of Class A commo
stock (4,048) (220.9) (220.9) (220.9)
Exercise of stock options 170 5.& 5.8 5.&
Excess tax benefits from option
exercises and restricted stock
vesting 0.€ 0.€ 0.€
Vesting of issued restricted Class
A common stock 213 (3.9 (3.9 (3.9
Shares issued to Board of
Directors 41 2.2 2.3 2.2
Shares issued under Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 32 1.6 1.€ 1.6
Stock-based compensation 51.: 51.: 51.2
Balance at December 31, 2011  330,65° 3 $17,115.¢ $4,324¢ $ 111.¢ $ 21,552. — $ 21,552

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY (continued)
(dollars in millions, except per share data; sharésousands)

Common
Class A Class B Stock and Accumulated Total CME
Common Common Additional Other Group Non-
Stock Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’  controlling

(Shares) (Shares) Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interest Total Equity
Balance at December 31, 201  330,65¢ 3 $ 17,1150 $ 4,324¢ $ 111.¢ $ 21,552.( $ — $ 21,552.
Net income attributable to CME
Group and non-controlling
interest 896.: 896.: 896.:
Other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group 97.7 97.7 97.7
Dividends on common stock of
$3.70 per share (1,227.9 (1,227.9 (1,227.Y)
Non-controlling interest
resulting from acquisition of
Kansas City Board of Trade 5.€ 5.E
Tax benefits from Index
Services partnership allocation 18.€ 18.€ 18.€
Exercise of stock options 745 22.1 22.1 22.1
Excess tax benefits from option
exercises and restricted stock
vesting 4.€ 4.€ 4.€
Vesting of issued restricted
Class A common stock 366 (9.9 9.8 (9.9
Shares issued to Board of
Directors 40 2.1 2.1 2.1
Shares issued under Employe
Stock Purchase Plan 28 1.€ 1.€ 1.€
Stock-based compensation 61.£ 61.4 61.£
Balance at December 31, 201 331,832 3 $ 17,216‘ $ 3,993‘ $ 209.: $ 21,419 $ 5.E $ 21,424‘

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.




CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY (continued)
(dollars in millions, except per share data; sharésousands)

Balance at December 31, 201

Net income attributable to CME
Group and non-controlling
interest

Other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group
Dividends on common stock of
$4.40 per share

Tax benefits and gain related
Index Services non-controlling
purchase

Exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from optic
exercises and restricted stock
vesting

Vesting of issued restricted
Class A common stock

Shares issued to Board of
Directors

Shares issued under Employee
Stock Purchase Plan

Stock-based compensation

Balance at December 31, 2013

Common
Class A Class B Stock and Accumulated Total CME
Common Common  Additional Other Group Non-
Stock Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders’  controlling
(Shares) (Shares) Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interest Total Equity
331,83- 3 $17,216.. $ 3,993 $ 209.: $ 21,419. % 5.6 $ 21,424
976.¢ 976.¢ (0.2) 976.1
(57.9) (57.9) (57.9)
(1,475.9) (1,475.9) (1,475.9
167.¢ 167.¢ 167.¢
1,532 73.7 73.7 73.7
6.8 6.8 6.6
442 (14.4) (14.4) (14.2)
27 2.1 2.1 2.1
19 1.3 1.2 1.2
54.4 54.4 54.4
333,852 3 $17,508.. $ 3,494¢ $ 152.C $ 21,154.¢ $ 57 $ 21,160.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 978.1 $ 906.7 $ 1,814..
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Stock-based compensation 54.4 61.£ 51.:
Amortization of purchased intangibles 103.( 116.Z 132.(
Depreciation and amortization 135.1 136.¢ 128.t
MF Global accounts receivable write-off — — 21.7
Gain on sale of Index Services assets — — (9.9
Gain on contribution of Dow Jones Index asset group — (78.9) —
Loss on sale of Credit Market Analysis Ltd. — 19.¢ —
Loss on sale of NYMEX building property 27.1 — —
Undistributed net (gains) losses of unconsolidatdasidiaries (2.0 (15.9) 4.2
Deferred income taxes (6.0 82.2 (658.7)
Change in:
Accounts receivable (35.5) (0.3 (13.2)
Other current assets (2.6) (18.2) (69.9
Other assets 0.€ (65.€) (27.)
Accounts payable (5.9 11.2 (21.0
Income taxes payable 9.3 71.¢ (18.0
Other current liabilities 42.F (5.6) (6.€)
Other liabilities (5.5 (7.3 13.2
Other 6.1 4.¢ 4.9
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,280.! 1,219.° 1,346.:
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturities and sales of availableséde marketable securities 36.5 29.t 11.2
Purchases of available-for-sale marketable seeariti (36.€) (32.5) (10.2)
Purchases of property, net (125.6 (141.9) (172.2)
Proceeds from sale of building properties, netarigaction costs 192.4 148.¢ —
Cash paid in business combinations, net of cashioh — (162.9) —
Investments in business ventures (4.0 (67.€) —
Proceeds from sale of Credit Market Analysis Litét of cash sold with business — 42.4 —
Proceeds from sale of Index Services assets — — 18.C
Settlement of derivative related to debt issuance 127.¢ (24.9 —
Other — — (0.5
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 190.t (208.9 (153.¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from other borrowings, net of issuanctscos 748.7 747.5 —
Repayment of other borrowings (750.0 — (420.5)
Cash dividends (599.)) (1,224.9) (372.9
Repurchase of Class A common stock, including costs — — (220.9)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 73.7 22.1 5.€
Purchase of non-controlling interest (80.0 — —
Excess tax benefits related to employee optionoéses and restricted stock vesting 6.8 4.€ 0.€
Settlement of contingent consideration (7.3 — —
Other 1.2 1.t 1.7
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (606.0) (448.9) (1,005.¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 865.( 562.¢ 187.]
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,604.° 1,042 855.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period $ 2,469." $ 1,604." $ 1,042.
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 612.2 % 624.¢ % 816.]

Interest paid 133.¢ 110.€ 111.¢

Non-cash investing activities:

Investment in S&P/Dow Jones Indices LLC — 878.¢ —
Non-cash financing activities:
Declaration of annual variable dividend, payabldanuary 2014 868.( — —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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CME GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. (CME), the Bodrdrade of the City of Chicago, Inc. (CBOT), New rkdVlercantile Exchange, Inc.
(NYMEX) and Commodity Exchange, Inc. (COMEX), whebbwned subsidiaries of CME Group Inc. (CME Growpk designated contract
markets for the trading of futures and optionswnries contracts. CME, CBOT, NYMEX and COMEX anéitlsubsidiaries are referred to
collectively as “the exchange” in the notes to¢basolidated financial statements. CME Group asidubsidiaries are referred to collectively
as “the company” in the notes to the consolidaiteaincial statements.

CME Group offers a wide range of products for tngdand/or clearing including those based on inteetes, credit default, equities, foreign
exchange, agricultural commodities, energy and Isi€faades are executed through CME Group's eleictteading platforms, open outcry a
privately negotiated transactions. Through itsigphouses, CME Group offers clearing, settlenagnt guarantees for all products cleared
through the exchange.

In June 2012, the company contributed certain Domes Index assets and liabilities (DJI asset grom@)P/Dow Jones Indices LLC
(S&P/DJI), a new business venture with The McGral<Ebmpanies Inc. (McGraw). Dow Jones & CompanyybJones) retained a 10%
redeemable non-controlling interest in the DJI gegup. The company also sold Credit Market Anialy$d. (CMA) to McGraw in
conjunction with the creation of the business ventssets and liabilities contributed or sold ag pf this transaction are excluded from the
company's consolidated financial statements andnaganying notes beginning on June 30, 2012, whédinhancial results of the company's
24.4% interest in the new business venture with MeGare included in the company's consolidatedhfire statements and accompanying
notes beginning on June 30, 2012. In April 2018,dbmpany purchased the remaining 10% camirolling interest in the DJI asset group fr
Dow Jones for $80.0 million . As a result of theghase of the non-controlling interest, the comfmmterest in S&P/DJI increased from
24.4% 10 27% .

CBOT acquired The Board of Trade of Kansas Citysdduri, Inc. (KCBT) and its subsidiaries, the Kan€#ty Board of Trade Clearing
Corporation (KCBTCC) and the Board of Trade InvestiniCompany (BOTIC), on November 30, 2012. KCBTntans a 51% controlling
interest in BOTIC, resulting in a nonredeemable-nontrolling interest included in the company's swlidated statements of equity. The
financial statements and accompanying notes pregemthis report include the financial result&k@BT beginning on November 30, 2012.
of December 2013, KCBT is no longer regulated designated contract market and its operations wansferred to CBOT. In April 2013,
Kansas City Board of Trade Clearing Corporation imssgrated into our U.S. clearing operations.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemamggprepared in accordance with accounting priasigkenerally
accepted in the United States of America and irethé accounts of the company and its majority-asébsidiaries. All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial statemeaquires management to make estimates and assostiat affect the
reported amounts and the disclosure of contingmuoiuats in the consolidated financial statementsaamwdmpanying notes. Estimates are b
on historical experience, where applicable, andragsions management believes are reasonable umeleirtumstances. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved with estimates, actual resoitsy differ.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents consist of cash andyHighld investments with a maturity of three monthr less at
the time of purchase.

Financial Investments.The company maintains short-term and long-termstients, classified as available-for-sale or trgdiecurities.
Available-for-sale investments are carried at thairvalue, with unrealized gains and lossesofiefeferred income taxes, reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive inc@nageling securities held in connection with noradéfied deferred compensation plans
are recorded at fair value, with net realized amcbalized gains and losses and dividend incomertegbas investment income. The company
also maintains long-term investments accountedrfidier the equity method.

The company reviews its investments to determinetiadr a decline in fair value below the cost basather-than-temporary. If events and
circumstances indicate that a decline in the vafuitbe assets has occurred and is deemed to beth#retemporary, the carrying value of the
investments is reduced to its fair value and assponding impairment is charged to earnings.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The company uses a three-level classification tabgaof fair value measurements that establishes th
quality of inputs used to measure fair value. Tdievalue of a financial instrument is the amounatttwould be received to sell an asset or paic
to transfer a liability in an orderly transactiostlveen market participants at the measurement tagefair value of financial instruments is
determined using various techniques that involmeséevel of estimation and judgment, the degreshath is dependent on the price
transparency and the complexity of the instruments.

Derivative Investments.The company uses derivative instruments, desigreg@@sh flow hedges, to limit exposure to chaigegerest

rates. Derivatives are recorded at fair value enabnsolidated balance sheets. The effective podfithe changes in the fair value of cash flow
hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprigleeénsome. Any realized gains and losses fromatiffe hedges are classified as interest
expense in the consolidated statements of incontkaay ineffective or excluded portion of a hedgeecognized in earnings immediately.

Accounts ReceivableAccounts receivable are composed of trade recedgadonid unbilled revenue including clearing andsiaation fees and
market data and information services revenue. édbants receivable are stated at cost. Exposuosses on receivables for clearing and
transaction fees and other amounts owed by cleéiring is dependent on each clearing firm's finahcondition and the memberships that
collateralize fees owed to the exchange. The exgdhegtains the right to liquidate exchange memiyessh satisfy a clearing firm's receivable.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is calculatagdal on historical losses and management's assessipeobable future collections.

Performance Bonds and Guaranty Fund ContributionsPerformance bonds and guaranty fund contributietd for clearing firms may be
in the form of cash, securities or other non-casbogdits.

Performance bonds and guaranty fund contributiensived in the form of cash held by CME and CMEa@itey Europe Limited (CMECE)
may be invested overnight in U.S. Government séearand certain foreign government securities @eduhrough and held by a brokéeale!
subsidiary of a bank, reverse repurchase agreersecsed with highly rated government securitiesn@y market funds or through CME's
Interest Earning Facility (IEF) program. Any intstearned on CME investments accrues to CME aimtlisded in investment income in the
consolidated statements of income. CMECE may Histei any interest earned on CMECE investmentsaalaring firms at its discretion.
Because CME and CMECE have control of the caslatesil and the benefits and risks of ownershipuscts CME and CMECE, cash
performance bonds and guaranty fund contributioeseflected in the consolidated balance sheets.

Securities and other non-cash deposits may indlu8e Treasury securities, U.S. Government agencyréies, Eurobonds, corporate bonds,
other foreign government securities and gold bolli®ecurities and other naash deposits are held in safekeeping by a custtdiak. Intere:
and gains or losses on securities deposited tefgarformance bond and guaranty fund requiremeetteue to the clearing firm. Because the
benefits and risks of ownership accrue to the glgdirm, non-cash performance bonds and guarantg £ontributions are not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Cash contributed by CMECE to CMECE guaranty fusdgassified as restricted cash and is includedhier current assets and other assets i
the consolidated balance sheets.

Property, Equipment and Leasehold ImprovementsProperty, equipment and leasehold improvementstated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation andréimadion are calculated using the straight-linehmod, generally over two to thirty-nine
years. Property and equipment are depreciatedtbgirestimated useful lives. Leasehold improvemane amortized over the shorter of
remaining term of the respective lease to whicly tieéate or the remaining useful life of the leasldhimprovement. Land is reported at cost.
Internal and external costs incurred in develogingbtaining computer software for internal useaapitalized and amortized on a straihe
basis over the estimated useful life of the sofeywgenerally two to four years.

Operating LeasesAll leases in which the company is the tenant amanted for as operating leases. Landlord alloesmace recorded as a
reduction to rent expense on a straight-line bagés the term of the lease.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.The company tests goodwill and indefinite-livecaimyible assets for impairment annually and
whenever events or circumstances indicate that ¢thaeiying values may not be recoverable. Goodwpfesents the excess of the purchase
price over the fair value of the net assets acduire business combination. The company may tastgill quantitatively for impairment by
comparing the carrying value of a reporting unittsoestimated fair value. Estimating the fair vabf a reporting unit involves significant
judgments inherent in the analysis including estiingethe amount of and timing of future cash floavel the selection of appropriate disca
rates and long-term growth rate assumptions. Cleimgthese estimates and assumptions could méyeafédct the determination of fair value
of the reporting unit. If the carrying amount exgedair value, impairment is recorded. In certaioumstances, goodwill may be reviewed
qualitatively for indications of impairment withoutilizing valuation techniques to estimate faituea

The company evaluates the recoverability of indefitived intangible assets by comparing the edtidair value of the intangible asset to its

carrying value. If the indefinite-lived intangibdesset carrying value exceeds its fair value, araimpent loss is recognized in an amount equal
to that excess. Estimating the fair value of indiégi-lived intangible assets involves the
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use of valuation techniques that rely on signifiezstimates and assumptions including forecastezhtee growth rates, forecasted allocations
of expense and risk-adjusted discount rates. Clzingbese estimates and assumptions could méyeafééct the determination of fair value
for indefinite-lived intangible assets. In certaircumstances, indefinite-lived intangible asse&y e reviewed qualitatively for indications of
impairment without utilizing valuation techniquesdstimate fair value.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are atsessed for impairment when indicated by a chamngeonomic or operational circumstances,
The impairment assessment of these assets requaresgement to first compare the book value of thertizing asset to undiscounted cash
flows. If the book value exceeds the undiscounteshdlows, management is then required to estithatéair value of the assets and record ar
impairment loss for the excess of the carrying @auer the fair value.

Business CombinationsThe company accounts for business combinationg ukmpurchase method. The method requires theéractu
recognize the assets acquired, liabilities assuaradl any non-controlling interest in the acquiretha acquisition date, measured at their fair
values as of that date. The company may use indepéraluation services to assist in determinimgastimated fair values.

Employee Benefit PlansThe company recognizes the funded status of debeedfit postretirement plans in its consolidatethbce sheets.
Changes in that funded status are recognized ipgheof change in other comprehensive income)(I&an assets and obligations are
measured at year end. The company recognizes fthargges in actuarial gains and losses and pnigicsecosts in the year in which the
changes occur through other comprehensive incomss)(l

Foreign Currency Translation . Foreign denominated assets and liabilities ara@asured into the functional currency using pesnd
exchange rates. Gains and losses from foreignmyrgansactions are included in other expenskaratcompanying consolidated statements
of income. When the functional currency differsnfrthe reporting currency, revenues and expensiEsaifin subsidiaries are translated from
their functional currencies into U.S. dollars usimgighted-average exchange rates while their aaset$iabilities are translated into U.S.
dollars using period-end exchange rates. Gaindamses resulting from foreign currency translatiarsincluded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) within shareholdengiteq

Revenue RecognitionRevenue recognition policies for specific sourceewvenue are discussed below.

Clearing and Transaction Fees. Clearing and transaction fees include per conttaatges for trade execution, clearing, tradinghen t
company's electronic trading platform and othesfé&es are charged at various rates based onahecptraded, the method of trade,
the exchange trading privileges of the customeringathe trade and the type of contract. Clearingj teansaction fees are recognized as
revenue when a buy and sell order are matchedhaniade is cleared. Therefore, unfilled or cartélgy and sell orders have no impact
on revenue. On occasion, the customer's exchaadi@g privileges may not be properly entered bydkaring firm and incorrect fees
are charged for the transactions. When this inftionas corrected within the time period allowedthg exchange, a fee adjustment is
provided to the clearing firm. A reserve is estgtidid for estimated fee adjustments to reflect ctionres to customer exchange trading
privileges. The reserve is based on the histopattern of adjustments processed as well as spacifustment requests. The company
believes the allowances are adequate to coverastihadjustments.

Market Data and Information Services. Market data and information services representmgeearned for the dissemination of market
information. Revenues are accrued each month aséte number of devices reported by vendors. kbobange conducts periodic
examinations of the number of devices reportedeamsésses additional fees as necessary. On ocoasstomers will pay for services in
a lump sum payment; however, revenue is recograseskrvices are provided.

Access and Communication Fees. Access fees are the connectivity charges to custoafehe company's electronic trading platfornt tha
are also used by market data vendors and custoft@dees include co-location fees, access feethéoelectronic trading platform, line
charges and hardware rental charges and can vpendimg on the type of connection provided. An fddal installation fee may be
charged depending on the type of service requestdc disconnection fee may also be charged #icecbnditions are met. Revenue is
generally recognized monthly as the service is igex\.

Communication fees consist of equipment rentalusatje charges to customers and firms that utibzews telecommunications hubs
located internationally as well as networks andises in the Chicago and New York City faciliti€&venue is billed and recognized on
a monthly basis.

Other Revenues. Other revenues include processing services revavhieh is revenue generated from various strategjaionships, as
well as management fees earned under the IEF pnsgféor processing services revenue and IEF reyeevenue is recognized as
services are provided.
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Other revenues also included revenue from the rehttommercial space that were recognized ovetdhse term using the straight-line
method. Under this method, revenue was recordenlyeweer the entire term of occupancy for leasetb wtheduled rent increases or
abatements. Allowances for construction and otleant costs were considered lease incentives aredreeorded as a reduction to rel
income on a straight-line basis over the term efl#ase.

Concentration of Revenue. One firm represented 11% and one firm represer@ét df our clearing and transaction fees reven#9i8.

In 2012 , two firms each represented 12% of thepgaomy's clearing and transaction fees revenue. bnaédpresented 12% of the
company's clearing and transaction fees reven@81id . Should a clearing firm withdraw from the leange, management believes that
the customer portion of that firm's trading actiwitould likely transfer to another clearing firmhdrefore, management does not believe
that the company is exposed to significant riskifthe ongoing loss of revenue received from a @aler clearing firm.

The two largest resellers of market data repredempperoximately 52% of market data and informatiervices revenue in 2013 , 43% in
2012, and 39% in 2011 . Should one of these venagoionger subscribe to the company's market daaagement believes that the
majority of that firm's customers would likely sehife to the market data through another resélleerefore, management does not
believe that the company is exposed to significektfrom a loss of revenue received from any paféir market data reseller.

Share-Based PaymentsThe company accounts for share-based payments asaigvalue method, which is based on the grate drice of
the equity awards issued. The company recognizesnse relating to stock-based compensation onaetemated basis. As a result, the
expense associated with each vesting date witbfock grant is recognized over the period of tihe ach portion of that grant vests. The
company estimates expected forfeitures of stocktgra

Marketing Costs. Marketing costs are incurred for the production eachmunication of advertising as well as other rating activities. Thes
costs are expensed when incurred, except for oalsted to the production of broadcast advertisivigich are expensed when the first
broadcast occurs.

Income Taxes.Deferred income taxes arise from temporary diffeesrbetween the tax basis and book basis of assigbilities. A
valuation allowance is recognized if it is antidgdithat some or all of a deferred tax asset map@oealized. The company accounts for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in its ctidated financial statements by using a more-likiblgn-not recognition threshold based on
the technical merits of the tax position takenxgexted to be taken. The company classifies intares$ penalties related to uncertain tax
positions in income tax expense.

Segment Reporting.The company reports the results of its operatiensn@ operating segment primarily comprised of CIBOT, NYMEX
and COMEX exchanges. The remaining operations tioneet the thresholds for reporting separate segimfemmation.

3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Available-for-Sale Securities.Certain marketable securities have been classifieglvailable-for-sale. The amortized cost andviaine of
these securities at December 31 were as follows:

2013 2012
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(in millions) Cost Value Cost Value
U.S. Treasury securities $ 18 % 18.2 $ 178 $ 17.t
Asset-backed security 0.€ 0.4 0.€ 0.4
Equity securities — 0.1 — —
Total $ 191 % 18.¢ % 18 $ 17.¢

Net unrealized gains (losses) on marketable seéesigtassified as availal-for-sale are reported as a component of other celnemsive
income (loss) and included in the accompanying aliseted statements of comprehensive income ansotidiated statements of equity.

The fair value and gross unrealized losses of $etebacked security were $0.4 million and $0.4ionil, respectively, at December 31, 2013 .

The asset-backed security was in an unrealizedplosision for more than 12 months at December 8132and was deemed not to be other-
than-temporarily impaired. The company does naridtto sell and is not required to sell this absetked security.
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The amortized cost and fair value of the U.S. Tueasecurities and asset-backed security at DeceBih@013 , by contractual maturity, were
as follows:

Amortized Fair
(in millions) Cost Value
Maturity of one year or less $ 182 % 18.2
Maturity between one and five years — —
Maturity between five and ten years —
Maturity greater than ten years 0.8 0.4
Total $ 191 ¢ 18.7

Trading Securities. The company maintains additional investments iivarde portfolio of mutual funds related to its rqunalified deferred
compensation plans (note 11). The fair value oétmecurities was $49.6 million and $38.7 millioacember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

4. PERFORMANCE BONDS AND GUARANTY FUND CONTRIBUTION S

The company maintains two clearing houses: CME @igda division of CME) and CMECE. The clearinguses clear and guarantee the
settlement of contracts traded in their respeatieekets. In their guarantor roles, the clearingsesithave precisely equal and offsetting claims
to and from clearing firms on opposite sides ofheaantract, standing as an intermediary on evemyraot cleared. Clearing firm positions in
the United States are held according to CommoditiyFeutures Trading Commission (CFTC) regulatoryoaot segregation standards. To the
extent that funds are not otherwise available tisfyaan obligation under the applicable contrdiog, clearing houses bear counterparty credit
risk in the event that future market movementstereanditions that could lead to clearing firmdif@ to meet their obligations to the clearing
houses. The clearing houses reduce the exposogtirisk management programs that include iratiel ongoing financial standards for
designation as a clearing firm, performance bondirements, daily mark-to-market, mandatory guarémd contributions and intra-day
monitoring. Each CME clearing firm is required teposit and maintain balances in the form of cas8, Government securities, certain
foreign government securities, bank letters of itr@dother approved investments to satisfy perfamoe bond and guaranty fund requirements
Clearing firms that clear through CMECE are requiit@ deposit and maintain collateral in the fornta$h, certain U.S. and foreign
government securities or other approved investnergatisfy performance bond and guaranty fundireqents. All non-cash deposits are
marked to market and haircut on a daily basis.

In addition, the rules and regulations of CBOT fiegjthat collateral be provided for delivery of gigal commodities, maintenance of capital
requirements and deposits on pending arbitratiottemsa To satisfy these requirements, clearingdithat have accounts that trade certain
CBOT products have deposited cash, U.S. Treasewyities and letters of credit.

The clearing houses mark-to-market open positibfsaat once a day (twice a day for futures anéboptcontracts), and require payment from
clearing firms whose positions have lost value myatke payments to clearing firms whose position®tgained value. The clearing houses
have the capability to mark-to-market more freqlyem$ market conditions warrant.

Under the extremely unlikely scenario of simultamedefault by every clearing firm who has open ms$ with unrealized losses, the
maximum exposure related to positions other thaam-tive-counter credit default and interest ratepseantracts would be one half day of
changes in fair value of all open positions, befayasidering the clearing houses' ability to acdedaulting clearing firms' collateral deposits.
For CME's cleared over-the-counter credit defanfis and interest rate swap contracts, the maximyposeire related to CME's guarantee
would be one full day of changes in fair value ibbaen positions, before considering CME's abildyaccess defaulting clearing firms'
collateral. During 2013, the clearing houses fiemed an average of approximately $2.4 billioreg through their clearing systems for
settlement from clearing firms whose positions lustl value to clearing firms whose positions haithed value. The clearing houses reduce
guarantee exposure through initial and maintenprd®rmance bond requirements and mandatory gyafiamd contributions. The company
believes that the guarantee liability is immateaiadl therefore has not recorded any liability atédeber 31, 2013 .

Cash performance bonds and guaranty fund contoibsitare included in the consolidated balance shaedsthese balances may fluctuate
significantly over time due to investment choiceaitable to clearing firms and changes in the amoficontributions required. Securities are
not reflected in the consolidated financial statets@nd the clearing houses do not earn any intenethese deposits.

CME Clearing
Clearing firms, at their option, may instruct CMEdeposit the cash held by CME into one of the pEdgrams. The total principal in the IEF

programs was $19.4 billion at December 31, 2013%4&13 billion at December 31, 2012 . The guardmtyl contributions held in one of the
IEF programs may be used as collateral for CME'® $ifllion multi-currency line of
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credit. The consolidated statements of income c¢efteanagement fees earned under the IEF progra$t30® million , $10.6 million an@i11.z
million during 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectiv@lgese fees are included in other revenues.

CME and The Options Clearing Corporation (OCC) hayerpetual cross-margin arrangement, wherebgaaint firm may maintain a cross-
margin account in which a CME clearing firm's piasis in certain equity index futures and optiores @mbined with certain positions cleared
by OCC for purposes of calculating performance b@ggiirements. The performance bond deposits ddgdiatly by CME and OCC. Cross-
margin cash, securities and letters of credit ipiheld with OCC under the cross-margin agreementeflected at 50% of the total, or CME's
proportionate share per that agreement. If a paaticg firm defaults, the gain or loss on the ldation of the firm's open position and the
proceeds from the liquidation of the cross-margicoaint would be allocated 50% each to CME and ORB€.company believes that the
guarantee liability is immaterial and therefore hasrecorded any liability at December 31, 2013 .

In addition, CME has perpetual cross-margin agregsn@ith Fixed Income Clearing Corporation (FICQ)eseby the clearing firms' offsetting
positions with CME and FICC are subject to redugsedormance bond requirements. Clearing firms nagirgeparate performance bond
deposits with each clearing house, but dependirth®net offsetting positions between CME and FI€&:h clearing house may reduce that
firm's performance bond requirements. In the eeéatfirm default, the total liquidation net gainloss on the firm's offsetting open positions
and the proceeds from the liquidation of the pentamce bond collateral held by each clearing hossgporting offsetting positions would be
divided evenly between CME and FICC. Additionalfyafter liquidation of all the positions and catitral of the defaulting firm at each
respective clearing organization, and taking irtooaint any cross-margining loss sharing paymengspéthe participating clearing
organizations has a remaining liquidating surptungl any other participating clearing organizatias & remaining liquidating deficit, any
additional surplus from the liquidation would beastd with the other clearing house to the exteattitthas a remaining liquidating deficit. A
remaining surplus funds would be passed to thero@idy trustee. The company believes that the gueediability is immaterial and therefc
has not recorded any liability at December 31, 2013

Each CME clearing firm for futures and optionsaguired to deposit and maintain specified guarfumtg contributions in the form of cash or
approved securities. In the event that performéeels, guaranty fund contributions, and other assefuired to support clearing membership
of a defaulting CME clearing firm are inadequatéudill that clearing firm's outstanding financiabligation, the base guaranty fund for
contracts other than over-the-counter credit défaud interest rate swaps is available to coveemi@l losses after first utilizingg100.0 million

of corporate contributions designated by CME tauged in the event of a default of a clearing fionthe base guaranty fund.

CME maintains separate guaranty funds to suppertléaring firms that clear over-the-counter irgerate swap products and over-tiemtel
credit default swap products. The funds for ove-tbunter interest rate swaps and credit defaalirmtependent of the base guaranty fund an
are isolated to clearing firms for products in tespective asset class. Each clearing firm foretbaver-the-counter interest rate swaps and
cleared over-the-counter credit default swapsqsired to deposit and maintain specified guaranbgdfcontributions in the form of cash or
approved securities. In the event that performéewls, guaranty fund contributions and other assetsired to support clearing membership
of a defaulting clearing firm for cleared over-tb@dnter interest rate swap contracts are inadedqodtéfill that clearing firm's outstanding
financial obligation, the interest rate swaps cacts guaranty fund is available to cover potetbisdes after first utilizing $150.0 million of
corporate contributions designated by CME to beluisehe event of a default of a cleared over-thenter interest rate swap clearing firm. In
the event that performance bonds, guaranty funttibotions and other assets required to suppoaritig membership of a defaulting clearing
firm for cleared over-the-counter credit defaulapncontracts are inadequate to fulfill that clegfinm's outstanding financial obligation, the
credit default swaps contracts guaranty fund islavie to cover potential losses after first utiig corporate contributions designated by CME
to be used in the event of default of a cleared-tive-counter credit default swap clearing firm,iethis equal to the greater of $50.0 million
and 5% of the credit default swap guaranty fundioup maximum of $100.0 million .

CME maintains a 364 -day multiarrency line of credit with a consortium of doniestind international banks to be used in certdiraibns by
CME Clearing. CME may use the proceeds to prowedeporary liquidity in the unlikely event of a cleay firm default, in the event of a
liquidity constraint or default by a depositary ¢tadian of the collateral), or in the event of mperary disruption with the domestic payments
system that would delay payment of settlement tiariedbetween CME and its clearing firms. Clearimghfguaranty fund contributions
received in the form of cash, U.S. Treasury seegrior money market mutual funds as well as thiopeance bond assets of a defaulting firm
can be used to collateralize the facility. The lai€redit provides for borrowings of up to $7.0ibn . At December 31, 2013, guaranty fund
contributions available for CME clearing firms w.6 billion . CME has the option to request améase in the line from $7.0 billion £10.0
billion , subject to the approval of participatibgnks. In addition to the 364 -day fully securemmmitted multi-currency line of credit, the
company also has the option to use the $1.8 bitliaiti-currency revolving senior credit facility frovide liquidity for the clearing house in
the unlikely event of default.
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CMECE

The company maintains a guaranty fund for CMECH-the-counter commodity clearing firms. In the Wely event of default by a CMECE
clearing firm, the company would first apply ass#tthe defaulting clearing firm to satisfy its pagnt obligations. These assets include the
defaulting firm's performance bonds and guarantylfcontributions. Thereafter, if the default rensaimsatisfied after first applying assets of
the defaulting clearing firm to satisfy its paymebtigation, the company would use guaranty funatidoutions of $60.0 million of CMECE
funds for commaodity clearing firms. Commodity cliegr firms began contributing to the commaodity guriyafund in 2013 for a total of $3.0
million at December 31, 2013. Once the CMECE ctanfirms fully contribute to the commaodity guarafiiyd in early 2014, CMECE will

still use at least $20.0 million of CMECE fundsaddition to the commodity clearing firms' guarafutgd contributions in the event of a
default.

The company also maintains a guaranty fund for CEB€er-the-counter interest rate swap clearingdirim the unlikely event of default by a
CMECE clearing firm, the company would first applysets of the defaulting clearing firm to satis§ypayment obligations. These assets
include the defaulting firm's performance bonds gadranty fund contributions. If the default rensaimsatisfied, the company would apply
guaranty fund contributions of $53.6 million foteénest rate swap clearing firms that will be cdnited by CMECE. Interest rate swap clearing
firms began contributing to the commodity guardotyd in 2013 for a total of $110.9 million at Dedeen 31, 2013 .

CME is required under the Commodity Exchange Ad¢hmUnited States to segregate cash and secufiffEssited by clearing firms on behalf
of their customers. In addition, CME requires sggtmn of all funds deposited by its clearing firfrem operating funds. CMECE holds cash
and securities deposited by clearing firms in sgaged accounts, and maintains distinct accountgsfawn operating funds.

Cash and nowrash deposits held as performance bonds and gydauct contributions at fair value at December 81EGME and CMECE we!
as follows:

2013 2012
Non-Cash Non-Cash
Deposits Deposits
and and

(in millions) Cash IEF Funds Cash IEF Funds
Performance bonds $ 20,060.. $ 88,152.: $ 5647.. $ 77,414
Guaranty fund contributions 1,290.: 4,834.¢ 925.¢ 4,419.(
Cross-margin arrangements 3.1 76.5 — 83.1
Performance collateral for delivery 1.8 2.€ 12.2 0.t
Total $ 21,355.. $ 93,066.. $ 6,584.t $ 81,916.

Performance bonds and guaranty fund contributiodside collateral for clearing firms for both clesy houses. Cross-margin arrangements
include collateral for the cross-margin accounthwdCC and FICC. The performance bond collatenati&ivery includes deposits to meet
CBOT delivery requirements.

Cash performance bonds may include intraday segtiénf any, that is owed to the clearing firms gadd the following business day. The
balance of intraday settlements was $115.6 milind $175.9 million at December 31, 2013 and 2G#8pectively. Intraday settlements may
be invested on an overnight basis and are offsentsqual liability owed to clearing firms.

In addition to cash, securities and other non-ciegiosits, irrevocable letters of credit may be wsederformance bond deposits for clearing
firms. At December 31, these letters of credit,chtdre not included in the accompanying consol@tlbtdance sheets, were as follows:

(in millions) 2013 2012

Performance bonds $ 3,453.. $ 4,208.!
Guaranty fund contributions 25.C —
Performance collateral for delivery 1,005.t 1,019.
Total Letters of Credit $ 4,483.¢ $ 5,228.(

All cash, securities and letters of credit postegearformance bonds are only available to medfithacial obligations of that clearing firm to
the clearing houses.
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5. PROPERTY

A summary of the property accounts at Decembes 3tdsented below:

(in millions) 2013 2012 Estimated Useful Life
Land and land improvements $ 201 $ 20.1 10 - 20 yearg?
Building and building improvements 280.( 512.¢ 3 -39 years
Leasehold improvements 218.¢ 219.¢ 3 - 24 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 352.1 342.¢ 2 -7years
Software and software development costs 321.( 269.5 2 - 4 years
Total property 1,191.¢ 1,364.

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (678.9) (640.9)

Property, net $ 513.¢ % 724.(

(1) Estimated useful life applies only to land impements.

In November 2013, CME Group sold its building inviN¥ork for $200.0 million resulting in a net losE%27.1 million. At the time of the sal

the company leased back a portion of the prop&ttg.company recogn

ized the loss as an operatingnegpan 2013.

In April 2012, CME Group sold two buildings in Chigo for $151.5 million resulting in a gain of $20adlion . At the time of the sale, the
company leased back a portion of the property. Assalt of the leaseback, the company is recoggittia gain as a reduction in operating

expenses over the fifteen -year term of the lease.
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Intangible assets consisted of the following atédaber 31:

2013 2012

Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
(in millions) Assigned Value Amortization Value Assigned Value Amortization Value
Amortizable Intangible Assets:
Clearing firm, market data and other
customer relationships $ 2838.¢ $ (563.9) $ 22756 $ 2,838.4 $ (467.9 $ 2,371
Lease-related intangibles 2.2 (0.6 1.€ 25.4 (8.2 17.2
Technology-related intellectual property 33.¢ (19.9 14.C 29.4 (14.9 15.C
Trade name 0.2 (0.2 — 0.2 (0.2) 0.1
Total amortizable intangible assets $ 2875.( % (583.9 2291.: $ 2893¢ $ (490.0) 2,403."
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Trade names 450.( 450.(
Total intangible assets—other, net $ 2,741.: $ 2,853
Trading product§’ $ 17,175. $ 17,175.

1)

Trading products represent futures and optynducts acquired in our business combinations @BOT Holdings, Inc. (CBOT

Holdings), KCBT and NYMEX Holdings, Inc. (NYMEX HdIngs). Clearing and transaction fees revenuegemerated through the

trading of these products. These trading prodmetst of which
authorizations from the CFTC have no term limits.

have traded for decades, requirecaiziftion from the CFTC. Produ

As part of its sale of its building in New York Movember 2013, the company sold the rights to legseements with tenants occupying spac
within the building. The lease agreements, whighiacluded in lease-related intangibles, had &aoek value of $13.8 million on the date of

sale.

As part of its sale of two buildings in ChicagoApril 2012, the company sold the rights to leaseaments with tenants occupying space
within the buildings. The lease agreements, whiehrgcluded in lease-related intangibles, had doek value of $14.4 million on the date of

sale.
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In June 2012, the company contributed the DJI agseip to S&P/DJI. Contributed intangible assethwain aggregate net book valueb886.:
million included rights to customer agreementshiedogy-related intellectual property and trade aanin addition, the company sold CMA-
related intangible assets with a net book valug9o4 million .

In July 2012, the company recognized $17.0 milbbmtangible assets related to the acquisitioRigbt, Inc., including customer relationsh
and technology-related intellectual property. Inmection with the acquisition of KCBT in Novembé&X12, the company acquired trading
products, which are classified as indefinite-livetangible assets, in the amount of $134.8 million

The originally assigned useful lives for the anmatile intangible assets as of December 31, 2018saf@lows:

Clearing firm, market data and other customer itahips 5-30 year:
Lease-related intangible assets 24.5 year:
Technology-related intellectual property 4-5 years
Trade name 3 years

Total amortization expense for intangible assets $403.0 million , $116.2 million and $132.0 mifliéor the years ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 3132Qhe future estimated amortization expenseaeleo amortizable intangible assets is
expected to be as follows:

(in millions)

2014 $ 100.¢
2015 100.¢
2016 97.2
2017 96.:
2018 94.7
Thereafter 1,801.¢

Goodwill activity consisted of the following foréhyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Balance at Business Other Balance at
(in millions) December 31, 2012 Combinations Divestitures Activity December 31, 2013
CBOT Holdings $ 5,035. $ — 3 — % — 3 5,035.°
NYMEX Holdings 2,462.. — — — 2,462..
Other 69.C — — 2.1 71.1
Total Goodwill $ 7,566.¢ $ — 3 — 3 21 $ 7,569.(

Balance at Business Other Balance at
(in millions) December 31, 2011 Combinations Divestitures Activity December 31, 2012
CBOT Holdings $ 5,035 % — 3 — % — 3 5,035.°
NYMEX Holdings 2,462.: — — — 2,462.:
Index Services 434.% — (434.5 — —
Other 51.€ 46.% (28.9) — 69.C
Total Goodwill $ 7,984.( $ 46.2 % (463.9) 9 — 8 7,566.¢

In 2012, the company recognized goodwill in conioectvith the acquisitions of KCBT and Pivot, Inedadivested goodwill allocated to the
Index Services and CMA reporting units in conjuotivith the formation of S&P/DJI.

7. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

The company maintains various long-term investmastdescribed below. The investments are recordether assets in the consolidated
balance sheets.

BM&FBOVESPA S.A. The company owns an approximate bfterest in BM&FBOVESPA S. A. (BM&FBOVESPA). BM&FBRESPA is ¢
stock and derivatives exchange in Brazil. The cam@eccounts for its investment in BM&FBOVESPA asaanilable-for-sale security. The
fair value of the investment was $473.1 million &&90.6 million at December 31, 2013
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and 2012 , respectively. The cost basis of thesiment was $356.9 million at December 31, 2013204®? . The company and
BM&FBOVESPA have entered into several agreememsiiting co-location, licensing, order routing aedtinology development
arrangements.

Bolsa Mexicana de Valores, S.A.B de C.\‘n March 2010, the company acquired an approxirB&tenterest in Bolsa Mexicana de Valores,
S.A.B. de C.V. (Bolsa Mexicana), a financial exoppamperator in Mexico. The company accounts fanitestment in Bolsa Mexicana stock
as an available-for-sale security. The fair valfithe investment in Bolsa Mexicana at December2B13 and 2012 was $26.8 million and
$29.3 million , respectively. The cost basis of itvestment was $17.3 million at December 31, 28132012 . The company and Bolsa
Mexicana maintain a strategic partnership thauides an order routing agreement for derivative petsd

Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Berhad.The company owns a 25% interest in Bursa Malaysiavtives Berhad (Bursa Malaysia), and account
for its investment in Bursa Malaysia using the ggmethod of accounting. The company's investme®ursa Malaysia was $28.4 million at
December 31, 2013 . The company and Bursa Malégsia entered into several agreements includingeaggats to provide licensing, order
routing and trade matching services.

DME Holdings Limited. The company owns an approximate 50% interest in kings Limited (DME Holdings), and accounts fisr
investment in DME Holdings using the equity metlodéiccounting. The company's investment in DME hitald was $14.1 million at
December 31, 2013 . The company and DME Holdingsitaia an agreement for Dubai Mercantile Exchan@ ) futures contracts to be
exclusively traded on the CME Globex platform.

S&P/DJI Indices LLC. The company owns a 27% interest in S&P/DJI and @usofor its investment in S&P/DJI using the equitgthod of
accounting. The company's investment in S&P/DJI $848.7 million at December 31, 2013. The compaag/lbng-term exclusive licensing
agreements with S&P/DJI to list products basedhenStandard & Poor's Indices and on Dow Jonesésdic

8. DEBT

Short-term debt consisted of the following at Deben31:

(in millions) 2013 2012

$750.0 million fixed rate notes due August 2018tesl rate of 5.40% $ —  $ 749.7
$750.0 million fixed rate notes due February 2Gtdted rate of 5.75% 749.¢ —
Total short-term debt $ 749.¢ § 749.7

Long-term debt consisted of the following at DecemBi.:

(in millions) 2013 2012
$750.0 million fixed rate notes due February 2Gtdted rate of 5.75% $ — ¢ 749.(
$612.5 million fixed rate notes due March 2018testaate of 4.40%) 610.5 610.]
$750.0 million fixed rate notes due September 282&ed rate of 3.0098

748.( 7477
$750.0 million fixed rate notes due September 268t8¢ed rate of 5.30%

748.7 —
Total long-term debt $ 2,107.: $ 2,106.¢
(1) In February 2010, the company entered intoradrd-starting interest rate swap agreement ttoalified the interest obligation

associated with these notes so that the intergsibpmon the notes effectively became fixed ate 084.46% .

(2) In August 2012, the company entered into wéod-starting interest rate swap agreement thaifraddhe interest obligation
associated with these notes so that the intergsibpmon the notes effectively became fixed at@ 083.32% .

3 In August 2012, CME Group entered into a fadvatarting interest rate swap agreement that rieetithe interest obligation
associated with these notes so that the intergsifmon the notes effectively became fixed ata 084.73%
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Long-term debt maturities, at par value, were devic as of December 31, 2013 :

(in millions)

2014 $ =
2015 —
2016 —
2017 —
2018 612.t
Thereafter 1,500.(

The fair values of the fixed rate notes due 20D222and 2043 were estimated using quoted marketgend are considered level 2 liabilities
under the classification hierarchy for fair valueasurements. The fair value of the fixed rate ndtes2018, which is considered a level 3
liability, was derived using a standard valuationd®l with market-based observable inputs including. Treasury yields and interest rate
spreads. For further information on the three-lel@bsification hierarchy of fair value measuremsesée note 19. At December 31, 2013, the
fair values of the fixed rate notes by maturityedatere as follows:

(in millions) Fair Value

$750.0 million fixed rate notes due February 2Gtdted rate of 5.75% $ 754.(
$612.5 million fixed rate notes due March 2018testaate of 4.40% 669.]
$750.0 million fixed rate notes due September 28f#ed rate of 3.00% 705.<
$750.0 million fixed rates notes due September 26#ed rate of 5.30% 791.¢

9. DERIVATIVE INVESTMENTS

The company mitigates certain financial exposuvdaterest rate risk through the use of derivatinancial instruments as part of its risk
management program. All derivatives have been daggl as cash flow hedges.

In August 2012, the company entered into two fodastarting interest rate swap contracts, with agregate notional value of $1.5 billion , to
hedge the risk of changes in underlying benchmatskést rates associated with the expected isssafidixed rate debt. One of these swap
contracts was settled in conjunction with the isseaof fixed rate debt in September 2012. The ativap contract was settled in conjunction
with the issuance of the fixed rate debt in Sepem2013. The hedges were considered highly effeclihe effective portion is included in
other comprehensive income and is being amortized the term of the debt.

The fair value and location of outstanding deriwafinstruments in the consolidated balance sheet agfollows at December 31:

(in millions) Balance Sheet Location 2013 2012
Interest rate contract Other liabilities $ — 3 1.C

The pretax effect of derivative instruments on the cordatied statements of income as well as accumulalbed comprehensive income (Of
within the consolidated statements of comprehernisis@me and consolidated statements of sharehoketguity for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Gains (Losses) Gains (Losses) Reclassified from Gains (Losses)
Recognized in OCI Accumulated OCI Recognized in Income
(Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Ineffective Portion)
(in millions) 2013 2012 Location 2013 2012 Location 2013 2012
Interest and other Gains (losses) on derivati
Interest rate contrac $ 128.& $  (25.9 borrowing costs $ (1.6) $ (1.2) investments $ — $ 0.2

At December 31, 2013 , the company expects tossiffa$1.4 million of net gains on derivative instrents from accumulated other
comprehensive income to net income as a net reduttdiinterest expense during the next twelve nsnth
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10. INCOME TAXES

Income before income taxes and the income tax pimviconsisted of the following for the years enBetember 31. The company is subject
to regulation under a wide variety of U.S., fedestdte and foreign tax laws and regulations.

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Income before income taxes:
Domestic $ 1599.. $ 1,703 $ 1,952.¢
Foreign 1.8 (10.7) (16.2)
Total $ 1,601.C $ 1,693 $ 1,936.!
Income tax provision:
Current:
Federal $ 491.¢ $ 585.:. $ 644.(
State 128.¢ 117.¢ 135.¢
Foreign 8.2 1.7 1.4
Total 628.¢ 704.t 780.¢
Deferred:
Federal (157.¢) 50.2 300.2
State 153.¢ 37.C (954.))
Foreign (1.8 (5.2 (4.8
Total (6.0) 82.2 (658.7)
Total Income Tax Provision $ 622.¢ $ 786.1 $ 122.1

Reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal incotae rate to the effective tax rate is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Statutory U.S. federal tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4.8 4.8 6.3
Domestic production activities deduction (7.7) — —
Increase (decrease) in domestic valuation allowance 0.€ — (2.5
Impact of revised state and local apportionmenineges 6.€ 1.C (33.9
Deferred taxes associated with McGraw venture avid Gale — 6.2 —
Other, net (0.9 (0.6) 0.¢
Effective Tax Rate 38.€% 46.5% 6.2%

In 2013, the effective tax rate was higher thanstla¢utory tax rate due to changes in estimat¢até &ind local income tax apportionment
factors. The changes in estimate of state and ilocame tax apportionment factors significantlypiacted the company’s deferred tax expens
and expense related to uncertain tax positions.ifidrease in effective tax rate was partially aftsg benefits accrued for the Section 199
Domestic Productions Activities Deduction (Secti®® deduction). The Section 199 deduction is edléd certain functions performed by the
company's electronic trading platforms. The beseficrued include the 2013 estimated benefit alsasddenefits accrued for prior periods in
which tax returns have been filed claiming the d¢tidn or are expected to be filed claiming the didum.

In 2012, the effective tax rate was higher thanstla¢utory tax rate because of an increase tottame tax provision due to the establishment
of deferred income tax liabilities associated vifite McGraw venture.

In 2011, the effective tax rate was lower thangtatutory tax rate because of a change in stateppartionment which resulted in a reduction
in the company's income tax provision largely dua tevaluation of its existing deferred incomeltakilities. Also in 2011, the company
began marking to market its investment in BM&FBO\RZSwhich resulted in a reduction in valuation allowes on other unrealized capital
losses previously reserved.
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At December 31, deferred income tax assets (ltas)i consisted of the following:

(in millions) 2013 2012

Net Current Deferred Income Tax Assets:
Unrealized loss on securities $ 3C % 3.4
Stock-based compensation 19.1 12.¢
Accrued expenses and other 30.2 17.¢

Net Current Deferred Income Tax Assets $ 52.2 % 34.1

Net Non-Current Deferred Income Tax Assets:
Domestic unrealized loss on investment in BM&FBO VWS $ 59.7 $ =
Foreign losses 18.¢ 22.7%
Domestic losses 8.5 10.2
Stock-based compensation 49.2 47.¢
Deferred compensation and other benefit plans 23.¢ 27.k
Property 35.2 —
Unrealized losses on securities 22.¢ 29.7
Accrued expenses and other 13.¢ 49.7
Subtotal 232.( 187.2
Valuation allowance (47.5) (24.9)
Total non-current deferred income tax assets 184.t 162.¢

Non-Current Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
Domestic unrealized gain on investment in BM&FBO\RES — (21.¢)
Purchased intangible assets (7,434.) (7,523.9)
Property — (30.5)
Total non-current deferred income tax liabilities (7,434.) (7,575.)

Net Non-Current Deferred Income Tax Liabilities $ (7,249.7) $ (7,413.)

A valuation allowance is recorded when it is makely-than-not that some portion or all of the dedel income tax assets may not be realizec
The ultimate realization of the deferred incomedagets depends on the ability to generate suffitéxable income of the appropriate
character in the future and in the appropriaten@irisdictions.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the company had skixrend foreign income tax loss carry forward$df7.3 million and $127.5 million ,
respectively. These amounts primarily related ssés from the acquisition of Swapstream Limitedigndffiliates, the acquisition of Pivot,
Inc., and losses incurred in the operation of waiforeign entities. At December 31, 2013, the camypalso had net built-in, unrealized capital
losses of $223.4 million . There were no net bniltunrealized capital losses at December 31, 281Pecember 31, 2013 and 2012, the
company determined that it was not more-likely-thab that deferred income tax assets related ta¢haisition of Swapstream Limited and
affiliates, other deferred income tax assets cdefitam the start-up of various foreign operationd aertain builtn losses will be fully realize
As a result, valuation allowances of $47.5 millaomd $24.8 million were recorded at December 313201d 2012.

The following is a summary of the company’s unrategd tax benefits:

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011

Gross unrecognized tax benefits $ 231.¢ $ 377 % 36.¢
Unrecognized tax benefits, net of tax impacts heofurisdictions 183.: 24.t 24.¢
Unrecognized interest and penalties related tortaiogtax positions 42.5 20.1 17.1
Interest and penalties recognized in the cons@dlatatements of income 22.4 3.C 1.€

The company does not believes it is reasonablyifgleshat within the next twelve months, unrecogeiziomestic tax benefits will change k
significant amount.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011

Balance at January 1 $ 377 $ 36.6 $ 56.4
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 26.1 5.3 6.C
Additions for tax positions of prior years 168.4 3.2 0.€
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (0.9 (2.0 (22.9
Reductions resulting from the lapse of statutdgfations (0.2 (2.2 —
Settlements with taxing authorities — (3.9 3.3

Balance at December 31 $ 231 $ 377 $ 36.¢

The company is subject to U.S. federal income sawaell as income taxes in lllinois and multiple etistate, local and foreign jurisdictions.
of December 31, 2013, substantially all federal state income tax matters had been concludedghrdd07 and 2004, respectively.

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension PlansCME maintains a non-contributory defined benefghcdalance pension plan for eligible employees. GNpEan provides for a
contribution to the cash balance account basedjeraad earnings and includes salary and cash beiutee definition of earnings.
Employees who have completed a continuous 12-mumaribd of employment and have reached the age af@gligible to participate.
Participant cash balance accounts receive an gtteredit equal to the greater of the one-yearteoisnaturity yield for U.S. Treasury notes or
4.0% . Participants become vested in their accaaftes three years of service. The measurementusaie for the plan is December 31.

The following is a summary of the change in prageldbenefit obligation:

(in millions) 2013 2012

Balance at January 1 $ 181.€¢ $ 148.¢
Service cost 18.C 16.C
Interest cost 7.9 7.
Actuarial (gain) loss (23.9 18.t
Benefits paid (8.4 (9.6)

Balance at December 31 $ 1757 % 181.¢

The aggregate accumulated benefit obligation wag 8lmillion and $158.8 million at December 31, 2@hd 2012 , respectively.

The following is a summary of the change in failueaof plan assets:

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011

Balance at January 1 $ 183.¢ $ 149.1 % 121.:
Actual return on plan assets 18.1 16.4 4.t
Employer contributions — 28.C 28.C
Benefits paid (8.9 (9.6) 4.7)

Balance at December 31 $ 193¢ $ 183.¢ $ 149.1




75




Table of Contents

The plan assets are classified into a fair valeeanchy in their entirety based on the lowest l@féhput that is significant to each asset or
liability’s fair value measurement. Valuation tedures for level 2 assets use significant observigiplets such as quoted prices for similar
assets, quoted market prices in inactive marketo#mer inputs that are observable or can be stggbbly observable market data. The fair
value of each major category of plan assets asoéMber 31 is indicated below.

(in millions) 2013 2012
Level 2:
Money market funds $ 44 % 29.4
Mutual funds:
Fixed income 60.7 50.¢
Foreign equity 59.7 49.1
U.S. equity 59.€ 47.£
Commodity 9.2 7.2
Total $ 193¢ $ 183.¢

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the fair valuearfsion plan assets exceeded the projected beb&fjation by $17.9 million and $2.3
million , respectively. This excess was recorded asn-current pension asset in other assets icothsolidated balance sheet.

CME's funding goal is to have its pension plan 1d0%aed at each year-end on a projected benefgatibn basis, while also satisfying any
minimum required contribution and obtaining the maxm tax deduction. Year-end 2013 assumptions baea used to project the assets anc
liabilities from December 31, 2013 to DecemberZ114. The result of this projection is that estimatedbilities would exceed the fair value
the plan assets at December 31, 2014 by approXin®8es million . Accordingly, it is estimated that$3.5 million contribution in 2014 will
allow the company to meet its funding goal.

The components of net pension expense and the psasused to determine the end-of-year projelbtatkfit obligation and net pension
expense in aggregate are indicated below:

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Components of Net Pension Expense:
Service cost $ 18.C ¢ 16 $ 13k
Interest cost 7.€ 7.6 7.4
Expected return on plan assets (13.9) (11.0 (9.0
Recognized net actuarial loss 3.1 2.t iz
Net Pension Expense $ 157 % 154 % 13.4
Assumptions Used to Determine End-of-Year Benefiligation:
Discount rate 5.1(% 4.1(% 5.0(%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0C 5.0C 5.0C
Cash balance interest crediting rate 4.0C 4.0C 4.0C
Assumptions Used to Determine Net Pension Expense:
Discount rate 4.1(% 5.0(% 5.7%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0C 5.0C 5.0C
Expected return on plan assets 7.5C 7.7¢8 7.7¢8
Interest crediting rate 4.0C 4.0C 4.0C

The discount rate for the plan was determined basgatie market value of a theoretical settlementljuortfolio. This portfolio consisted of
U.S. dollar denominated Aa-rated corporate bondssache full maturity spectrum. A single equivaldiscount rate was determined to align
the present value of the required cash flow witt 8ettlement value. The resulting discount rate reélective of both the current interest rate
environment and the plan's distinct liability chaeaistics.

The basis for determining the expected rate ofmedm plan assets for the plan is comprised oftleamponents: historical returns, industry
peers and forecasted return. The plan's totalrésuexpected to equal the composite performanteeo$ecurity markets over the long term.
The security markets are represented by the returnv@rious domestic and international stock, bamdl commodity indexes. These returns ar
weighted according to the allocation of plan astetach market and measured individually.
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The overall objective of the plan is to achieveuiegg long-term rates of return in order to meétife benefit payments. The component of the
investment policy for the plan that has the magi§icant impact on returns is the asset mix. Tégeamix has a minimum and maximum ra
depending on asset class. The plan assets arsitiaegtto minimize the risk of large losses by ame or more individual assets. Such
diversification is accomplished, in part, througk selection of asset mix and investment managembatasset allocation for the plan, by &
category, at December 31 was as follows:

2013 2012
Fixed income 31.2% 27.€%
U.S. equity 30.¢ 25.¢
Foreign equity 30.¢ 26.7
Commodity 4.7 3.6
Money market funds .3 16.C
The range of target allocation percentages for 2054 follows:
Minimum Maximum

Fixed income 33.(% 45.(%
U.S. equity 23.t 35.C
Foreign equity 23.t 35.C
Commodity 2.C 8.C

At times, the company may determine that it is Beagy to place some assets in cash equivalenttimgass in order to pay expected plan
liabilities. Given this, the actual asset allocatfor the plan may not fall within the target abidion ranges from time to time.

According to the plan's investment policy, the gkanot allowed to invest in securities that conmpise independence, short sales of securities
directly owned by the plan, securities purchasedangin or other uses of borrowed funds, derivativet used for hedging purposes, restri
stock or illiquid securities or any other transastprohibited by employment laws. If the plan dilginvests in short-term and long-term debt
obligations, the investments are limited to obligia$ rated at the highest rating category by Stah&aPoor's (S&P) or Moody's.

The pre-tax balance and activity of the prior ssedosts and actuarial losses for the pension plaich are included in other comprehensive
income (loss), for 2013 are as follows:

Prior
Service Actuarial
(in millions) Costs Loss
Balance at January 1 $ 02 $ 53.¢
Unrecognized net gain — (28.9)
Recognized as a component of net pension expense (0.7 (3.2
Balance at December 31 $ 01 $ 22.t

The company expects to amortize $1.1 millidractuarial loss and prior service costs from auglated other comprehensive income (loss)
net periodic benefit costs in 2014 .

At December 31, 2013, anticipated benefit paym&ota the plan in future years are as follows:

(in millions)

2014 $ 11.¢
2015 13.2
2016 14.Z
2017 15.5
2018 17.1
2019-2023 101.:

Savings PlansCME maintains a defined contribution savings plarspant to Section 401(k) of the Internal RevenaodeZ whereby all U.S.



employees are participants and have the optioortribute to this plan. CME matches employee cbations up to 3% of the employee's base
salary and may make additional discretionary cbations.
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In addition to the plan for U.S. employees, the pany maintains defined contribution savings plamsemployees in international locations.

Aggregate expense for all of the defined contrimugavings plans amounted to $9.9 million , $8.8ioniand $8.6 million in 2013 , 2012 and
2011 , respectively.

CME Non-Quialified Plans. CME maintains non-qualified plans, under which jggsants may make assumed investment choices esiect

to amounts contributed on their behalf. Although regjuired to do so, CME invests such contributiongssets that mirror the assumed
investment choices. The balances in these plarsubiect to the claims of general creditors ofdkehange and totaled $49.6 million 8B.7
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectiv&lthough the value of the plans is recorded aasset in marketable securities in the
consolidated balance sheets, there is an equalfésedting liability. The investment results of #geplans have no impact on net income as the
investment results are recorded in equal amourtisttoinvestment income and compensation and derefpense.

Supplemental Savings Plan. CME maintains a supplemental plan to provide bénédr employees who have been impacted by statlitoits
under the provisions of the qualified pension aanrggs plan. Employees in this plan are subjetii¢ovesting requirements of the underlying
qualified plans.

Deferred Compensation Plan. A deferred compensation plan is maintained by CMigler which eligible employees and members of treed
of directors may contribute a percentage of thempensation and defer income taxes thereon uettithe of distribution.

COMEX Members' Retirement Plan and Benefits COMEX maintains a retirement and benefit plan uniderCOMEX Members'
Recognition and Retention Plan (MRRP). This plasvjates benefits to certain members of the COMEXsitim based on long-term
membership, and participation is limited to indivéds who were COMEX division members prior to NYMEXcquisition of COMEX in 199
No new participants were permitted into the plaerathe date of this acquisition. Under the terinthe MRRP, the company is required

fund the plan with a minimum annual contributior$0f8 million until it is fully funded. All benefitto be paid under the MRRP are based on
reasonable actuarial assumptions which are basmuthp amounts that are available and are expéxtee available to pay benefits. Total
contributions to the plan were $0.8 million for kahe years 2011 through 2013 . At December 31320 2012 , the obligation for the
MRRP totaled $20.3 million and $22.7 million , respvely. Assets with a fair value of $19.2 milliand $18.4 million have been allocated to
this plan at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respgtimnd are included in marketable securities@ash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheets. The balances in piese are subject to the claims of general cresltdiCOMEX.

12. COMMITMENTS

Operating LeasesCME Group has entered into various non-cancellaprating lease agreements, with the most significaing as follows:

* In November 2013, the company sold a buildinléw York and leased back a portion of the propérhe operating lease, which has
an initial lease term ending on December 31, 206@Btains two consecutive renewal options for fieang.

e In April 2012, the company sold two buildings@hicago at 141 W. Jackson and leased back a patithe property. The operating
lease, which has an initial lease term ending onl 8p, 2027, contains four consecutive renewalay# for five years.

* InJanuary 2011, the company entered into an dpgrigase for office space in London. The initedde term, which became effect
on January 20, 2011, terminates on March 24, 20&B6,an option to terminate without penalty in Janu2021.

* In July 2008, the company renegotiated the djpgrdease for its headquarters at 20 South Wabkiee in Chicago. The lease, which
has an initial term ending on November 30, 2022taios two consecutive renewal options for sevehtan years and a contraction
option which allows the company to reduce its ogedigpace after November 30, 2018. In additionctirapany may exercise a lease
expansion option in December 2017.

* In August 2006, the company entered into anatpey lease for additional office space in Chicafue initial lease term, which
became effective on August 10, 2006, terminateN@rember 30, 2023. The lease contains two 5 -ye@wal options beginning in
2023.
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At December 31, 2013, future minimum payments umda-cancellable operating leases were payalfi@las/s (in millions):

Year

2014 $ 53.C
2015 53.€
2016 42.C
2017 42.%
2018 41.€
Thereafter 263.]
Total $ 495.¢

Total rental expense, including equipment rentals %50.5 million in 2013, $46.1 million in 2012da$41.0 million in 2011 .

Other Commitments. Commitments include material contractual purchddigations that are non-cancellable. Purchase atitigs relate to
advertising, licensing, hardware, software and meai@nce as well as telecommunication services.e&eimber 31, 2013, future minimum
payments due under purchase obligations were pagatiollows (in millions):

Year

2014 $ 14.2
2015 8.1
2016 3.4
2017 2.¢
2018 2.2
Thereafter 3.t
Total $ 34.4

13. CONTINGENCIES

Legal and Regulatory Matters. In 2008, Fifth Market, Inc. (Fifth Market) filed@mplaint against CME Group and CME in the Delaware
District Court seeking a permanent injunction agal®ME's Globex system and unquantified enhancethdas for what the plaintiff alleges is
willful infringement of two patents, in addition twsts, expenses and attorneys' fees. The casgtayasl pending the outcome of CME's
request for reexamination by the U.S. Patent aaddmark Office (USPTO). The reexaminations resuteshme claims being rejected and
others being confirmed. In June 2013, the cousrdithe stay. The validity of the patents, howeramains subject to further review by the
USPTO. Based on its investigation to date and &divam legal counsel, the company believes thisiswvithout merit and intends to defend
itself vigorously against these charges.

In 2009, CME and CBOT filed a complaint against lotvGarber in the Northern District of lllinois &&®g a declaratory judgment that
neither CME nor CBOT infringed the Garber paterttjoh relates to electronic market makers, andttte@patent is invalid and unenforceable.
The Technology Research Group (TRG) was substitiotelllr. Garber in 2009 and TRG filed counterclaiatieging patent infringement and
other related claims. In 2011, the case was digdissth the right to reinstate pending the outcariha reexamination by the USPTO. In
August and October 2013, the USPTO issued actemdting in the rejection of all TRG’s claims comiiihg the reexamination process. In
January 2014, TRG appealed the decision of the @WSFased on its investigation to date and adviosflegal counsel, the company belie
this suit is without merit and intends to defersgit vigorously against these charges.

In 2009, Realtime Data LLC (Realtime) filed a comipt against CME Group and other exchanges allegilifyl infringement of four patents
which was later amended to add CBOT and NYMEX dsratants. Subsequently, two additional lawsuitsewied each adding a claim for i
infringement of an additional patent. Both of thésesuits were consolidated with the original actiRealtime is seeking a permanent
injunction, enhanced damages, attorneys' fees@std.dn January 2014, the Court of Appeals forRbeéeral Circuit ruled in CME Group's
favor and affirmed rulings of the Southern DistaftNew York. Realtime filed a petition for a rehieg before the same panel of judges. Base
on its investigation to date and advice from legainsel, the company believes this suit is withmatit and intends to defend itself vigorously
against these charges.

The foregoing legal matters involve alleged infentents of intellectual property which, due to thgiture, involve potential liability that is
uncertain, difficult to quantify and involves a widange of potential outcomes. The company belithaghe matters are without merit, and
company intends to defend itself vigorously agaihstclaims. We expect the re-
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examinations by the USPTO in the Fifth Market aratt@r matters, including any appeals thereof,daltén a determination of the validity of
the patents at issue which we expect will havengract on the merits of the matters. Given the uag#y of the potential outcome of the re-
examinations and the potential rehearing of thdtReamatter as well as other factors which mayeptally impact the resolution of these
matters, at this time the company is unable toreg# the reasonably possible loss or range of nesp possible loss in the unlikely event it
were found to be liable at trial in these matters.

A number of lawsuits were filed in federal courtNew York on behalf of all commodity account hokler customers of MF Global who had
not received a return of 100% of their funds. Thasdters have been consolidated into a singleraatiéederal court in New York, and a
consolidated amended class action complaint wad ih November 5, 2012. On November 6, 2013, CMianced that it has reached an
agreement in principle to resolve the class aditmyation. In an agreement between the trustee@¥id, CME will be allowed to assert a
$29.0 million claim against MF Global based on exges incurred by CME as a result of MF Global’skoaptcy. In a separate agreement
between CME and the customer representatives, CAdEabreed to deliver $14.5 million , one-half & thstribution that it will receive from
the trustee, to the customer representatives $trilglition to MF Global's former customers. Theesgments are subject to court approval
before they can become effective. In connectioh wie settlements between the company and theérasid the customers, the company’s
$550.0 million financial guarantee to the bankryptastee to cover any shortfall in the bankrupidly be extinguished. The company believes
that the likelihood of payment to the trustee isy/vemote. As a result, the guarantee liabilitgséimated to be immaterial at December 31,
2013.

In February 2013, the CFTC filed suit against NYMB&Xd two former employees alleging disclosure affickential customer information in
violation of the Commodity Exchange Act. Based lom initial review of the complaint, the companyibeés that it has strong factual and le
defenses to the claim.

In the normal course of business, the company déasumatters with its regulators raised duringleggry examinations or otherwise subjec
their inquiry and oversight. These matters couttliitein censures, fines, penalties or other sanstiManagement believes the outcome of any
resulting actions will not have a material impagtits consolidated financial position or resultoperations. However, the company is unable
to predict the outcome or the timing of the ultimegsolution of these matters, or the potentia@djmpenalties or injunctive or other equitable
relief, if any, that may result from these matters.

In addition, the company is a defendant in, andpuasntial for, various other legal proceedingsiag from its regular business activities.
While the ultimate results of such proceedingsm@ajedhe company cannot be predicted with certathiyy company believes that the resolution
of any of these matters on an individual basis moll have a material impact on its consolidatedrfaial position or results of operations.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the company hadied&11.3 million and $13.2 million , respectiveiyr legal and regulatory matters that
were probable and estimable.

Intellectual Property Indemnifications. Certain agreements with customers and other tlirtigs related to accessing the CME platforms;
utilizing market data services; and licensing CMEASI software may contain indemnifications from Irgetual property claims that may be
made against them as a result of their use offipéicable products and/or services. The potentialre claims relating to these
indemnifications cannot be estimated and theraforkability has been recorded.

14. GUARANTEES

Mutual Offset Agreement. CME and Singapore Exchange Limited (SGX) have aualuiffset agreement with a current term througto®er
2014. This agreement enables market participardpé¢a a futures position on one exchange and kdqeid on the other. The term of the
agreement will automatically renew for a one-yesniqal unless either party provides advance nofi¢keir intent to terminate. CME can
maintain collateral in the form of U.S. Treasurgggies or irrevocable letters of credit. At Dedmn 31, 2013 , CME was contingently liable
to SGX on irrevocable letters of credit totaling$3) million . Regardless of the collateral, CMEatantees all cleared transactions submitted
through SGX and would initiate procedures desigoezhtisfy these financial obligations in the eveft default, such as the use of
performance bonds and guaranty fund contributidiieodefaulting clearing firm. The company belistlat the guarantee liability is
immaterial and therefore has not recorded anylifalit December 31, 2013 .

Family Farmer and Rancher Protection Fund. In April 2012, the company established the Famidyrrer and Rancher Protection Fund (the
Fund). The Fund is designed to provide payments$p @ertain maximum levels, to family farmers, fa@is and other agricultural industry
participants who use the company's agriculturatipets and who suffer losses to their segregatetuatdalances due to their CME clearing
member becoming insolvent. Under the terms of thedi-farmers and ranchers are eligible for up & @20 per participant. Farming and
ranching cooperatives are eligible for up to $100,per cooperative. The Fund has an aggregate maxipayment amount of $100.0 million .
Since its establishment, the Fund has made payroéapproximately $2.0 million , which leaves $9&ilion available for future claims. If
payments to participants were to exceed this am@ayments would be pro-rated. Clearing membersastbmers must register in
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advance with the company and provide certain doosatien in order to substantiate their eligibilifyjhe company believes that its guarantee
liability is immaterial and therefore has not redeat any liability at December 31, 2013 .

15. REDEEMABLE NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The following summarizes the changes in redeemadrecontrolling interest for the years presenteah{dontrolling interests that do not
contain redemption features are presented in giersents of equity.

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at January 1 $ 80.6 % 70.2 % 68.1
Allocation of stock-based compensation — — 0.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to rededenadn-controlling
interest N5 10.t 2.1
Purchase of non-controlling interest (82.9) — —
Balance at December 31 $ — § 80.t $ 70.¢

In April 2013, the company purchased the remairdidg non-controlling interest in its business veatwith Dow Jones for $80.0 million .
Prior to the purchase, the company maintained 424nterest in S&P/DJI. As a result of the purchaithe non-controlling interest, the
company's interest in S&P/DJI increased to 27%e ddmpany recognized a $165.6 million tax benkfiidgh additional paid-in capital. The
tax benefit was due to a reduction in deferreditdilities related to the tax basis in Index Holgs. The company also recognized a $2.3
million gain through additional paid-in capital atd to the purchase of the non-controlling interes

16. CAPITAL STOCK

Shares Outstanding.The following table presents information regardiagital stock:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2013 2012

Class A common stock authorized 1,000,00( 1,000,00(
Class A common stock issued and outstanding 333,85z 331,83z
Class B-1 common stock authorized, issued andandstg 0.6 0.6
Class B-2 common stock authorized, issued andandsig 0.8 0.8
Class B-3 common stock authorized, issued andandstg 13 13
Class B-4 common stock authorized, issued andandsig 0.4 0.4

In May 2012, the company's board of directors deda five-for-one split of its Class A common $t@y way of a stock dividend to its Class
A and Class B shareholders. The stock split waectife July 20, 2012 for all shareholders of recamduly 10, 2012. As a result of the stock
split, all amounts related to shares and earniegsipare were retroactively restated. Since theglae of the class A common stock remainec
at $0.01 per share, the recorded value for classmmon stock was retroactively adjusted to reflleetpar value of total outstanding shares.

CME Group has no shares of preferred stock issndaatstanding.

Associated Trading RightsMembers of CME, CBOT, NYMEX and COMEX own or leasading rights which entitle them to access the
trading floors, discounts on trading fees and ttjletito vote on certain exchange matters as pravideby the rules of the particular exchange
and CME Group's or the subsidiaries' organizatidonalments. Each class of CME Group Class B constaok is associated with a
membership in a specific division for trading at EMA CME trading right is a separate asset thabtgart of or evidenced by the associated
share of Class B common stock of CME Group. The€Bcommon stock of CME Group is intended onlgrisure that the Class B
shareholders of CME Group retain rights with respecepresentation on the board of directors gmt@val rights with respect to the core
rights described below.

Trading rights at CBOT are evidenced by Class B braships in CBOT, at NYMEX by Class A membershipdliYMEX and at COMEX by
COMEX Division Memberships. Members of CBOT, NYMEXd COMEX do not have any rights to elect membétkaboard of directors
and are not entitled to receive dividends or otligtributions on their memberships or trading pésmi

Core Rights.Holders of CME Group Class B common shares havedghéto approve changes in specified rights ne¢ato the trading
privileges at CME associated with those sharess@lere rights relate primarily to trading rightfgctions, certain trading fee protections anc
certain membership benefit protections. Votes @anges to these core rights are weighted
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by class. Each class of Class B common stock fafotlowing number of votes on matters relatingdoe rights: Class B-1, six votes per
share; Class B-2, two votes per share; Class B3 yote per share; and Class B-4, 1/6 th of one pet share. The approval of a majority of
the votes cast by the holders of shares of ClassnBinon stock is required in order to approve aranges to core rights. Holders of shares of
Class A common stock do not have the right to wetehanges to core rights.

Voting Rights. With the exception of the matters reserved to hrsldé CME Group Class B common stock, holders offC&foup common
stock vote together on all matters for which a vafteommon shareholders is required. In these yetsh holder of shares of Class A or Clas:
B common stock of CME Group has one vote per share.

Transfer Restrictions. Each class of CME Group Class B common stock ifestibo transfer restrictions contained in the {dieate of
Incorporation of CME Group. These transfer regtsiitd prohibit the sale or transfer of any shareSlas B common stock separate from the
sale of the associated trading rights.

Election of Directors. The CME Group Board of Directors is currently comed of 29 members. Holders of Class B-1, ClassaB¢? Class B-
3 common stock have the right to elect six diresstof which three are elected by Class B-1 shadehs] two are elected by Class B-2
shareholders and one is elected by ClagssBareholders. The remaining directors are eldnidtie Class A and Class B shareholders voti
a single class.

Dividends.Holders of Class A and Class B common stock of GMBup are entitled to receive proportionately sdiefidends, if any, as may
be declared by the CME Group board of directors.

CME Group Omnibus Stock Plan.CME Group has adopted an Omnibus Stock Plan unbehvetock-based awards may be made to
employees. A total of 40.2 million Class A commadock shares have been reserved for awards undetaheAwards totaling 22.8 million
shares have been granted and are outstanding etleawn exercised under this plan at December 3B @bte 17).

CBOT Holdings Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan. In connection with the merger with CBOT HoldingsviE Group assumed CBOT
Holdings' 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan. @nthe plan, stock-based awards may be made @irtelitectors, officers and other key
employees or individuals. A total of 2.3 millionaslbks have been reserved for awards under thelplannnection with receiving shareholder
approval to increase the amount of authorized shamder the Omnibus Stock Plan in May 2009, thepaom undertook to freeze future
awards under this plan. As a result, 1.6 millioarsis that remained authorized for future awardeutids plan were frozen.

NYMEX Holdings Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan.In connection with the merger with NYMEX HoldingSME Group assumed
NYMEX Holdings' 2006 Omnibus Lor-Term Incentive Plan. Under the plan, stock-baseards may be made to any director, officer or
employee of the company and other key individuatsiging services to the company. A total of 5.0liom shares have been reserved for
awards under the plan. In connection with receiwhgreholder approval to increase the amount dibaiged shares under the Omnibus Stock
Plan in May 2009, the company undertook to freeieré awards under this plan. As a result, 3.5onilshares that remained authorized for
future awards under this plan were frozen.

Director Stock Plan. CME Group has adopted a Director Stock Plan undeciwawards are made to non-executive directopaetsof their
annual compensation. A total of 625,000 Class Aeshhave been reserved under this plan, and appatedy 261,000 shares have been
awarded through December 31, 2013 .

Employee Stock Purchase PlarCME Group has adopted an Employee Stock Purchase(BEPP) under which employees may purchase
Class A shares at 90% of the market value of theeshusing after-tax payroll deductions. A totab00,000 Class A shares have been reserve
under this plan, of which approximately 177,000rehdave been purchased through December 31, B013X7).

Share Repurchasesin May 2011, the board of directors authorized asltbuyback program of up to $750.0 million of CK8Eoup Class A
common stock over a 12 month period. During 2010 ndillion shares were purchased at an average pfi§54 per share for a total cost of
$220.4 million . This plan's authorization has eggi

17. STOCK-BASED PAYMENTS

CME Group adopted an Omnibus Stock Plan under wétiotk-based awards may be made to employeesalotfo40.2 millionClass A share
have been reserved for awards under the plan. Antatdling 22.8 million shares have been grantedaaa outstanding or have been exercise
under the plan as of December 31, 2013 . Awardstgdebefore 2009 generally vest over a five-yeaiodewith 20%vesting one year after t
grant date and on that same date in each of theviolg four years. Beginning in 2009, awards grdrgenerally vest over a four -year period,
with 25% vesting one year after the grant dateanthat same date in each of the following thresrge
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Total compensation expense for stock-based paymaendtsotal income tax benefit recognized in thesotidated statements of income for
stock-based awards were as follows:

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Compensation expense $ 542 $ 612 $ 51.c
Income tax benefit recognized 20.C 22.5 18.¢

Excluding estimates of future forfeitures, at Debem31, 2013 , there was $91.8 million of totalagugnized compensation expense related t
employee stock-based compensation arrangementsatiatot yet vested. This expense is expected tedugnized over a weighted average
period of 2.1 years.

The Black-Scholes fair value of each option graas walculated using the following assumptions:

Grant Year
2012 2011
Dividend yield 4.2%-4.5% 1.2%-2.4%
Expected volatility 40%-41% 41%-42%
Risk-free interest rate 0.8%-1.5% 2.0%-2.3%
Expected life 5.0to 6.2 years 5.6t0 6.2 years

The dividend yield was calculated by dividing thatar's expected dividends by the market price ®kthck at the dates of grant. A weighting
of implied and historical volatility was used tdiesate expected future volatility. The risk-fregearest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury
yield in effect at the time of each grant. The atpd life of options granted has been determin@tjube simplified method as outlined
guidance from the Securities and Exchange Comnmissio

The following table summarizes stock option acyivdr 2013 . Aggregate intrinsic value is in mitis.

Weighted Weighted Average

Average Remaining

Exercise Contractual Life (in Aggregate Intrinsic

Number of Shares Price years) Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 5,895,27. $ 63 57 $ 15.2
Granted — —
Exercised (1,532,34) 48
Cancelled (171,339 72
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 4,191,59: 67 4.9 70.2
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 3,333,16: 71 4.3 49.7

The weighted average grant date fair value of agtgranted during 2012 and 2011 was $13 and $18haee, respectively. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during 2013 , 2012 &l Avas $35.3 million , $19.0 million and $4.2 il , respectively.

In 2013 , the company granted 799,978 shares tfatesl Class A common stock and 4,984 sharesstficéed stock units. Restricted common
stock and restricted stock units generally havesding period of 2 to 4 years. The fair value edab these grants was $57.4 million , which is
recognized as compensation expense on an accdl&agis over the vesting period. Beginning withrie®d stock grants in September 2010,
dividends are accrued on restricted Class A comstack and restricted stock units and are paid timeeestricted stock vests. In 2013, the
company also granted 143,134 performance sharesfaittvalue related to these grants was $10.4amillwhich is recognized as
compensation expense on an accelerated and stlaigthtbasis over the vesting period. The vestihthese shares is contingent on meeting
stated performance or market conditions.
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The following table summarizes restricted stocktnieted stock units, and performance shares acfior 2013 :

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Number of Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 191352 $ 54
Granted 948,09¢ 71
Vested (441,68.) 56
Cancelled (334,690 57
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 2,085,25. 63

The total fair value of restricted stock, restritgtock units, and performance shares that vestedgd2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $31.9 million
$20.9 million and $11.6 million , respectively.

Eligible employees may acquire shares of ClassrAmon stock using after-tax payroll deductions mauiéng consecutive offering periods of
approximately six months in duration. Shares arelmsed at the end of each offering period at@epmi 90% of the closing price of the

Class A common stock as reported on the NASDAQ &l8elect Market. Compensation expense is recogminghe dates of purchase for
discount from the closing price. In 2013 , 2012 aAd1 , a total of 18,632 , 27,768 and 32,085 shaespectively, of Class A common stock
were issued to participating employees. These staresubject to a six-month holding period. Anraxgdense of $0.1 million , $0.1 million
and $0.2 million for the purchase discount was ge&ed in 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Non-executive directors receive an annual award o$€Rcommon stock with a value equal to $75,000n-sxecutive directors may also
elect to receive some or all of the cash portiothefr annual stipend, up to $25,000 , in sharegtadk based on the closing price at the date o
distribution. As a result, 27,168 , 40,260 and 8B8,5hares of Class A common stock were issuedrieerecutive directors during 2013 , 2012
and 2011 , respectively. These shares are notcubjany vesting restrictions. Expense of $2.1ioml, $2.2 million and $2.1 milliomelated t
these stock-based payments was recognized foretéims gnded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011ectesyy.

18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following tables present changes in the accataedlbalances for each component of other compseleeimcome attributable to CME
Group, including current period other comprehensiegeme and reclassifications out of accumulatéerotomprehensive income:

Investment Defined Benefit Derivative Foreign Currency
(in millions) Securities Plans Investments Translation Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 256.7 % (32.9) % (16.9) $ 1.4 $ 209.:
Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications and income tax benefit (expen (221.0 28.4 128.¢ (0.9 (64.€)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (0.7) 3.2 1.€ — 4.1
Income tax benefit (expense) 63.€ (22.0 (49.0 0.2 3.2
Net current period other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group (157.9) 19.€ 81.4 (0.5) (57.9)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 98¢ $ (125) $ 65.C $ 0 % 152.(
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Investment Defined Benefit Derivative Foreign Currency
(in millions) Securities Plans Investments Translation Total
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 148«  $ (26.) 12 % (9.5) % 111.¢
Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications and income tax benefit (expen 174.% (23.0 (25.9) (1.3 135.1
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive inconfd (1.9 2.5 1.1 18.£ 20.2
Income tax benefit (expense) (64.€) 4.2 9.C (6.2) (57.¢)
Net current period other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group 108.: (6.3 (15.2) 10.€ 97.7
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 256 % (329 (169 $ 14 % 209.:
Investment Defined Benefit Derivative Foreign Currency
(in millions) Securities Plans Investments Translation Total
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 57 $ (15.2) 1.9 $ (92.¢) $ (104.7)
Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications and income tax benefit (expen 166.4 (29.7) — 96.¢€ 243.¢
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income — 1.7 0.c — 2.€
Income tax benefit (expense) (23.7) 6.5 (0.9) (13.9 (30.9)
Net current period other comprehensive income
attributable to CME Group 1425 (20.9) 0.€ 83.2 215.7
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 148 $ (26.) $ (12 % (9.5 $ 111.¢

(1) In the second quarter of 2012, the companygeized an $18.4 million foreign currency translatioss related to the sale of Credit Market
Analysis Ltd. (CMA) within other non-operating inoe (expense).

19. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The company uses a three-level classification hsagaof fair value measurements for disclosure pseg.

e Level 1 inputs, which are considered the mostlnidi@vidence of fair value, consist of quoted wi@@nadjusted) for identical asset
liabilities in active markets.

» Level 2 inputs consist of observable market datiaer than level 1 inputs, such as quoted pfimesimilar assets and liabilities in
active markets or inputs other than quoted pricasdre directly observable.

* Level 3 inputs consist of unobservable inputscilare derived and cannot be corroborated by maikta or other entity-specific
inputs.

Level 1 assets generally include U.S. Treasuryriegsiand investments in publicly traded mutuadds with quoted market prices. In general,
the company uses quoted prices in active marketgéntical assets to determine the fair value afkatable securities and equity investments
If quoted prices are not available to determinevfalue, the company uses other inputs that aeetlijrobservable.

Assets included in level 2 generally consist ob&smcked securities and interest rate swap cdatrAsset-backed securities were measured «
fair value based on matrix pricing using pricesiafilar securities with similar inputs such as misgyudates, interest rates and credit ratings.
The company determined the fair value of its irgerate swap contracts using standard valuatioreteadth market-based observable inputs
including forward and spot exchange rates andesteate curves.

The company determined the fair value of its cagygimt consideration liabilities, considered levdibBilities, using a discounted cash flow
model to calculate the present value of future pésiorhe liabilities were included in level 3 besaumanagement used significant
unobservable inputs, including a discount rateG862and payout probabilities of either 75% or 1008tgnificant increases or decreases in an
of those inputs in isolation would result in a sfgrantly different fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities recorded in thesctidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2@l 2GR were classified in their entirety
based on the lowest level of input that was sigaift to each asset or liability's fair value measwent.
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Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Rcurring Basis:

December 31, 2013

(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at Fair Value:
Marketable securities:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 182 % — 3 — 3 18.2

Mutual funds 49.€ — — 49.€

Equity securities 0.1 — — 0.1

Asset-backed security — 0.4 — 0.4

Total 68.C 0.4 — 68.£
Equity investments 499.¢ — — 499.¢
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 567.¢ $ 04 $ — 3 568.:
Liabilities at Fair Value:

Contingent consideration $ — 3 — 3 157 $ 15.7
Total Liabilities at Fair Value $ — 3 — 3 157 $ 15.7

December 31, 2012
(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at Fair Value:
Marketable securities:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 175 % — — 3 17.5

Mutual funds 38.7 — — 38.7

Asset-backed securities — 0.4 — 0.4

Total 56.2 0.4 — 56.€
Equity investments 7217 — — 721,
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 777¢ % 04 $ — 3 778.:
Liabilities at Fair Value:

Interest rate swap contracts $ — 3 1C $ — 3 1.C

Contingent consideration — — 12.€ 12.¢
Total Liabilities at Fair Value $ — 3 1.C % 12€6 $ 13.€

There were no transfers of assets between leved leael 2 during 2013 and 2012 . The followingigeconciliation of liabilities valued at fair
value on a recurring basis using significant unoladge inputs (level 3) during 2013 and 2012 . ‘Eheere no assets valued at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable igfglevel 3) during 2013 and 2012 .

(in millions) Contingent Consideration
Fair value of liability at December 31, 2011 $ 10.c
Contingent obligation arising from acquisition 1.2
Realized and unrealized gains (losses):

Included in operating expense 11
Fair value of liability at December 31, 2012 12.¢
Contingent obligation arising from acquisition 4.4
Realized and unrealized gains (losses):

Included in operating expense 6.C
Settlements (7.3
Fair value of liability at December 31, 2013 $ 15.7

There were no assets or liabilities valued atvalue on a nonrecurring basis using significantaseovable inputs (Level 3) during 2013 and
2012.
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20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirtgnm®me attributable to CME Group by the weight®drage number of shares of all classe
of common stock outstanding for each reportinggeerDiluted earnings per share reflects the ineréashares using the treasury stock me

to reflect the impact of an equivalent number @frels of common stock if stock options were exedcas®d restricted stock awards were
converted into common stock. Anti-dilutive stockiops and stock awards were as follows for the ypagsented:

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011

Stock options 1,56¢ 4,851 4,68¢
Stock awards 65 — —
Total 1,631 4,851 4,68¢

The following table presents the earnings per sbaleulation for the years presented:

2013 2012 2011

Net Income Attributable to CME Group (in millions) $ 976.t $ 896.: $ 1,812.:
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding (instods):

Basic 332,67 331,25: 332,73

Effect of stock options and stock awards 1,72( 1,06 1,07¢

Diluted 334,39¢ 332,31 333,81:
Earnings per Common Share Attributable to CME Group

Basic $ 294 % 271 % 5.4¢

Diluted 2.9z 2.7¢ 5.4%
21. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth

(in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year to Date
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Total revenues $ 718¢ $ 816.1 $ 714¢€¢ $ 687.C $ 2,936.
Operating income 405.¢ 507.¢ 400.t 323.2 1,637.(
Non-operating income (expense) (7.9 (0.3 (1.6) (16.2) (36.0
Income before income taxes 387.€ 507.t 398.¢ 307.( 1,601.(
Net income attributable to CME Group 235.¢ 311.2 236. 193.1 976.¢
Earnings per common share attributable to CME Group

Basic $ 071 $ 09 % 071 $ 0.5¢ $ 2.9¢

Diluted 0.71 0.9 0.71 0.5¢ 2.92
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Total revenues $ 774¢€ $ 795.¢ $ 683.2 $ 660.¢ $ 2,914
Operating income 451.2 469.2 396.( 375.¢ 1,692.(
Non-operating income (expense) (17.9) 41.F 0.2 (22.1) 1.4
Income before income taxes 433.¢ 510.% 395.¢ 353.F 1,693.
Net income attributable to CME Group 266.¢ 244.¢ 218.( 166.¢ 896.:
Earnings per common share attributable to CME Group

Basic $ 081 $ 074 $ 0.6 $ 05C $ 2.71

Diluted 0.8C 0.74 0.6¢€ 0.5C 2.7

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The company has evaluated subsequent events thtloaiglate the financial statements were issuedc®impany has determined that there
were no subsequent events that require disclosxoept for the following:



In February 2014, the company repaid the $750.0omifixed rate notes due February 2014.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management, with the participation of our Clagécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, fesluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as such tedafised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeB#wurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (Exchange Act)) as of the end of the pewedred by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Baseduch evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has@ncluded that, as of the end of such period, @ealasure controls and procedures are
effective.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigla’ing. Our internal control system has
been designed to provide reasonable assurancenagement and the board of directors regarding tiygapation and fair presentation of
published financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Ceimpaternal control over financial reporting asécember 31, 20L.3Vlanagement bas
its assessment on criteria for effective intermadtool over financial reporting described in Int@r€ontrol-Integrated Framework Issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission. Management’s assessment includddatiray the design of our internal
control over financial reporting and testing thegtional effectiveness of our internal control ofileancial reporting. The results of its
assessment were reviewed with the audit commiftigedooard of directors.

Based on this assessment, management believeastaftpecember 31, 2013, our internal controt dwancial reporting is effective. The
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcéporting as of December 31, 2013 has been alititernst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated infthlewing report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of CME Grop Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CME Group Inc. and subsidiaries &eckmber 31, 2013 and 2012, anc
related consolidated statements of income, compsie income, shareholders' equity and cash flavgéch of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2013. Our audit also includeditfancial statement schedule listed in the Ingielkem 15(a). These financial statem
are the responsibility of the Company's managent@ut. responsibility is to express an opinion onsthénancial statements based on
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedt® tonsolidated financial position of ClI
Group Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 20832842, and the consolidated results of their djmers and their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20T®nformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogiprinciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bogunited States), CME Group |i
and subsidiaries’ internal control over financigborting as of December 31, 2013, based on cristiablished in Internal Contrbitegrate:
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@iggtions of the Treadway Commission (1992 frantkjvand our report dat
February 28, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitfiereon.

Ernst & Young, LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of CME Grop Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited CME Group Inc. and subsidiariagrnal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013, based on crit
established in Internal Controttegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@9%
framework) (the COSO criteria). CME Group Inc. asubsidiaries'management is responsible for maintaining effediernal control ove
financial reporting, and for its assessment of #ffectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting included in the accompany
Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control okérancial Reporting. Our responsibility is to eeg an opinion on the compasy’
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofivalecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeslcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CME Group Inc. and subsidiaries m@ined, in all material respects, effective inéroontrol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@wnited States), the consolids
balance sheets of CME Group Inc. and subsidiagesfdDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the relatadotidated statements of incol
comprehensive income, shareholderguity, and cash flows for each of the three yeatlse period end December 31, 2013 of CME Growy.
and subsidiaries and our report dated Februar2@B4, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2014
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

As required by Rule 1345(d) under the Exchange Act, the company's managgnmcluding the company's Chief Executive Offiaad Chie’
Financial Officer, have evaluated the company®rirgl control over financial reporting (as suchtés defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) under the Exchange Act) to determine whethgraranges occurred during the fourth quarter of32@at have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparigternal control over financial reporting. Therere no changes in the company's internal
control over financial reporting during the pericalvered by this report that have materially affdcta are reasonably likely to materially
affect, internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
We have adopted a written code of conduct appkctbhll of our employees, including our Execuifsairman & President, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accountir@fficer and other senior financial officers. In aogance with SEC rules and regulations, ou
Code of Conduct is available on our websiteaatv.cmegroup.com under the “Investor Relations-Corporate Governattio&” We intend to
disclose promptly on our Web site any substantmeradments to our Code of Conduct and, in accordaitbethe listing requirements of the
NASDAQ, any waivers granted to our executive officer Board members will be promptly disclosed d@uarent Report on Forn-K. In
addition, we have adopted Corporate Governanceipl@s which govern the practices of our boardiddaors. You may also obtain a copy of
our Code of Conduct and our Corporate Governaniceiples by following the instructions in the sectiof this Annual Report on Form 10-K
entitled “ltem 1. Business-Available Information.”
Certain of the information called for by this itésthereby incorporated herein by reference to ¢hevant portions of CME Group’s definitive
proxy statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharebdo be held on May 21, 2014, to be filed by C@i®up with the SEC pursuant to

Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 3, 2(Proxy Statement). Additional information cdlfer by this item is contained in Item
1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the @aptEmployees-Executive Officers.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Certain of the information called for by this itesthereby incorporated herein by reference to¢hevant portions of the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Certain of the information called for by this iteelating to the security ownership of certain béieff owners and management is hereby
incorporated herein by reference to the relevartigous of the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIR ECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Certain of the information called for by this itésthereby incorporated herein by reference to¢hevant portions of the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Certain of the information called for by this itésthereby incorporated herein by reference to¢hevant portions of the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schates and Exhibits
(1) Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial Statements amadted Notes included within Item 8, togethertwviiie Reports of Independent Registere
Public Accounting Firm with respect thereto anduded within Item 9A, are hereby incorporated bigrence:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2GiL3GkP
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yearse#mcember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomiéo¥ears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Yearsedndecember 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The following Financial Statement Schedule is fiexdpart of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
CME Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 andl20
(dollars in millions)

Charged
Balance at Charged (credited) to Balance
beginning against costs and at end
of year goodwill expenses Other W of year

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 0.e $ — % 0.8 % 0.9 % 1.2
Allowance for deferred tax assets 24.¢ — 4.€ 18.1 47.F
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1.2 % — 3 1.C $ 15 $ 0.8
Allowance for deferred tax assets 43.2 0.t (3.0 (15.9 24.¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1€ $ — 3 224 $ 227 % 1.2
Allowance for deferred tax assets 258.¢ — (46.9 (168.9 43.2
(1) Includes write-offs of doubtful accounts aedersals of deferred tax asset valuation allowaagamst accumulated other

comprehensive income.

All other schedules have been omitted becausenthamation required to be set forth in those scheslis not applicable or is shown in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
See (b) Exhibits below
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

10.

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incation of CME Group Inc. (incorporated by referetm&xhibit 3.1 to
CME Group Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, fileith the SEC on May 29, 2012, File No. 001-31553).

Tenth Amended and Restated Bylaws of CME Group(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to CMB® Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC oprif23, 2013, File No. 001-31553).

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders

Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stugd 2007, among CME Group Inc., as Issuer, aidrian Brothers
Inc., as Dealer (subsequently assigned to Bar&aystal Inc. in connection with the bankruptcy @fiman Brothers
Holdings Inc.) (incorporated by reference to ExhibR to CME Group Inc.’s Form 10-Q, filed with tB&C on

November 8, 2007, File No. 000-33379).

Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, dated as gludul6, 2007, between CME Group Inc. and JPMo€jaase Bank,
National Association, as Issuing and Paying Agemtofporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to CME @rdnc.’s Form 10-
Q, filed with the SEC on November 8, 2007, File R00-33379).

Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stu2flyy 2008, between CME Group Inc., as IssuerBamgt of
America Securities LLC, as Dealer (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to CME Group Inc.’s CuatrBeport on Form
8-K, filed with the SEC on August 26, 2008, File.N0®1-31553).

Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stgR) 2008, between CME Group Inc., as IssuerGaidman,
Sachs & Co., as Dealer (incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.2 to CME Group Inc.’s Current Repontfeorm 8-K, filed
with the SEC on August 26, 2008, File No. 001-3)553

Indenture, dated August 12, 2008, between CME Gloapand U.S. Bank National Association (incorpedsby reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to CME Group Inc.’s Current Repont Borm 8-K, filed with the SEC on August 13, 2068e No. 001-
31553).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture (including the forfd.@5% note due 2014), dated February 9, 2009vd®t CME Group
Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 4.2 to CME Group In€isrrent Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 9, 2008¢ No. 001-31553).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture (including the form3a®0% note due 2022), dated September 10, 201ebe CME Group
Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association (incorpecaby reference to Exhibit 4.2 to CME Group In€.lgrent Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on September 10, 22 No. 001-31553).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture (including the fornbd00% note due 2043), dated as of September3, @tween CME
Group Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association (ipowated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to CME Grong.'s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on Septenthe2013, File No. 001-31553).

Indenture (including the form of 4.40% note due &0tated March 18, 2010, between CME Group IndaxiSes LLC,
CME Group Inc. and U.S. Bank National Associatimt@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to CME @rdnc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on March 2810, File No. 001-31553).

Material Contracts



10.1(1) CME Group Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Sttaok, Bmended and restated effective as of May @B 2
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CME&@ Inc.’s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on May 2812, File No.
001-31553); First Amendment to the Amended andd&edtOmnibus Stock Plan, effective as of Decemp2652
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CMEB&@ Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on Febyu28, 2013, File
No. 001-31553).

10.2(1) Form of Equity Grant Letter for Executive Officdiscorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CM&@ Inc.'s Form 10-
K, filed with the SEC on February 28, 2013, File.l961-31553).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.3(1)

10.4(1)

10.5(1)

10.6(1)

10.7(1)

10.8(1)

10.9(1)

10.10(1)

10.11(1)

10.12(1)

10.13(1)

10.14(1)

10.15(1)

Form of equity grant letter for performance badeatas based on specific Company initiatives (inofed by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filedttwthe SEC on August 5, 2011, File No. 001-31553).

Form of equity grant letter for annual grant offpemance shares (incorporated by reference to Extib4 to CME Group
Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 2813, File No. 001-31553).

CME Group Inc. 2005 Director Stock Plan, amendetirastated effective as of May 13, 2009 (incorpaidiy reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to CME Group Inc.'s Current Reportfrm 8-K, filed with the SEC on May 18, 2009, Ale. 001-31553).

Form of Equity Stipend Grant Letter for Non-ExewatDirectors (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit4 to CME Group
Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 2610, File No. 001-31553).

CME Group Inc.'s Amended and Restated EmployeekRacchase Plan, amended and restated as of M&023,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CME@ Inc.'s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on May 2912, File No.
001-31553; First Amendment to the Amended and Restamployee Stock Purchase Plan, effective asscEbber 5,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEC oabFuary 28, 2013,
File No. 001-31553).

Amended and Restated CBOT Holdings, Inc. 2005 Lbegn Equity Plan, amended and restated as of Dezegil 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to CME@ Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on Ma&h2009, File No.
001-31553).

Amended and Restated NYMEX Holdings, Inc. 2006 dmasiLong-Term Incentive Plan, amended and resteted
December 31, 2008 (incorporated by reference talibxd0.7 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-filed with the SEC on Marc
2, 2009, File No. 001-31553).

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Senior ManagerSepplemental Deferred Savings Plan (SMSDSP) camgisf the
Grandfathered SMSDSP, amended and restated aswaryal, 2008, and the Amended and Restated 409855®,
amended and restated as of January 1, 2008 (inedegidby reference to Exhibit 10.7 to CME Group.'BlEorm 10-K, filed
with the SEC on February 28, 2008, File No. 0007333

Amended and Restated Chicago Mercantile Exchangeinectors' Deferred Compensation Plan, amendddestated as
of January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference taitkix10.9 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed Wwithe SEC on March
2, 2009, File No. 001-31553).

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Supplemental EtveelRetirement Plan consisting of the Grandfatie3applemental
Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of Jabhua®@8, and the Amended and Restated 409A SupplairExecutive
Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of Jabhu2@@8 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.€ME Group Inc.'s
Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on February 28, 20Bie No. 000-33379).

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Supplemental EtveetRetirement Trust; First Amendment theretoedebeptember 7,
1993 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.&tdcago Mercantile Exchange Inc.'s Form S-4, fileth the SEC on
February 24, 2000, File No. 333-95561); Second Adneent to Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Senion&ggment
Supplemental Deferred Savings Plan, executed Aprilf25, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhit).4 to CME
Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on Aughis2011, File No. 001-31553).

Recognition and Retention Plan for Members of tMEX Division of New York Mercantile Exchange (impmrated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to NYMEX Holdings, IiscForm 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 29, 20Bile No. 333-
30332).

Amended and Restated CME Group Inc. lineeiPlan for Named Executive Officers (incorporhlbg reference to Exhibit
10.3 to CME Group Inc.'s Current Report on Form,8iléd with the SEC on May 18, 2009, File No. 081553);
Amendment, effective as of February 2, 2010 (inocaped by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to CME Groog's Form 10-K,
filed with the SEC on February 26, 2010, File N01€1553); Second Amendment to the Amended anchiResCME

Group Inc. Annual Incentive Plan for Named Execi®fficers, executed as of April 25, 2011 (incogied by reference to
Fxhihit 10 5 to CMF Groiin Ine 's Form -0 filed with the SFC. on Anianist 5 2011 File NA1-215R3)



10.16(1)(2)* CME Group Inc. Severance Plan for Eligible Execegivamended and restated effective January 1, @8 porated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to CME Group Inc.'s FAOrK, filed with the SEC on February 28, 2013eMlo. 001-31553).

10.17(1)(2)* CME Group Inc. Severance Plan, amended and res#festive January 1, 2013 (incorporated by refeesio Exhibit 10.1¢
to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with the SEG Bebruary 28, 2013, File No. 001-31553).
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10.18(1)

10.19(1)

10.20(1)

10.21(1)

10.22(1)

10.23(3)

10.24(3)

10.25(3)

10.26*

10.27

Amended Agreement, effective as of February 5, 2B&tiveen CME Group Inc. and Terrence A. Duffy diqporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CME Group Inc.'s F@K, filed with the SEC on February 11, 2014, Fle. 001-31553).

Amended Agreement, effective as of February 5, 2b&tween CME Group Inc. and Phupinder S. Gilldiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CME Group Inc.'s F@K, filed with the SEC on February 11, 2014, Fle. 001-31553).

Consulting Agreement between Leo Melamed and CM&u@inc., dated June 26, 2009 (incorporated byeafe to
Exhibit 10.2 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filedittvthe SEC on August 6, 2009, File No. 001-31553).

Consulting Agreement between Leo Melamed and Chid4grcantile Exchange Holdings Inc., dated Noveni#er2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to @iz Mercantile Exchange Holdings Inc.'s Form 10kdfwith the SEC
on March 6, 2006, File No. 000-33379); Amendmeated as of June 21, 2012 (incorporated by referenEshibit 10.4 to
CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC ongiist 8, 2012, File No. 001-31553).

Consulting Agreement between John F. Sandner aich@hMercantile Exchange Holdings Inc., dated ©etd 0, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Ch@#ercantile Exchange Holdings Inc.'s Form 104f@dfwith the SEC
on November 4, 2005, File No. 000-33379); Amendméated November 30, 2012 (incorporated by referéa&Exhibit
10.23 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-K, filed with t8&C on February 28, 2013, File No. 001-31553).

License Agreement, dated June 29, 2012, betweed&th & Poor's Financial Services LLC and Chicagerddntile
Exchange Inc. (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi6 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filed with tREC on August 8,
2012, File No. 001-31553).

Amended and Restated Index License Agreement, bet@®E Group Index Services LLC and the Board @dErof the
City of Chicago, Inc., effective as of July 1, 2Qiricorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to CEEbup Inc.'s Form 10-
Q, filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012, File N61631553).

License Agreement, effective as of October 9, 20@Byeen The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc., a subgidiNational
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., and Chicligrcantile Exchange Inc. (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.9 to
Chicago Mercantile Exchange Holdings Inc.'s ForrKl@led with the SEC on March 11, 2004, File Ni@1-31553),
Amendment, dated April 26, 2005 (incorporated Hgnence to Exhibit 10.1 to Chicago Mercantile Exuf@a Holdings
Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on August @03, File No. 001-31553); Amendment, dated June@@5
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Ch#ercantile Exchange Holdings Inc.'s Form 104t@dfwith the SEC
on August 4, 2005, File No. 001-31553); Amendmdated as of June 26, 2008 (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.1
to CME Group Inc.'s Form 10-Q, filed with the SE&August 7, 2008, File No. 001-31553).

$1.5 Billion Credit Agreement, dated as of Novem®@r2012, among CME Group Inc., certain finaniiatitutions and
other persons party thereto as lenders, and BaAknefrica, N.A., as administrative agent, BarclagmBPLC, Citibank,
N.A., UBS Securities LLC, and Wells Fargo Bank, iNiaal Association as co-syndication agents, andriMleynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Barclays Bank PLC, UBSurities LLC, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLGaast lead
arrangers and joint book managers (incorporategfgyence to Exhibit 10.2 to CME Group Inc.'s F@iK, filed with the
SEC on December 5, 2012, File No. 001-31553); Ammeartt No. 1 to Credit Agreement and Joinder Agreenuaied as of
November 30, 2012, including the Consolidated FGmdit Agreement as Annex A, among CME Group loettain
financial institutions and other persons party ¢he@as lenders, and Bank of America, N.A., as athtnative agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CME@ Inc.'s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on Decembg2012, File No.
001-31553); Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreementedas of November 8, 2013, among CME Group InokB#
America, N.A., as administrative agent and eacthefenders which are parties thereto.*

$250,000,000 Credit Agreement, dated as of Noverd®e2012, among CME Group Inc., as borrower, &edenders
party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as adstmtive agent, Barclays Bank plc, Citibank, N\BBS Securities LLC,
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, asyawdfcation agents, and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fanfé&mith
Incorporated, Barclays Bank plc, UBS Securities |.a6d Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as joint leagagers and joint
book managers (incorporated by reference to Exiih2 to CME Group Inc.'s Form 8-K, filed with t8&C on December
5, 2012, File No. 001-31533).
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10.28 364-Day Chicago Mercantile Exchange Credit Fagcilityted as of November 7, 2013, among Chicago Mé&led&xchange
Inc. with each of the banks from time to time pdhgreto; Bank of America, N.A., as administratagent; Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, as collateral agent; Bdr®hina, Chicago Branch, The Bank of Tokyo-MitsuhigFJ, Ltd.,
Citibank, N.A., BMO Harris Bank N.A. and Barclaysuik PLC, as syndication agents; The Bank of Nowai&cFifth
Third Bank, Lloyds Bank PLC and Wells Fargo BanlatiNnal Association, as documentation agents; aadiMLynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Bank of Ch@dhicago Branch, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UEtH., Citibank,
N.A., BMO Capital Markets Corp., and Barclays B&ikC, as joint lead arrangers and joint book runiecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CME Group Inc.'s F@4K, filed with the SEC on November 13, 2013, File. 001-31553).

10.29 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stugh 2007, among CME Group Inc., as Issuer, aidrian Brothers
Inc., as Dealer (subsequently assigned to Bar&aystal Inc. in connection with the bankruptcy @fhman Brothers
Holdings Inc.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibil above).

10.30 Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, dated as gludul6, 2007, between CME Group Inc. and JPMo€jsase Bank,
National Association, as Issuing and Paying Agemtofporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 above).

10.31 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stu2flyy 2008, between CME Group Inc., as IssuerBamgt of
America Securities LLC, as Dealer (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.3 above).

10.32 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of stgR) 2008, between CME Group Inc., as IssuerGoidman,
Sachs & Co., as Dealer (incorporated by refereadexhibit 4.4 above).

12.1* Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

21.1* List of Subsidiaries of CME Group Inc.

23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

31.1* Section 302—~Certification of Phupinder S. Gill.

31.2* Section 302—~Certification of James E. Parisi.

32.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbamésy@.ct of 2002.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docune

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

* Filed herewith.

(1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt

(2) Refiled to incorporate an immaterial amendment e inadvertently excluded when the plan was waify amended and restat

) Confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 406 ofSeeurities Act has been previously granted by t8€ fr portions of this exhib
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiaht has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theretmduly authorized, in the City of Chicago and Stat of lllinois on the 28th day of
February, 2014 .

CME Group Inc.

By: /sl JAMES E. PARISI

James E. Parisi
Senior Managing Director and Chief Financial Office

Signature Title

/s/ TERRENCE A. DUFFY Executive Chairman of the Board and Director & Riest
Terrence A. Duffy

/s/  PHUPINDER S. GILL
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Phupinder S. Gill

/s/ JAMES E. PARISI Senior Managing Director and Chief Financial Office

James E. Parisi

/sl JAMES V. PIEPER Managing Director and Chief Accounting Officer

James V. Pieper

/s/ LEO MELAMED Chairman Emeritus and Director
Leo Melamed
/s/ JEFFREY M. BERNACCHI Director

Jeffrey M. Bernacchi

/s/ TIMOTHY S. BITSBERGER Director
Timothy S. Bitsberger

/s/ DENNIS H. CHOOKASZIAN Director

Dennis H. Chookaszian

/'s/ JACKIE M. CLEGG Director
Jackie M. Clegg

/s/  JAMES A. DONALDSON Director
James A. Donaldson

/s/ MARTIN J. GEPSMAN Director

Martin J. Gepsman

/s/ LARRY G. GERDES Director
Larry G. Gerdes

/s/ DANIEL R. GLICKMAN Director

Nl Ao




/s/ J. DENNIS HASTERT

J. Dennis Hastert

/s/ BRUCE F. JOHNSON

Bruce F. Johnson

/s/ WILLIAM P. MILLER 1l

William P. Miller Il
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/s/  JOSEPH NICIFORO

Joseph Niciforo

/sl C.C.ODOMII

C.C. Odom Il

/sl JAMES E. OLIFF

James E. Oliff

/sl RONALD A. PANKAU

Ronald A. Pankau

/'s/ EDEMIR PINTO

Edemir Pinto

/sl ALEX J. POLLOCK

Alex J. Pollock

/s/ JOHN F. SANDNER

John F. Sandner

/s/ TERRY L. SAVAGE

Terry L. Savage

/s/ CHRISTOPHER STEWART

Christopher Stewart

/'s/  DENNIS A. SUSKIND

Dennis A. Suskind

/s/ DAVID J. WESCOTT

David J. Wescott

/sl STEVEN E. WOLLACK

Steven E. Wollack
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CME Group Inc. Severance Plan for Eligible Executives

Purpose, Intent, and Effective Date .

CME Group Inc. (the “ Company ") previously adopted the CME Group Inc. Severance Plan for Corporate
Officers (the “ Plan ") as a component of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Employee Benefit Plan. The
Company hereby amends, restates and renames the Plan as the CME Group Inc. Severance Plan for Eligible
Executives, effective January 1, 2013 (the “ Restatement Effective Date ”).

The provisions of this Plan supersede any prior Employer severance benefit plan documents, policies, and
programs (regardless of whether such policies and programs were written). The Board of Directors of the
Company, or its designee, may designate one or more officers (by office or by name) to perform any act
specified to be done by “the Company” under this Plan.

The purpose of the Plan is to provide severance benefits to certain employees of the Employer in the event that
their employment is terminated in specified circumstances.

The Plan is intended to constitute an unfunded welfare benefit plan for purposes of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ ERISA ™).

Definitions .

2.1
“ Administrator " means the person(s) or committee designated by the Company to administer the Plan.
The Administrator shall be the “administrator” and the “named fiduciary” of the Plan for purposes of
ERISA. Unless there is another designation by the Company, the Administrator is the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.2
“ Cause " means engaging in conduct that violates any of the Employer’s policies and/or is harmful to the
Employer. Whether a Termination of Employment is for Cause will be determined in each case by the
Administrator in its sole discretion.

2.3
“ Code " means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

2.4
“ Continuation Coverage " means (i) the continuation of health plan coverage under Part 6 of Title | of
ERISA (* COBRA ") and (ii) the COBRA-like continuation of health plan coverage of an Employee’s
domestic partner under the terms of the Employer’s group health plan.

25
“ Controlled Group " means the Company and any other employer that, together with the Company,
would be considered a single employer under Section 414(b) or 414(c) of the Code.

2.6
“ Eligible Executive " means an Employee on the U.S. payroll holding the position of Executive Director,
Managing Director, Senior Managing Director or any other position on the Management Team of the
Company.

2.7

“ Employee " means an Eligible Executive of the Employer who provides personal services to the
Employer for compensation, exclusive of individuals who are (a)






2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

covered by (i) an individual contract of employment that provides severance benefits, (ii) an
individual severance agreement, unless such contract or agreement is evidenced in writing and makes
reference to the terms of this Plan, or (iii) any other severance plan of the Employer or an affiliate of the
Employer; (b) classified as independent contractors by the Company for employment tax purposes
(whether or not such classification is challenged or upheld); (c) temporary, seasonal or intern
employees; (d) covered by a collective bargaining agreement which does not provide for participation in
this plan; (e) regularly scheduled to work for the Employer less than 20 hours per week; (f) not eligible
for Employer-provided pension or welfare benefits; or (g) not on the Employer’s United States payroll.
The Administrator shall have the authority to determine, in its sole and complete discretion and on a
case-by-case basis, whether an individual constitutes an Employee for purposes of the Plan.

“ Employer " means Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. and any other employer that is a member of the
Controlled Group and that is designated by the Company as eligible to participate in the Plan. As of the
Restatement Effective Date, the Employers include GFX Corporation, New York Mercantile Exchange,
Inc. and Pivot, Inc.

“ Involuntary Termination " means an involuntary Termination of Employment by the Employer other than
by reason of death or disability. In no event will an Employee be deemed to incur an Involuntary
Termination if he or she is offered a transfer to a position within the Employer or a position with an
affiliate of the Employer, irrespective of whether the Employee elects to accept such offer.

“ Qualifying Termination " means an Involuntary Termination, other than for Cause that the Administrator
determines in its sole discretion is due to the elimination of Employee’s job or a reduction in force or due
to the unacceptable performance of the Employee’s job duties and responsibilities.

“ Severance Benefit " means any payment or benefit described in the Severance Schedule to this Plan to
which an Employee is entitled upon a Qualifying Termination.

“ Severance Pay " means the portion of a Severance Benefit consisting of severance pay.

“ Severance Period " means the period described in the applicable Severance Schedule for which an
Employee is entitled to receive Severance Pay.

“ Severance Schedule " means the applicable schedule attached as an appendix to this Plan, as such
schedule may be modified from time to time by the Administrator, that describes the Severance Benefits
and Supplemental Severance Benefits that an Employee may be entitled to receive pursuant to this
Plan.

“ Supplemental Severance Benefits " means any discretionary supplemental benefits that are in addition
to any Severance Benefits, including, without limitation, any such discretionary supplemental benefits
provided in accordance with the applicable Severance Schedule.

2




2.16

“ Termination of Employment ” means a "separation from service" within the meaning of Section 409A of
the Code and Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(h) with the Employer and all members of the Controlled Group.

Eligibility for Benefits .

3.1

3.2

3.3

Severance Benefits . Subject to the provisions of Article 1V, an Employee who experiences a Qualifying
Termination during the term of this Plan shall be eligible to receive the benefits set forth in Appendix A.

Supplemental Severance Benefits . The Administrator may award Supplemental Severance Benefits to
an Employee who experiences a Qualifying Termination in the Administrator's sole discretion and on a
case-by-case basis. The determination as to which Supplemental Severance Benefits will be offered, if
any, and the amount of such benefit, shall be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion;
provided, however, that any cash Supplemental Severance Benefit shall in no event cause an
Employee's total cash Severance Benefits and cash Supplemental Severance Benefits to exceed 52
weeks of Base Salary.

Ineligible Employees . Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3.3, an Employee who experiences a
Termination of Employment that is not a Qualifying Termination (a “ Nonqualifying Termination ") shall
not be entitled to Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under this Plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator may determine to provide benefits under the Plan upon
a Nonqualifying Termination in individual cases due to special circumstances, the amount and nature of
such benefits to be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion.

General Provisions .

4.1

4.2

Timing of Severance Pay . Any Severance Pay that is due to an eligible Employee pursuant to Article 11|
shall be paid in a lump sum (unless otherwise determined by the Plan Administrator) within 30 days of
the later of the date on which a signed Release and Waiver (as described in Section 4.4) received by the
Employer or the date on which the signed Release and Waiver has become irrevocable or, in the event
the Administrator waives the Release and Waiver requirement, within 30 days of the Employee’s
Termination of Employment. In any event, all Severance Pay (including any Supplemental Severance
Benefits described in Section 3.2) not exceeding the “separation pay” limitations of Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1
(b)(9)(iii)(A) shall be paid no later than the end of the second year following the year in which an
Employee’s Termination of Employment occurs in accordance with Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(B).
Any Severance Pay in excess of the limitations of Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A) shall be paid in a
lump sum payment on the 90 " day following the Employee’s Termination of Employment. If an eligible
Employee is a “Specified Employee” of the Company as defined in 26 C.F.R. §1.409A-1(i), then payment
of amounts exceeding the limitations of Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A) shall be made as soon as
administratively practicable on or after the date that is 6 months from the Employee’s Termination of
Employment.

Withholding . The Administrator shall withhold from any Severance Benefits and Supplemental
Severance Benefits all federal and state income, FICA, and other

3




4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

employment taxes, and any other amounts required or permitted to be withheld under any agreement
with the Employee involved, applicable law or other employee benefit plans of the Employer.

Amendment and Termination . The Company may amend or terminate this Plan at any time and without
prior notice; provided, however, that in no event shall any such amendment or termination affect, in any
manner, the entitlement to Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits, if any, of an
Employee who, prior to the date of such amendment or termination, was determined to be eligible for
such payments.

Payments Conditioned on Release . Eligibility for the receipt of Severance Benefits or Supplemental
Severance Benefits hereunder is expressly conditioned upon the execution by the Employee of a
comprehensive settlement agreement and release and waiver (* Release and Waiver "), in a form to be
determined from time to time by the Administrator; provided, however, that the Administrator may, in its
sole discretion, waive this requirement, in whole or in part, with respect to all or a part of an Employee’s
benefits under the Plan. Except to the extent the requirement to execute such an agreement is waived
by the Administrator, Employees who do not execute such an agreement on or before the Release and
Waiver Deadline, or who revoke such an agreement, will not be eligible for Severance Benefits or
Supplemental Severance Benefits, regardless of the reason for the Termination of Employment. For
purposes hereof, the “ Release and Waiver Deadline " means the deadline prescribed by the
Administrator for the execution of such agreement.

Return of Property . All Employer property, including information and reports, data, files, memoranda,
records, credit cards, keys, passwords, computers, software, telecommunications equipment, and other
physical or personal property that the eligible Employee received, prepared or helped prepare in
connection with the Employee’s employment with the Employer, must be returned by that Employee on
or before the Employee’s last day of employment in order for such Employee to commence receiving
benefits under the Plan.

Breach of Obligations to Employer . No otherwise eligible Employee shall be entitled to any Severance
Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under the Plan if, in the sole discretion of the
Administrator, such Employee is in breach or violation of any contractual or other legal obligation to the
Employer, including, but not limited to, obligations concerning non-disclosure of confidential information
and post-employment restrictions on competition with the Employer.

Offsets . Any Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits payable under the Plan shall be

reduced dollar-for-dollar by any severance payments or benefits provided by the Employer under any
other plan or arrangement or pursuant to any applicable federal, state or local law, including without
limitation any payments required pursuant to the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (the
“WARN Act ). the lllinois Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (“ IL WARN Act ") and/or
the New York State Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Law (“ NY WARN Law ") (collectively
the “WARN LAWS"). If Termination of Employment is deemed to be covered by the WARN LAWS, any
severance benefits that may be payable pursuant to this Plan shall be considered payment required
under the WARN LAWS.




4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

Governing Law . This Plan, to the extent not preempted by ERISA or any other federal law, shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.

Nonassignability . Payments that are made under this Plan may not be assigned by any Employee,
except as required by federal or non-preempted state law.

Severance Pay Not Compensation . The period for which Severance Pay may be computed and the
payments provided under this Plan shall not constitute employment, compensation or salary for
purposes of determining participation in, or other benefits under, any other benefit plan of the Employer.
Severance payments shall also not be considered wages for work performed by the Employee for any
purpose under state or federal law.

Right of Offset . By accepting Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under the Plan,
the Employee agrees that the Administrator, in its sole discretion, may withhold from any amounts
payable under this Plan any amounts that are owed to the Employer by the Employee.

Severability . Any provision herein that may be unenforceable will be deemed to be severed from the
remainder hereof, with such remaining provisions being given full force and effect.

Recovery of Payments Made by Mistake . An eligible Employee shall be required to return to the
Employer any Plan severance benefit payment, or portion thereof, made by a mistake of fact or law.

Representations Contrary to Plan . Except as otherwise provided herein, no employee, officer, or
director of the Employer has the authority to alter, vary or modify the terms of the Plan, except by means
of an authorized written amendment to the Plan. No verbal or written representations contrary to the
terms of the Plan and its written amendments shall be binding upon the Plan, the Administrator or the
Employer.

Plan Funding . No eligible Employee shall acquire by reason of the Plan any right in or title to any
assets, funds or property of the Employer. Any Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits
that become payable under the Plan are unfunded obligations of the Employer and shall be paid from
the general assets of the Employer. No employee, officer, director or agent of the Employer guarantees,
in any manner, the payment of Plan benefits.

Written Agreement . Any severance benefits to which an eligible Employee may be entitled to receive
under the Plan shall be communicated to such Employee in writing. An eligible Employee shall not be
entitled to receive any severance benefits under this Plan other than those benefits that are specifically
communicated to that Employee in such writing.

No Right to Other Claims . Neither an eligible Employee, his or her dependents,

5




4.18

his or her beneficiaries, nor anyone else has the right or claim to benefits under this Plan, other than
those described in the Plan.

Code Section 409A . All benefits under this Plan are intended either to be exempt from, or to comply

with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and the Plan shall be interpreted and administered
in a manner consistent with such intent. If payment of any benefit that is 'deferred compensation’ subject
to Section 409A of the Code at the time specified in this Plan would subject such compensation to
additional tax pursuant to Section 409A, the payment thereof shall be postponed to the earliest
commencement date on which such amount could be paid without incurring such additional tax.

V. Plan Administration .

51

5.2

53

5.4

Operation and Administration of Plan by Administrator . The Administrator has complete authority to

control and manage the operation and administration of the Plan. The Administrator shall have full and
exclusive discretionary authority to:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)
(e)

(f)

construe and interpret the provisions of the Plan;

adopt any rules, procedures, and forms that are necessary for the operation and administration of
the Plan that are consistent with its provisions;

determine eligibility for and the amount of Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits
for any Employee, as well as all other questions relating to the eligibility, benefits, and other rights
of Employees under the Plan;

keep all records necessary for the operation and administration of the Plan;

designate or employ agents (who may also be employees of the Employer) and delegate to them
the exercise of one or more specific powers of the Administrator; and, to the extent that the
exercise of such powers involves fiduciary responsibility, such agents will be fiduciaries of the Plan;
and

retain any legal, accounting or other expert advisers (who may also be advisers to the Employer) in
connection with the Administrator's operation and administration of the Plan.

Reliance on Documents, Instruments, Etc. The Administrator may rely on any certificate, statement or

other representation that is made on behalf of the Employer or any Employee that it believes, in good
faith, to be genuine, and on any certificate, statement, report or other representation that is made to it by
any agent or any attorney, accountant or other expert retained by it or the Employer in connection with
the operation and administration of the Plan.

Administrative Expenses . All expenses of operating and administering the Plan, including, but not

limited to, fees of any agents and experts retained by the Administrator under Section 5.2, will be paid by
the Employer.

Bond, Compensation, Indemnification of Administrator . No bond or other security will be required of the

Administrator, except as provided by law. No compensation will be paid to any person for performing his
or her duties as Administrator. The Administrator will be indemnified by the Employer for any liabilities
(including legal expenses) arising from any act or failure to act that is done in good faith in accordance
with the Plan’s provisions.






5.5

5.6

More Than One Fiduciary Capacity . Person(s) may serve in more than one fiduciary capacity under the

Plan.

Denial of Claims; Appeals . If any person (the “ claimant ") claims payments under the Plan and the

claim is wholly or partially denied, the following procedures will apply to resolve it:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Within 90 days after the receipt of the claim, the Administrator will provide the claimant with written
or electronic notice of its decision on the claim. If the Administrator cannot render a decision on the
claim within the 90-day period because of special circumstances, the Administrator may extend the
period in which to render the decision by an additional 90 days, up to a total of 180 days after its
receipt of the written claim. The Administrator will provide the claimant with a written notice of any
extension before the end of the initial 90-day period, which indicates the special circumstances that
require the extension and the expected decision date. If the claim is deemed denied in whole or in
part (an “ adverse benefit determination "), the written or electronic notice of the decision will inform
the claimant of (i) the specific reasons for the adverse benefit determination; (ii) the specific
provisions of the Plan upon which the adverse benefit determination is based; (iii) any additional
information or material that is necessary to perfect the claim and the reasons why such information
or material is necessary; and (iv) the right to request a review of the adverse benefit determination,
the procedures for requesting such review, and the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under
Section 502(a) of ERISA.

A claimant who wishes to use the Plan’s claim appeal procedure must notify the Administrator that
he or she wishes to appeal within 60 days of receiving the Administrator’'s written or electronic
notice of an adverse benefit determination. The claimant may review all relevant documents
relating to the claim, including the Plan document, and may submit issues and comments in writing.
The Administrator will undertake a full and fair review of the record of the appeal of the adverse
benefit determination and prepare its decision. The Administrator will give the claimant written or
electronic notice of the decision of the appeal within 60 days after the receipt of the claimant’s
notice of appeal. If special circumstances require an extension of time for processing, the
Administrator may be given 120 days after the receipt of the claimant’s notice of appeal to render
its decision. The Administrator will provide the claimant with a written notice of the extension,
before the end of the 60-day period, which indicates the special circumstances that require the
extension and the expected decision date. The written or electronic notice of the decision of the
appeal will be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and will include the
specific reasons for the decision, specific references to any facts or any provisions of the Plan on
which the decision is based, and a statement regarding the claimant’s right to bring a civil action
under Section 502(a) of ERISA. The decision of the Administrator on review is binding on all
parties, subject to any determination by a court in an action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

A claimant cannot file an action under Section 502(a) of ERISA until he or she has exhausted
these procedures.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this amended and restated Plan to be executed by its duly
authorized officer on this 20th day of December, 2013.

CME GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Hilda Hatrris Piell

Its: Senior Managing Director & Chief Human Resources Officer




1 APPENDIXA

SEVERANCE SCHEDULE FOR
QUALIFYING TERMINATIONS

Severance Benefits and Supplemental Severance Benefits, as described below, are conditioned on and will only be
paid after an eligible Employee (i) executes a Release and Waiver as described in Section 4.4 (unless such agreement
is waived in accordance with that Section), and such agreement (if applicable) becomes effective after the applicable
waiting period, and (i) is determined by the Administrator to have satisfied all other conditions to receive benefits under
this Plan and this Appendix A.

A.

Amount of Severance Pay .

1. Eligible Employees

Severance Pay will equal two (2) weeks of Base Salary per Year of Service, subject to a minimum of six
(6) weeks of Base Salary and a maximum of 39 weeks of Base Salary.

For purposes of this Appendix A:

“Base Salary” means the annual base rate of pay of an eligible Employee, as in effect on the date on which
such Employee is notified of his or her Qualifying Termination.

“Year of Service” means each twelve (12)-consecutive-month period, which is measured from an eligible
Employee’s most recent date of hire.

Supplemental Severance Benefits .

Supplemental Severance Benefits awarded by the Administrator in its sole discretion pursuant to Section
3.2 may include any of the following:

1. Continuation Coverage . Payment of part or all of the cost of Continuation Coverage for an eligible
Employee for a specified period of time.

2. Outplacement Services . Outplacement assistance through a firm selected by the Employer.

3. Stock Options and Restricted Stock . Acceleration of the vesting of stock options and restricted stock
held by the Employee, but only to the extent such stock options and restricted stock would have vested
had the Employee remained employed by the Employer throughout the Severance Period.

A
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CME Group Inc. Severance Plan

Purpose, Intent, and Effective Date .

CME Group Inc. (the “ Company ") previously adopted the CME Group Inc. Severance Plan (the “ Plan ") as a
component of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. Employee Benefit Plan. The Company hereby amends and
restates the Plan, effective January 1, 2013 (the “ Restatement Effective Date ”).

The provisions of this Plan supersede any prior Employer severance benefit plan documents, policies, and
programs (regardless of whether such policies and programs were written). The Board of Directors of the
Company, or its designee, may designate one or more officers (by office or by name) to perform any act
specified to be done by “the Company” under this Plan.

The purpose of the Plan is to provide severance benefits to certain employees of the Employer in the event that
their employment is terminated in specified circumstances.

The Plan is intended to constitute an unfunded welfare benefit plan for purposes of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (* ERISA ).

Definitions .

2.1
“ Administrator ” means the person(s) or committee designated by the Company to administer the Plan.
The Administrator shall be the “administrator” and the “named fiduciary” of the Plan for purposes of
ERISA. Unless there is another designation by the Company, the Administrator is the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.2
“ Cause " means engaging in conduct that violates any of the Employer’s policies and/or is harmful to the
Employer. Whether a Termination of Employment is for Cause will be determined in each case by the
Administrator in its sole discretion.

2.3
“ Code " means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

2.4
“ Continuation Coverage " means (i) the continuation of health plan coverage under Part 6 of Title | of
ERISA (* COBRA ") and (ii) the COBRA-like continuation of health plan coverage of an Employee’s
domestic partner under the terms of the Employer’s group health plan.

2.5
“Controlled Group” means the Company and any other employer that, together with the Company, would
be considered a single employer under Section 414(b) or 414(c) of the Code.

2.6

“Eligible Executive” means an Employee on the U.S. payroll holding the position of Executive Director,
Managing Director, Senior Managing Director or any other position on the Management Team of the
Company.




2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

“ Employee " means an individual on the U.S. payroll of the Employer who provides personal services to
the Employer for compensation, exclusive of individuals who are (a) covered by (i) an individual contract
of employment that provides severance benefits, (i) an individual severance agreement, unless such
contract or agreement is evidenced in writing and makes reference to the terms of this Plan, or (iii) any
other severance plan of the Employer or an affiliate of the Employer; (b) classified as independent
contractors by the Company for employment tax purposes (whether or not such classification is
challenged or upheld); (c) temporary, seasonal or intern employees; (d) covered by a collective
bargaining agreement which does not provide for participation in this plan; (e) Eligible Executives of the
Employer covered by the CME Group Severance Plan for Eligible Executives; (f) regularly scheduled to
work for the Employer less than 20 hours per week; (g) not eligible for Employer-provided pension or
welfare benefits; or (h) not on the Employer’s United States payroll. The Administrator shall have the
authority to determine, in its sole and complete discretion and on a case-by-case basis, whether an
individual constitutes an Employee for purposes of the Plan.

“ Employer " means Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc. and any other employer that is a member of the
Controlled Group and that is designated by the Company as eligible to participate in the Plan. As of the
Restatement Effective Date, the Employers include GFX Corporation, New York Mercantile Exchange,
Inc. and Pivot, Inc.

“ Involuntary Termination " means an involuntary Termination of Employment by the Employer other than
by reason of death or disability. In no event will an Employee be deemed to incur an Involuntary
Termination if he or she is offered a transfer to a position within the Employer or a position with an
affiliate of the Employer, irrespective of whether the Employee elects to accept such offer.

“ Qualifying Termination ” means an Involuntary Termination, other than for Cause that the Administrator
determines in its sole discretion is due to the elimination of Employee’s job or a reduction in force or due
to the unacceptable performance of the Employee’s job duties and responsibilities.

“ Severance Benefit ” means any payment or benefit described in the Severance Schedule to this Plan to
which an Employee is entitled upon a Qualifying Termination.

“ Severance Pay " means the portion of a Severance Benefit consisting of severance pay.

“ Severance Period " means the period described in the applicable Severance Schedule for which an
Employee is entitled to receive Severance Pay.

“ Severance Schedule " means the applicable schedule attached as an appendix to this Plan, as such
schedule may be modified from time to time by the Administrator, that describes the Severance Benefits
and Supplemental




2.15

2.16

Severance Benefits that an Employee may be entitled to receive pursuant to this Plan.

“ Supplemental Severance Benefits " means any discretionary supplemental benefits that are in addition
to any Severance Benefits, including, without limitation, any such discretionary supplemental benefits
provided in accordance with the applicable Severance Schedule.

“ Termination of Employment ” means a "separation from service" within the meaning of Section 409A of
the Code and Treas. Reg. 81.409A-1(h) with the Employer and all members of the Controlled Group.

Eligibility for Benefits .

3.1

3.2

3.3

Severance Benefits . Subject to the provisions of Article 1V, an Employee who experiences a Qualifying
Termination during the term of this Plan shall be eligible to receive the Severance Benefits set forth in
Appendix A.

Supplemental Severance Benefits . The Administrator may award Supplemental Severance Benefits to
an Employee who experiences a Qualifying Termination in the Administrator's sole discretion and on a
case-by-case basis. The determination as to which Supplemental Severance Benefits will be offered, if
any, and the amount of such benefit, shall be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion;
provided, however, that any cash Supplemental Severance Benefit shall in no event cause an
Employee's total cash Severance Benefits and cash Supplemental Severance Benefits to exceed 52
weeks of Base Salary.

Ineligible Employees . Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3.3, an Employee who experiences a
Termination of Employment that is not a Qualifying Termination (a “ Nonqualifying Termination ") shall
not be entitled to Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under this Plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator may determine to provide benefits under the Plan upon
a Nonqualifying Termination in individual cases due to special circumstances, the amount and nature of
such benefits to be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion.

General Provisions .

4.1

Timing of Severance Pay . Any Severance Pay that is due to an eligible Employee pursuant to Article I
shall be paid in a lump sum (unless otherwise determined by the Plan Administrator) within 30 days of
the later of the date on which a signed Release and Waiver (as described in Section 4.4) is received by
the Employer or the date on which the signed Release and Waiver has become irrevocable or, in the
event the Administrator waives the Release and Waiver requirement, within 30 days of the Employee’s
Termination of Employment. In any event, all Severance Pay (including any Supplemental Severance
Benefits described in Section 3.2) not exceeding the “separation pay” limitations of Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1
(b)(9)(iii)(A) shall be paid no later than the end of the second year following the year in which an
Employee’s Termination of Employment occurs in accordance with Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(B).
Any Severance Pay in




excess of the limitations of Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(b)(9)(ii))(A) shall be paid in a lump sum payment on the
90 "day following the Employee’s Termination of Employment.

4.2 Withholding . The Administrator shall withhold from any Severance Benefits and Supplemental Severance

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Benefits all federal and state income, FICA, and other employment taxes, and any other amounts
required or permitted to be withheld under any agreement with the Employee involved, applicable law or
other employee benefit plans of the Employer.

Amendment and Termination . The Company may amend or terminate this Plan at any time and without
prior notice; provided, however, that in no event shall any such amendment or termination affect, in any
manner, the entitlement to Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits, if any, of an
Employee who, prior to the date of such amendment or termination, was determined to be eligible for
such payments.

Payments Conditioned on Release . Eligibility for the receipt of Severance Benefits or Supplemental
Severance Benefits hereunder is expressly conditioned upon the execution by the Employee of a
comprehensive settlement agreement and release and waiver (* Release and Waiver "), in a form to be
determined from time to time by the Administrator; provided, however, that the Administrator may, in its
sole discretion, waive this requirement, in whole or in part, with respect to all or a part of an Employee’s
benefits under the Plan. Except to the extent the requirement to execute such an agreement is waived
by the Administrator, Employees who do not execute such an agreement on or before the Release and
Waiver Deadline, or who revoke such an agreement, will not be eligible for Severance Benefits or
Supplemental Severance Benefits, regardless of the reason for the Termination of Employment. For
purposes hereof, the “ Release and Waiver Deadline " means the deadline prescribed by the
Administrator for the execution of such agreement.

Return of Property . All Employer property, including information and reports, data, files, memoranda,
records, credit cards, keys, passwords, computers, software, telecommunications equipment, and other
physical or personal property that the eligible Employee received, prepared or helped prepare in
connection with the Employee’s employment with the Employer, must be returned by that Employee on
or before the Employee’s last day of employment in order for such Employee to commence receiving
benefits under the Plan.

Breach of Obligations to Employer . No otherwise eligible Employee shall be entitled to any Severance
Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under the Plan if, in the sole discretion of the
Administrator, such Employee is in breach or violation of any contractual or other legal obligation to the
Employer, including, but not limited to, obligations concerning non-disclosure of confidential information
and post-employment restrictions on competition with the Employer.

Offsets . Any Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits payable

4




4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

4.13

414

4.15

under the Plan shall be reduced dollar-for-dollar by any severance payments or benefits provided by the
Employer under any other plan or arrangement or pursuant to any applicable federal, state or local law,
including without limitation any payments required pursuant to the Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Notification Act (the “ WARN Act "), the lllinois Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (“ IL
WARN Act ") and/or the New York State Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Law (“ NY
WARN Law ") (collectively the “WARN LAWS”). If Termination of Employment is deemed to be covered
by the WARN LAWS, any severance benefits that may be payable pursuant to this Plan shall be
considered payment required under the WARN LAWS.

Governing Law . This Plan, to the extent not preempted by ERISA or any other federal law, shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.

Nonassignability . Payments that are made under this Plan may not be assigned by any Employee,
except as required by federal or non-preempted state law.

Severance Pay Not Compensation . The period for which Severance Pay may be computed and the
payments provided under this Plan shall not constitute employment, compensation or salary for
purposes of determining participation in, or other benefits under, any other benefit plan of the Employer.
Severance payments shall also not be considered wages for work performed by the Employee for any
purpose under state or federal law.

Right of Offset . By accepting Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits under the Plan,
the Employee agrees that the Administrator, in its sole discretion, may withhold from any amounts
payable under this Plan any amounts that are owed to the Employer by the Employee.

Severability . Any provision herein that may be unenforceable will be deemed to be severed from the
remainder hereof, with such remaining provisions being given full force and effect.

Recovery of Payments Made by Mistake . An eligible Employee shall be required to return to the
Employer any Plan severance benefit payment, or portion thereof, made by a mistake of fact or law.

Representations Contrary to Plan . Except as otherwise provided herein, no employee, officer, or
director of the Employer has the authority to alter, vary or modify the terms of the Plan, except by means
of an authorized written amendment to the Plan. No verbal or written representations contrary to the
terms of the Plan and its written amendments shall be binding upon the Plan, the Administrator or the
Employer.

Plan Funding . No eligible Employee shall acquire by reason of the Plan any right in or title to any
assets, funds or property of the Employer. Any Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance Benefits
that become payable under the




4.16

417

4.18

Plan are unfunded obligations of the Employer and shall be paid from the general assets of the
Employer. No employee, officer, director or agent of the Employer guarantees, in any manner, the
payment of Plan benefits.

Written Agreement . Any severance benefits to which an eligible Employee may be entitled to receive
under the Plan shall be communicated to such Employee in writing. An eligible Employee shall not be
entitled to receive any severance benefits under this Plan other than those benefits that are specifically
communicated to that Employee in such writing.

No Right to Other Claims . Neither an eligible Employee, his or her dependents, his or her beneficiaries,
nor anyone else has the right or claim to benefits under this Plan, other than those described in the Plan.

Code Section 409A . All benefits under this Plan are intended either to be exempt from, or to comply
with, the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, and the Plan shall be interpreted and administered
in a manner consistent with such intent. If payment of any benefit that is 'deferred compensation' subject
to Section 409A of the Code at the time specified in this Plan would subject such compensation to
additional tax pursuant to Section 409A, the payment thereof shall be postponed to the earliest
commencement date on which such amount could be paid without incurring such additional tax.

Plan Administration .

51

5.2

Operation and Administration of Plan by Administrator . The Administrator has complete authority to
control and manage the operation and administration of the Plan. The Administrator shall have full and
exclusive discretionary authority to:

€)) construe and interpret the provisions of the Plan;

(b)  adopt any rules, procedures, and forms that are necessary for the operation and administration of
the Plan that are consistent with its provisions;

(c) determine eligibility for and the amount of Severance Benefits or Supplemental Severance
Benefits for any Employee, as well as all other questions relating to the eligibility, benefits, and
other rights of Employees under the Plan;

(d) keep all records necessary for the operation and administration of the Plan;

(e) designate or employ agents (who may also be employees of the Employer) and delegate to them
the exercise of one or more specific powers of the Administrator; and, to the extent that the
exercise of such powers involves fiduciary responsibility, such agents will be fiduciaries of the
Plan; and

() retain any legal, accounting or other expert advisers (who may also be advisers to the Employer)
in connection with the Administrator’s operation and administration of the Plan.

Reliance on Documents, Instruments, Etc. The Administrator may rely on any certificate, statement or
other representation that is made on behalf of the Employer or any Employee that it believes, in good
faith, to be genuine, and on




any certificate, statement, report or other representation that is made to it by any agent or any attorney,
accountant or other expert retained by it or the Employer in connection with the operation and
administration of the Plan.

5.3 Administrative Expenses . All expenses of operating and administering the Plan, including, but not limited to,
fees of any agents and experts retained by the Administrator under Section 5.2, will be paid by the
Employer.

54

5.5

5.6

Bond, Compensation, Indemnification of Administrator . No bond or other security will be required of the

Administrator, except as provided by law. No compensation will be paid to any person for performing his
or her duties as Administrator. The Administrator will be indemnified by the Employer for any liabilities
(including legal expenses) arising from any act or failure to act that is done in good faith in accordance
with the Plan’s provisions.

More Than One Fiduciary Capacity . Person(s) may serve in more than one fiduciary capacity under the

Plan.

Denial of Claims; Appeals . If any person (the “ claimant ") claims payments under the Plan and the

claim is wholly or partially denied, the following procedures will apply to resolve it:

(@)

(b)

Within 90 days after the receipt of the claim, the Administrator will provide the claimant with
written or electronic notice of its decision on the claim. If the Administrator cannot render a
decision on the claim within the 90-day period because of special circumstances, the
Administrator may extend the period in which to render the decision by an additional 90 days, up
to a total of 180 days after its receipt of the written claim. The Administrator will provide the
claimant with a written notice of any extension before the end of the initial 90-day period, which
indicates the special circumstances that require the extension and the expected decision date. If
the claim is deemed denied in whole or in part (an “ adverse benefit determination "), the written
or electronic notice of the decision will inform the claimant of (i) the specific reasons for the
adverse benefit determination; (ii) the specific provisions of the Plan upon which the adverse
benefit determination is based; (iii) any additional information or material that is necessary to
perfect the claim and the reasons why such information or material is necessary; and (iv) the right
to request a review of the adverse benefit determination, the procedures for requesting such
review, and the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

A claimant who wishes to use the Plan’s claim appeal procedure must notify the Administrator
that he or she wishes to appeal within 60 days of receiving the Administrator’s written or
electronic notice of an adverse benefit determination. The claimant may review all relevant
documents relating to the claim, including the Plan document, and may submit issues and
comments in writing. The Administrator will undertake a full and fair review of the record of the
appeal of the adverse benefit determination and prepare its decision. The Administrator will give
the claimant written or electronic notice of the decision of the appeal within 60 days after the
receipt of the claimant’s notice of appeal. If special circumstances require an extension of time for
processing, the Administrator may be given 120 days after the
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receipt of the claimant’s notice of appeal to render its decision. The Administrator will provide the
claimant with a written notice of the extension, before the end of the 60-day period, which
indicates the special circumstances that require the extension and the expected decision date.
The written or electronic notice of the decision of the appeal will be written in a manner calculated
to be understood by the claimant and will include the specific reasons for the decision, specific
references to any facts or any provisions of the Plan on which the decision is based, and a
statement regarding the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.
The decision of the Administrator on review is binding on all parties, subject to any determination
by a court in an action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

(c) A claimant cannot file an action under Section 502(a) of ERISA until he or she has exhausted
these procedures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this amended and restated Plan to be executed by its duly
authorized officer on this 20th day of December, 2013.

CME GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Hilda Harris Piell

Its: Senior Managing Director & Chief Human Resources Officer




1 Appendix A

SEVERANCE SCHEDULE FOR
QUALIFYING TERMINATIONS

Severance Benefits and Supplemental Severance Benefits, as described below, are conditioned on and will only be
paid after an eligible Employee (i) executes a Release and Waiver as described in Section 4.4 (unless such agreement
is waived in accordance with that Section), and such agreement (if applicable) becomes effective after the applicable
waiting period, and (i) is determined by the Administrator to have satisfied all other conditions to receive benefits under
this Plan and this Appendix A.

A. Amount of Severance Pay .

1. Eligible Non-Exempt Employees

Severance Pay will equal one (1) week of Base Salary per Year of Service, subject to a minimum of four
(4) weeks of Base Salary and a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks of Base Salary.

2. Eligible Exempt Employees

Severance Pay will equal two (2) weeks of Base Salary per Year of Service, subject to a minimum of
four (4) weeks of Base Salary and a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks of Base Salary.

For purposes of this Appendix A:

“ Base Salary " means the annual base rate of pay of an eligible Employee, as in effect on the date on which
such Employee is notified of his or her Qualifying Standard Termination.

“ Year of Service " means each twelve (12)-consecutive-month period, which is measured from an eligible
Employee’s most recent date of hire.

B. Supplemental Severance Benefits .

Supplemental Severance Benefits awarded by the Administrator in its sole discretion pursuant to Section
3.2 may include any of the following:

1. Continuation Coverage . Payment of part or all of the cost of Continuation Coverage for an eligible
Employee for a specified period of time.

2. Outplacement Services . Outplacement assistance through a firm selected by the Employer.

3. Stock Options and Restricted Stock . Acceleration of the vesting of stock options and restricted stock
held by the Employee, but only to the extent such stock options and restricted stock would have vested
had the Employee remained employed by the Employer throughout the Severance Period.

A-1



Exhibit 10.26

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “ Amendment No. 2) dated as of Novemk
8, 2013, is amon@ME GROUP INC. , a Delaware corporation (theBorrower”), BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. , in
its capacity as administrative agent for the Lesdas defined in the Credit Agreement describedvie(in sucl
capacity, the “Administrative Agent’) and each of the Lenders (collectively, th&é&quired Lenders) under suc
Credit Agreement which are parties hereto.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and thenders entered into that certain Cr
Agreement dated as of January 11, 2011 (ti@riginal Credit Agreement’) which was amended by that cer
Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement and Joinderagrent dated as of November 30, 2012 (tRest Amendmen
", the Original Credit Agreement, as amended byRinst Amendment, the Existing Credit Agreement, the Existing
Credit Agreement as amended hereby, tigredit Agreement); capitalized terms used in this Amendment No. :
otherwise defined herein shall have the respeati®anings given thereto in the Existing Credit Agneat); and

WHEREAS , in connection with an assignment of the MC Commeitt or USD Commitment, as the case
be, of the Non-Extending MC Lenders or Nértending USD Lenders, as the case may be, toimeebasting
Extending USD Lenders, proposed to occur immediaater the execution and delivery of this Amendimio. z
pursuant to paragraph 2 below, pursuant to whiah ®xisting Extending USD Lenders shall agree terek suc
commitments to the Extended Maturity Date (thgdh-Extending Lender Assignmen), the Borrower has reques
that the Administrative Agent and the Lenders amiedCredit Agreement in order to convert Morgaanty Bank
N.A.’s (* Morgan Stanley”) MC Commitment to a USD Commitment (theCommitment Conversior{), and th
Administrative Agent and the Lenders party here® willing to effect such amendment on the termd eondition:
contained in this Amendment No. 2.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the premises and further adle consideration, the receipt .
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, thetipa hereto agree as follows:

1. Consent and Amendments to Credit Agreement Subject to the terms and conditions set
herein and upon the effectiveness of the Eaitending Lender Assignment, the Existing Creditréegment will b
amended as follows:

a. Schedule 2.01 and 2.02 of the Existing Credit Agrexet will be deleted in their entirety and reple
with Schedules 2.01 and 2.02 attached hereto aibiERh.

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree thafAtnsndment No. 2 is not a novation of the Credit&&ment or ¢
any credit facility provided thereunder or in resipinereof.
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2. Effectiveness; Conditions Precedent This Amendment No. 2 shall become effective atttime (th
“ Amendment No.2 Effective Dat§ the Administrative Agent shall have received corpaés of this Amendment N
2 duly executed by the Borrower, Lenders constituiRequired Lenders, and Morgan Stanley and acledgeld by th
Administrative Agent.

3. Representations and Warranties In order to induce the Lenders to enter into Ansendment No. :
the Borrower represents and warrants to the Leratefsllows:

a. At the time of and immediately after giving effeot this Amendment No. 2, (i) the representationd
warranties of the Borrower set forth in Article bF the Credit Agreement shall be true and cormecall materia
respects on and as of the date hereof (excepetexient that such representations and warramgesfeally refer to a
earlier date, in which case they are true and cbireall material respects as of such earlier ,datel except that t
representations and warranties contained in Se8tdf(a)of the Credit Agreement shall be deemed to reféinéamos
recent statements furnished pursuant to Sectidi{(&.8nd_(b)of the Credit Agreement), and (ii) no Default orelav o
Default has occurred and is continuing.

b. This Amendment No. 2 has been duly executed andedet! by the Borrower and constitutes a legaig
and binding obligation of the Borrower, enforceablgainst the Borrower in accordance with its terswuhject ti
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganizatimoyatorium or other similar laws affecting cred#atights generall
and subject to general principles of equity, retgmslof whether considered in a proceeding in gauiat law.

4. Entire Agreement . This Amendment No. 2, together with the Existingedit Agreemer
(collectively, the “Relevant Document$), sets forth the entire understandlng and agreenfetiteoparties hereto
relation to the subject matter hereof and supessadg prior negotiations and agreements amongatteep relating t
such subject matter. No promise, condition, reprd®n or warranty, express or implied, not setifan the Releval
Documents shall bind any party hereto, and no gacty has relied on any such promise, conditiopragentation
warranty. Each of the parties hereto acknowledgats éxcept as otherwise expressly stated in thevRa Document
no representations, warranties or commitments,esgpor implied, have been made by any party too#mgr party i
relation to the subject matter hereof or thereadn@l of the terms or conditions of this Amendment Ramay b
changed, modified, waived or canceled orally oeothse, except in writing and in accordance witit®a 9.020f the
Credit Agreement.

5. Full Force and Effect of Agreement. Except as hereby specifically amended, modifie
supplemented, the Credit Agreement is hereby aqoefirand ratified in all respects and shall be @naiain in full forc
and effect according to its terms.

6. Counterparts . This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in any nurabeounterparts, each of wh
shall be deemed an original as against any partyse/tsignature appears thereon, and all of whicH &hgethe
constitute one and the same instrument. Delivergnoéxecuted counterpart of a signature page sfAtmendment N
2 by telecopy or other electronic transmission.(edf or electronic mail) shall be effective as armally execute
counterpart of this Amendment No. 2.
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7. Governing Law . THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 SHALL IN ALL RESPECTS BE GOVHRED BY,
AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THETATE OF NEW YORK. The Borrowt
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, itself and its property, to the exclusive jurigdio of the Supren
Court of the State of New York sitting in New Yo@ounty and of the United States District Court led Souther
District of New York, and any appellate court framy thereof, in any action or proceeding arisingajlor relating t
this Amendment No. 2, or for recognition or enfanemt of any judgment, and each of the parties beneteb
irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that allirakin respect of any such action or proceeding beyheard ar
determined in such New York State or, to the exparmitted by law, in such Federal court. This Adraent No.
shall be further subject to the provisions of Seti9.0%9nd_9.10f the Credit Agreement.

8. Enforceability . Any provision of this Amendment No. 2 held to beahd, illegal or unenforceable
any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, ineffective to the extent of such |nvaI|d|ty, gjality or enforceabilit
without affecting the validity, legality and enfewability of the remaining provisions hereof; an@ ihvalidity of ¢
particular provision in a particular jurisdictiohadl not invalidate such provision in any otherisjd'rction.

0. References. All references to the “Credit Agreemerghall mean the Credit Agreement, as ame
hereby.

10. Successors and AssignsThis Amendment No. 2 shall be binding upon andenar the benefit «
the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Lendansl their respective successors, legal represedaand assigne
to the extent such assignees are permitted assigisgarovided in Section 9.04#the Credit Agreement.

[ Sgnature pages follow.]

3

51713439 4




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have caused this instrumelé tmade, executed and delive
by their duly authorized officers as of the day gedr first above written.
BORROWER :

CME GROUP INC.

By: __ /s/ James E. Parisi

Name: James E. Parisi

Title: Chief Financial Officer & Sr. ManagjrDirector Finance &
Corporate Development
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BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. , as Administrative Agent

By: _ /s/ Angela Larkin
Name: Angela Larkin
Title:  Assistant Vice President
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LENDERS :

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. , as a Lender and as a Swing Line Lender

By: /s/ Maryanne Fitzmaurice
Name: Maryanne Fitzmaurice
Title: Director

BARCLAYS BANK PLC , as a Lender

By: __/s/Alicia Borys
Name: Alicia Borys
Title: Vice President

CITIBANK, N.A. , as a Lender

By: __/s/ Marina Donskaya
Name: Marina Donskaya
Title: Director

UBS LOAN FINANCE LLC , as a Lender

By: _ /sl Lana Gifas
Name: Lana Gifas
Title: Director

By: __/s/ Jennifer Anderson
Name: Jennifer Anderson
Title: Associate Director

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Tracy L. Moosbrugger
Name: Tracy L. Moosbrugger
Title: Managing Director
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BANK OF MONTREAL , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Adam Tarr
Name: Adam Tarr
Title: Vice President

LLOYDS BANK PLC (f/k/a LLOYDS TSB BANK PLC)

By: _ /s/ Joel Siomko
Name: Joel Siomko
Title: Assistant Vice President, Transactom@cution

By: _ /s/ Stephen Giaciomo
Name: Stephen Giaciomo
Title: Assistant Vice President

, as a Lender

THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD. , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Oscar D. Cortez
Name: Oscar D. Cortez
Title: Vice President

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA , as a Lender

By: __/s/ Thane Rattew
Name: Thane Rattew
Title: Managing Director

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Lorenzo Melendez
Name: Lorenzo Melendez
Title: Executive Director
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THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Anne Nickel
Name: Anne Nickel
Title: Second Vice President

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Diane L. Demmler
Name: Diane L. Demmler
Title: Vice President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION , as a Lender

By: __ /s/Alaa Shraim
Name: Alaa Shraim
Title: Vice President

MORGAN STANLEY BANK, N.A. , as a Lender

By: __/s/Harry Comninellis
Name: Harry Comninellis
Title: Authorized Signatory

BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS CO., LTD., NEW YORK
BRANCH , as a Lender

By:
Name:
Title:

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA , as a Lender
By:

Name:
Title:
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U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Charles Howes
Name: Charles Howes
Title: Vice President

DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH , as a Lender

By: __/s/ Virginia Cosenza
Name: Virginia Cosenza
Title: Vice President

By: _ /s/ Ming K. Chu
Name: Ming K. Chu
Title: Vice President

BANK OF CHINA, NEW YORK BRANCH , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Raymond Qiao
Name: Raymond Qiao
Title: First Vice President

THE CHIBA BANK, LTD., NEW YORK BRANCH , as a Lender

By: _ /s/ Katsunori Uematsu
Name: Katsunori Uematsu
Title: General Manager

CHANG HWA COMMERCIAL BANK, LTD., NEW YORK
BRANCH , as a Lender

By:
Name:
Title:




FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK, LTD., NEW YORK BRANCH ,asa
Lender

By:
Name:
Title:

MEGA INTERNATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. NEW
YORK BRANCH , as a Lender
By:

Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 12.1

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chargeg?

The following table sets forth our ratio of earrsrtg fixed charge® for the periods indicated. All amounts are in roilis, except for the ratio
of earnings to fixed charges.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Income before income taxes $ 1601( $ 1693 $ 1936! $ 1,721¢ $ 1,437!
Add back:

Share of loss on equity investé&s 6.4 5.5 5.¢ 7.2 7.2

Amortization of capitalized interest 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 —

Distributed income from equity investees 68.t 14.¢ — — —
Subtract:

Share of gains on equity investégs (76.9 (36.2) (1.6 (0.8 —

Capitalized interest — (0.6) (1.0 0.3 (1.9
Earnings Before Income Taxes 1,599.: 1,677.: 1,940.( 1,728.: 1,443.:
Plus:

Interest expense 151.¢ 132.7 117.¢ 140.¢ 135.¢

Interest expense within rent 13.€ 11.7 11.2 10.5 10.2
Adjusted Earnings $ 1764f $ 1821¢ $ 2069. $ 1879. $ 1,588.¢
Fixed Charges $ 165.2 $ 144.¢  $ 129.1 $ 1511 $ 145t
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 10.6% 12.62 16.0z 12.4¢ 10.92

(1) The ratio of earnings to fixed chargesakulated by dividing adjusted earnings by fixedrgfes. “Fixed charges” consist of interest
incurred and an estimate of interest within reatgdense.

(2) Represents CME Group's interest in varioigies, which is recognized using the equity metbhéaccounting.



Name of Subsidiary*

Board of Trade Investment Co.

Board of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc.
Chicago Mercantile Exchange Inc.
Chicago Mercantile Exchange Korea Inc.

Chicago Mercantile Exchange Luxembourg Holdingsr$.a
Chicago Mercantile Exchange Luxembourg S.a.r.l.

CME Clearing Europe Limited

CME Consulting (Beijing) Co. Ltd.
CME ECM Inc.

CME Europe Limited

CME Finance Holdings Limited

CME Global Marketplace Inc.

CME Group Asia Holdings Pte.Ltd
CME Group Hong Kong Limited

CME Group Index Services LLC

CME Group International Market Data Limited
CME Group Japan K.K.

CME Group Marketing Canada Inc.
CME Group Singapore Operations Pte.Ltd.
CME Group Strategic Investments LLC
CME Marketing Europe Limited

CME Operations Limited

CME Technology and Support Services Limited
CME Trade Repository Limited

CMEG Brazil 1 Participacdes Ltda.
CMEG Brazil Investments 1 LLC
CMEG Brazil Investments 2 LLC
CMEG Foundation Services Inc.
CMEG México, S. de R.L. de C.V.
CMEG NYMEX Holdings Inc.

CMEG Strategic Sdn. Bhd.
Commodity Exchange, Inc.
ConfirmHub, LLC

Elysian Systems Limited

GFX Corporation

Globex Markets Ltd

Liquidity Ventures | Inc.

New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc.
Pivot, Inc.

The Board of Trade of Kansas City, Missouri, Inc.

CME Group Subsidiaries

Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization

Missouri
Delawva
Delaware
Republiskofea
Luxembourg
xdmbourg
United Kingdom
China
Delaware
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Delaware
Singapore
Hong Kong
Delaware
Unit€ghgdom
Japan
Canada
Singapore
Delaware
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Brazil
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Malaysia
New York
Delaware
United Kingdom
lllinois
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

*Inactive subsidiaries and subsidiaries in the proess of liquidation have been excluded.
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdlewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 38%236) pertaining to the CME Group Inc. Amended Restate
Omnibus Stock Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3B®932) pertaining to the CME Group Inc. Amended Restate
Omnibus Stock Plan and the 2005 Director Stock Plan

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1048m S-8 No. 333:15656) pertaining to the Agreem
between Chicago Mercantile Exchange Holdings Ind. James J. McNulty,

(4) Registration Statement (Form (S-8 No. 323497) pertaining to the Employee Stock Purchdse &nd th
2005 Director Stock Plan,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-3ASR No. 332554) Shelf Registration Statement for the afigrof deb
securities, Class A Common Stock, Preferred StackVdarrants,

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-14453&taining to CBOT Holdings, Inc.’s 2005 Longim
Equity Incentive Plan,

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1534&2d Poskffective Amendment No. 2 to Registrat
Statement on Form S-4 (Form S-8 No. 333-151577apeng to the NYMEX Holdings, Incs’ 2006 Omnibt
Long-Term Incentive Plan,

(8) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1823ltaining to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

(9) Registration Statement (Form S-3ASR No. 332554) Shelf Registration Statement for the afiigrof deb
securities, Class A Common Stock, Preferred StadkVvdarrants,

(10) Registration Statement (Form S-3ASR No. 383473) Shelf Registration Statement for the affgof deb
securities, Class A Common Stock, Preferred Stodk\Vdarrants,

(11) Registration Statement (Form S-3ASR No. 383311) Shelf Registration Statement for the affgrof deb
securities, Class A Common Stock, Preferred StackVdarrants.

of our reports dated February 28, 2014 with respedhe consolidated financial statements and sdbeedof CME
Group Inc., and the effectiveness of internal aanaver financial reporting of CME Group Inc., imporated b
reference in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for yflear ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Phupinder S. Gill, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of CKEoup Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or déonfitate a material fact necessary ta
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors pa@rsons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2014

/s/ Phupinder S. Gill
Name: Phupinder S. Gill
Title: Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
I, James E. Parisi, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of CKEoup Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or déonditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloniting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors farsons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargtinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2014

/sl James E. Parisi
Name: James E. Parisi
Title: Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10/#CME Group Inc. (Company) for the year ended Ddoen81, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelsatof (Report), Phupinder S. Gill, as Chief ExamuOfficer of the Company, and James

E. Parisi, as Chief Financial Officer of the Compagach hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C35D1as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best skhiowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sl Phupinder S. Gill
Name: Phupinder S. Gill
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 28, 2014

/sl James E. Parisi
Name: James E. Parisi
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 28, 2014

This certification accompanies the Report purstagt 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 andl sttd] except to the extent required
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed Eiethe Company for purposes of §18 of the Secsriiechange Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 han hrovided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished o $ecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest.



